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[bookmark: PDF2_ReportName_9619][bookmark: PDF3_Attachment_9619_1]2019/2020 GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT CHECKLIST
	Requirement
	Assessment
	Date implemented/Effective date

	

Community Engagement Policy (policy outlining Council's commitment to engaging with the community on matters of public interest) 
	Current policy in operation
	YES
	2/03/2016

	Community Engagement Guidelines (guidelines to assist staff to determine when and how to engage with the community) 
	Current guidelines in operation
	YES
	2/03/2016

	Strategic Resource Plan (plan under section 126 of the Act outlining the financial and non-financial resources required for at least the next 4 financial years) 
	Plan adopted in accordance with section 126 of the Act  
	YES
	15/07/2020

	Annual Budget (plan under section 130 of the Act setting out the services to be provided and initiatives to be undertaken over the next 12 months and the funding and other resources required) 
	Budget adopted in accordance with section 130 of the Act
	YES
	15/07/2020

	Asset Management Plans (plans that set out the asset maintenance and renewal needs for key infrastructure asset classes for at least the next 10 years) 
	Current plans in operation
	YES
	 Part A General 30/4/13
Part B Transport 30/4/13
Part C Buildings 3/12/14
Part D Drainage 3/12/14
Part E Recreation 3/12/14

	Rating Strategy (strategy setting out the rating structure of Council to levy rates and charges)
	Current strategy in operation
	YES
	2/05/2018


	Risk Policy (policy outlining Council's commitment and approach to minimising the risks to Council's operations)
	Current policy in operation
	YES
	13/08/2019

	Fraud Policy (policy outlining Council's commitment and approach to minimising the risk of fraud) 
	Current policy in operation
	YES
	30/10/2019

	Municipal Emergency Management Plan (plan under section 20 of the Emergency Management Act 1986 for emergency prevention, response and recovery) 
	Prepared and maintained in accordance with section 20 of the Emergency Management Act 1986
	YES
	3/06/2020

	Procurement Policy (policy under section 186A of the Local Government Act 1989 outlining the matters, practices and procedures that will apply to all purchases of goods, services and works) 
	Prepared and approved in accordance with section 186A  of the Local Government Act 
	YES
	1/7/2020

	Business Continuity Plan (plan setting out the actions that will be undertaken to ensure that key services continue to operate in the event of a disaster) 
	Current plan in operation
	YES
	24/10/2017


	Disaster Recovery Plan (plan setting out the actions that will be undertaken to recover and restore business capability in the event of a disaster)
	Current plan in operation
	YES
	11/11/2019

	Risk Management Framework (framework outlining Council's approach to managing risks to the Council's operations)
	Current framework in operation
	YES
	25/03/2015

	Audit Committee (advisory committee of Council under section 139 of the Act whose role is to oversee the integrity of a Council's financial reporting, processes to manage risks to the Council's operations and for compliance with applicable legal, ethical, and regulatory requirements) 
	Committee established in accordance with section 139 of the Act
	YES
	23/03/2004

	Internal Audit (independent accounting professionals engaged by the Council to provide analyses and recommendations aimed at improving Council's governance, risk and management controls) 
	Internal auditor engaged     
	YES
	5/08/2015

	Performance Reporting Framework (a set of indicators measuring financial and non-financial performance, including the performance indicators referred to in section 131 of the Act) 
	Current framework in operation
	YES
	1/07/2019

	Council Plan Reporting (report reviewing the performance of the Council against the Council Plan, including the results in relation to the strategic indicators, for the first six months of the financial year) 
	Current report
	YES
	1st Quarter 06/11/2019
2nd Quarter 05/02/2020
3rd Quarter 06/05/2020

	Financial Reporting (quarterly statements to Council under section 138(1) of the Act comparing budgeted revenue and expenditure with actual revenue and expenditure)
	Quarterly statements presented to Council in accordance with section 138(1) of the Act     
	YES
	 1st Quarter 06/11/2019
2nd Quarter 05/02/2020
3rd Quarter 06/05/2020

	Risk Reporting (six-monthly reports of strategic risks to Council's operations, their likelihood and consequences of occurring and risk minimisation strategies) 
	Reports prepared and presented
	YES
	3/04/2019

	Performance Reporting (six-monthly reports of indicators measuring the results against financial and non-financial performance, including performance indicators referred to in section 131 of the Act)
	Reports prepared and presented
	YES
	4/09/2019

	Annual Report (annual report under sections 131, 132 and 133 of the Act to the community containing a report of operations and audited financial performance statements)
	Annual report considered at a meeting of Council in accordance with section 134 of the Act     
	YES
	2/10/2019

	Councillor Code of Conduct (Code under section 76C of the Act setting out the conduct principles and the dispute resolution processes to be followed by Councillors) 
	Code of conduct reviewed in accordance with section 76C of the Act
	YES
	8/02/2017

	Delegations (a document setting out the powers, duties and functions of Council and the Chief Executive Officer that have been delegated to members of staff) 
	Delegations reviewed in accordance with section 98(6) of the Act
	YES
	4/09/2019

	Meeting procedures (a local law governing the conduct of meetings of Council and special committees) 
	Meeting procedures local law made in accordance with section 91(1) of the Act     
	YES
	29/06/2016




	I certify that this information presents fairly the status of Council’s governance and management arrangements.



	
____________________________
Derek Madden
Chief Executive Officer
Dated: ______________
	
____________________________
Cr David Edwards
Mayor
Dated: _____________
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[bookmark: PDF2_ReportName_9628][bookmark: PDF3_Attachment_9628_1][bookmark: _Toc44507084]Attachment 1 – Summary of Outcomes of 2017-2021 Council Plan (2019 Review) 
[bookmark: _Toc44353473][bookmark: _Toc44507085]Strategic Objective 1: Providing Good Governance & Leadership
	[bookmark: _Toc44353405][bookmark: _Toc44353474]Strategic Context
	[bookmark: _Toc44353406][bookmark: _Toc44353475]Strategic Action
	[bookmark: _Toc44353407][bookmark: _Toc44353476]Outcome

	[bookmark: _Toc44320144][bookmark: _Toc44353483][bookmark: _Toc44507086]
1A Our Assets and Infrastructure
	Produce 10 Year Capital Improvement Programs
	Completed

	
	Deliver Annual Capital Improvement Programs
	Completed

	
	Develop and implement a Fleet & Plant Strategy
	In Progress (75%)
The Fleet and Plant Strategy is currently being updated with input from key user departments.  It is anticipated that the project will be endorsed by the end of November 2020 and will be incorporated into the 2020/21 Strategic Financial Plan.

	
	Finalise the Community Infrastructure Framework
	Completed

	
	Develop Infrastructure policies for nature strips
(Bores/ standpipes, graffiti, traffic calming and unmade road reserves completed)
	Completed

	[bookmark: _Toc44353485][bookmark: _Toc44507087]1B Our People

	Councillor Development – induction and ongoing professional development
	Completed

	
	Prepare an Organisational Development Strategy
	In progress (54%)
A framework has been developed for consultation.  
The framework includes strategies and plans for leadership development, employee engagement, integration of systems and process, future workforce planning including reward and recognition.  Stakeholder consultation has been conducted.


[bookmark: _Hlk44342933]

	

Strategic Context
	Strategic Action
	Outcome

	1B Our People
	Revise the Community Engagement Policy and Framework
	Deferred (65%)
The Engagement Policy and Framework will be revised and updated in 2020/2021 to reflect best practice and will reflect the changes per the updated Act.  The timeline for the reviewed policy and framework is per the requirements of the Act.


	
	Review the Customer Service Policy & Strategy
	Completed

	
	Develop and implement the action plan of the Customer Service Policy and Strategy
	In progress
(30%)
There is now a detailed action plan to support the new Customer Experience Strategy that has been developed in response to Action 1.2.5.2 (Review the Customer Service Policy & Strategy). 

A number of key action items aligned to the new Customer Experience Strategy have already been completed including the appointment of a Customer Experience and Innovation Manager, the establishment of a Customer Experience team, and a re‑aligned Customer Service Unit structure to better meet the needs of customers and the organisation. The remaining actions will be completed during the next financial year.

	
	Develop an OHS Strategy
	Completed

	
	Enhance OHS systems and procedures
	Completed

	
	Review identified corporate, strategic and operational risks
	Completed

	
	Implement child safety standards across the organisation
	Completed


[bookmark: _Toc44353486]

	

Strategic Context
	Strategic Action
	Outcome

	[bookmark: _Toc44507088]
1C Our Business and Systems


	Review the Local Law
	Completed

	
	Review the Municipal Planning Scheme
	In progress 
(80%)
The Moorabool Planning Scheme Review comprises of two stages. The first two stages (review and recommendations) will be delivered by a Consultant. Stage One draft report was presented to Council for input at the June 2019 Section 86 Moorabool Growth Management Committee. The consultant has commenced Stage Two which will include community consultation. The planning scheme review is currently on community consultation during June‑July 2020.


	
	Develop an Enforcement Policy
	In progress
(75%)
Internal consultation and a draft policy has been completed.  Due to the impacts of the COVID‑19 pandemic this project has been placed on hold and due to be completed by Dec 2020.

	
	Implement Phases 3 (GIS replacement) of the Digital Strategy
	Completed

	
	Develop Service Plans for all services
	Completed

	
	Undertake service reviews as determined by Council
	

	
	-	Governance
	Completed

	
	-	Visitor Information Centre
	Completed

	
	Align the finance system with service plans, systems views and ESC requirements
	Completed

	
	Annually review the Long-Term Financial Plan
	Completed

	
	Annually review the need to make a rate cap variation for 2020/21 year.
	Completed

	
	Identify and develop shared services with other LGs, community and private sector organisations
	Completed

	
	Seek funding for new, upgrade and renewed community facilities
	Completed


[bookmark: _Toc44320147][bookmark: _Toc44353487][bookmark: _Toc44507089][bookmark: _Hlk44332703]
Strategic Objective 2: Minimising Environmental Impact
	Strategic Context
	Strategic Action
	Outcome

	[bookmark: _Toc44320148][bookmark: _Toc44353497][bookmark: _Toc44507090]
2A Built Environment
	Develop the Gateway Strategy
	Completed

	
	Implement the Gordon Infrastructure Plan - Year 2 Progress
	Completed

	
	Incorporate flood mapping into the planning scheme (2017-2021) and prepare and exhibit Moorabool Planning Scheme Amendment (c91)
	In Progress (90%)
Amendment C91 seeks to introduce flood controls to the Moorabool Planning Scheme. Following the preparation of the flood study and mapping in conjunction with Melbourne Water, a report was presented to the Ordinary Meeting of Council in September 2019, where Councillors endorsed seeking authorisation from the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning (DELWP) and exhibiting the Amendment. Conditional authorisation was received from DELWP on 25 November 2019, to prepare and exhibit the amendment. On 13 February 2020, DELWP granted approval to commence exhibition.  Exhibition formally commenced on the 12 March 2020 for a period of 8 weeks.  Due to COVID‑19, Council has written to all affected parties, advising that the exhibition period will now be extended until 4 weeks after government restrictions are either removed or relaxed.  A further letter will be sent at a later date, to advise of the new closing date for submissions.

	
	Review and implement a Bacchus Marsh Avenue of Honour Management Plan
	Completed

	
	Implement an Energy Efficient Street Lighting Plan
	Completed

	[bookmark: _Toc44507091]2B Natural Environment
	Complete Bald Hill Activation Plan Feasibility Study
	Completed

	
	Finalise and Implement the action plan of the Moorabool Sustainable Environment Strategy
	Completed

	
	Develop an Open Space Integrated Water Management Plan
	Completed

	
	Develop and implement a policy on allocation, use and trading of water for Council water assets – Stage 1
	In progress (90%)
A policy has been developed, with internal engagement to be undertaken in July 2020, with the aim for it to be considered by the Executive Group.


[bookmark: _Toc44320150][bookmark: _Toc44353498][bookmark: _Toc44507092]

Strategic Objective 3: Stimulating Economic Development
	Strategic Context
	Strategic Action
	Outcome

	[bookmark: _Toc44507093]3A Land Use Planning
	Incorporate strategic documents into the Planning Scheme:
	

	
	-	Ballan Strategic documents
	Completed

	
	-	West Moorabool Heritage Study
	In progress
(45%)
The consultant undertaking the amendment has completed a review of West Moorabool Heritage Study 2a to ensure the study is consistent with the Planning Practice Note 1: Applying the Heritage Overlay. As a result of this review, a number of changes are required to the statements of significance and heritage curtilages to ensure consistency with the practice note. A consultant was engaged to undertake these changes and progress the planning scheme amendment. The consultant has completed all ground truthing.

	
	Develop a program for services and utilities in small towns

	In progress
(50%)
Structure planning is required to assist in determining the likely future population of these small towns and to plan for the provision of infrastructure in conjunction with the water authorities, state government and the community. Officers have had discussions with Central Highlands Water and is developing a program for the delivery of infrastructure to the towns. 
An advocacy item was prepared and discussions initiated with RDV and other key stakeholders to source funding and support in providing water and sewerage. The next step is to develop a growth scenario (framework plan) and formalise the MOU. In preparation of a framework plan the following documentation and background studies were reviewed, services analysis report, options report, and flood study. These will inform the framework plan and the update the MOU and a project plan was developed. A briefing note outlining the key issues and next steps will be presented to the Executive Group in July.

	
Strategic Context
	Strategic Action
	Outcome

	
	Develop a long-term strategy for the Bacchus Marsh Civic Precinct
	In Progress
(60%)
Council has completed a high-level strategic analysis and urban design investigation of the Bacchus Marsh main street.  Identification of a consolidated land area is to be investigated as a future civic precinct.  An advocacy item has been developed to source funding and promote the establishment of a civic precinct. Grant funding is also being sought. 


	
	Review future opportunities for the Darley Civic Precinct
	Completed

	[bookmark: _Toc44507094]
3B Investment and Employment
	Implement the action plan of the Economic Development Strategy
	Completed

	
	Facilitate the Parwan Employment Precinct planning and marketing
	In progress
(60%)
Council was successful in obtaining funding from the Victorian Planning Authority under Streamlining for Growth.  This funding will assist with final background studies and further work on a Precinct Structure Plan.  
Council Officers are undertaking investigations of stakeholder engagement of existing and potential businesses in the Parwan Employment Precinct (PEP) with the aim to facilitate economic investment, expansion of current businesses and to inform future planning studies.  

Meeting held with the Victorian Planning Association (VPA), Invest Victoria, and Regional Development Victoria (RDV) to strategically plan for the purpose and identification of the Parwan Employment Precinct.  This resulted in a vision statement for the Agri Business Precinct, a workshop is planned with Councillors in early 2020 to further enhance this vision. Invest Victoria, in conjunction with Council is preparing a funding proposal under the Federal Government City Deals initiative. 

Council is also working closely with Invest Victoria and service providers to secure the upgrade/provision of key infrastructure to facilitate catalyst projects. Next step is to develop a marketing strategy targeted at Agri Business investors. This is currently being prepared.

Project initiated to understand the needs of the PEP and from there identify the potential investors and what an appropriate brand may be. The project commenced in May.  This action will carry into the next financial year.

	
	Construct the Ballan Depot (Stage 1 completed, Stage 1B to be completed 2020-2021)
	Completed

	
	Advocate, resource and implement the Bacchus Marsh Integrated Transport Strategy action plans
	Completed

	
	Advocate for improved Ballarat Rail Line and integrated public transport outcomes
	Completed


[bookmark: _Toc44320153][bookmark: _Toc44353508][bookmark: _Toc44507095]


Strategic Objective 4: Improving Social Outcome
	Strategic Context
	Strategic Action
	Outcome

	[bookmark: _Toc44353518][bookmark: _Toc44507096][bookmark: _Toc44320154]4A Health and Wellbeing


	Prepare and implement an advocacy and partnership plan to attract investment in government and non- government services in the municipality
	Completed

	
	Facilitate and support existing and emerging arts and cultural development groups and activities across the municipality
	Completed

	
	Plan and design the proposed West Maddingley Community Facility
	Completed

	
	Implement the Reserve Management Framework
	Completed

	
	Design indoor courts in Bacchus Marsh
	Completed

	
	Prepare and revise a rolling cycle of Reserve Master Plans 
	Completed

	
	Construct stage 1 of the Bacchus Marsh Racecourse Recreation Reserve
	Completed

	
	Finalise Open Space Framework including beautification and irrigation of neighbourhood parks 
	Completed

	
	Undertake a Master Plan including concept and cost plan for Rotary Park including the Andy Arnold Facility
	In progress (40%)
This is a multi year project that has been delayed due to COVID19. The project is currently in its infancy.  Council officers have completed a project plan and community engagement plans. Initial meeting on the project with internal stakeholders has occurred and this identified relevant internal and external stakeholders.  This project will run over the 19‑20 and 20‑21 financial years and is to be completed by December 2020.


	

	Advocate and support the development of programs and services to increase employment opportunities for young people
	Completed

	[bookmark: _Toc44507097]4B Community Connectedness and Capacity
	Deliver community emergency management education program
	In progress
(91%)
Fire prevention inspections are occurring and a social media campaign to educate and advise the community.  Lal Lal was successful for a Safer Together Program for the 2019/2020 year with agency and council involvement as required.  Assisted DELWP to provide community education and liaison for planned burning prior to summer season. A social media campaign on home safety, insurance campaigns and house fire incidents was undertaken.  Emergency Service Agencies and Council are developing a Search and Rescue Plan for the Werribee Gorge and Lerderderg State Park and then an education program will follow.   Blackwood Community Fire Refuge Open Night and Bushfire Planning Scenario Workshop was held in November.  Submitted a grant application for a Bushfire Mitigation Education and Engagement Officer.  Key engagement with community currently occurring due to COVID‑19, newsletters for older residents, key messaging from government agencies being used. 

Ongoing liaison with all community agencies to ensure messaging and information on relief provisions being provided. Initial COVID‑19 Relief and Recovery Committee Meeting held.
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[bookmark: PDF3_Attachment_9593_2]LANDSCAPE DESIGN MANUAL – CONSULTATION FEEDBACK
*NOTE: Some multi-issue comments have been broken into their individual issues/comments for ease of response. 
	Comment No.
	Comment
	Action

	1
	Does this manual align with the Moorabool Shire Sustainable Environment Strategy 2016 - 26?
	The LDM has been developed to ensure that the built form that is delivered in new developments and by Council are constructed and delivered to the highest possible consistent standards. It does not consider the type and or source of materials used.

The environmental considerations of the materials utilised in the public realm will be reviewed in the development of the specific design guideline and design suite documentation that will be undertaken after Council has considered the LDM. 

Additional opportunities to address these issues will be flagged as part of the Open Space Strategy and Waste & Resource Recovery Strategies which are due to be completed in 2020/21.


	2
	Could reference be made to landscape design with sustainability and maintenance in mind- i.e preferencing drought tolerant and native plants, such as included in Hume City Council/Greater Shepparton City Council Landscaping Guidelines
	While this falls outside the scope of the LDM, it is agreed that this has merit. 

Council has previously developed a Recommended Street Tree Planting List and is currently developing a supplementary document for gardens and landscaping to define recommended and supported species for open space and the public realm projects. It will likely have a large leaning to low water use and native species.


	3
	Could a list of native plants to Moorabool Shire be included, such as lists included in Casey and Hume City Council Landscaping Guidelines
	Plant lists, furniture suites etc are intended to be separate reference documents as they are likely to be needed to be updated somewhat regularly and remaining as separate documents will allow for more flexibility in this regard. 

See response to response #2

	4
	Document provides good over view on Council expectations on landscape design. It would be good to see more of an emphasis on the preferred use of native plants or sustainable landscape practices/design.
	See response to #2

	5
	There is also little to no consideration of waste management/minimization in the landscape design process. Waste streams should be minimized and the waste hierarchy implemented in the design and building of public landscapes for better environmental and social outcomes.
	Response is noted.  The Open Space Strategy and Waste & Resource Recovery Strategy which are due to be completed in 2020/21 will explore these opportunities further.


	6
	P5. The document states that it also applies to Shire owned and managed land, but its focus reads with a heavy emphasis on developers. While that emphasis on what developers can and can’t do is welcome, I wonder whether rules applying to Shire owned and managed land belong in the same document? Mashing them together leads to some significant confusions. Eg, there is no sensible discussion or guidelines about streetscape plantings.
	The LDM covers construction methodology and this should be aligned across developer and council delivered projects to ensure consistency across public open space assets. 

Design Guidelines in regard to aesthetics are not intended to be covered within the LDM. 

The LDM does not take the place of a design suite and or a design style guide but rather it guides material, installation and construction quality of individual finishes, objects and elements. 


	7
	At pp16-17 there is discussion about species selection and EVCs are specifically mentioned in relation to “revegetation”. This is a spurious distinction in my view and its all about revegetation as white people denuded the area in recent history. So, whether we are talking about revegetation on Shire lands or private lands, I don’t see the point in having separate rules and guidelines. Species selection should be heavily oriented to the prospective changes in climate – hotter, drier and longer periods of heat. We should be planting with a view to drought tolerance and provision of shade and not be so focused on autumn colour for example.
	The performance requirements of plants varies between revegetation of natural reserves (river corridors etc)  vs. urban public space. 

A good example may be certain gum species that are prone to limb drop are not suitable for a public, high use environment yet are an important part of the ecosystem in natural reserves.  

Also see comment to response #2

	8
	P11. The discussion about use of herbicides is woefully inadequate. Surely they should mention the need for extra care when using near waterways or in areas where runoff will end up in waterways? Apart from this I find the Shire’s blind acceptance of the safety of Roundup to be foolish and financially risky. With huge payouts happening in the US about users of Roundup and various lawsuits and class actions underway in Australia, Council is exposing themselves, officers, ratepayers and residents to unacceptable risks in my view. Attempting to hide behind the façade of the chemical being currently registered for use in Victoria wont wash when cases get to court.
	The comment relating to the issues relating to the use of herbicides is noted. 

Section 3.5.1 Relates to overall site preparation and aims to ensure that Council is receiving sites that are free of weeds (environmental and noxious), to increase the success of landscaping projects and reduce the on-going maintenance of sites due to poor site preparation. If sites are being prepared as per the specifications, it is expected that the use of herbicides in landscaped areas will be greatly reduced. 


 

	9
	I note there is no mention of the Street Tree Strategy. This seems a significant omission?
	Noted. The street tree strategy and street tree species guides have been included in the reference document section (introduction 1.0).

	10
	Is there scope in this process to define what may be done in the Main Street of Bacchus Marsh for several (say 3 or 4) interpretive history boards, in the same style as those already in place at the Court  House, Church Street open space, the Blacksmith Forge & Cottage and others at Holy Trinity, St Andrews and old Express Office.
	The LDM is a technical reference document aimed at construction methodology and interpretation signage is outside of its scope. 

This comment has been forwarded to our Heritage Officer within the Strategic Planning team to be considered in their future work. 

	11
	I think the manual looks comprehensive and the use of native species is covered.  My comment is that the use of indigenous natives species should be further encouraged, not just high, medium and small native trees but high, mid and low level native plants, and ground level native species.  There are many lovely plants to choose from. In some areas the use of non-indigenous species may also be appropriate. The use of exotic plant species should be discouraged on all public land including road reserves, in new housing estates and in other developments including on industrial land.  An education package and native species brochures should be provided to all developers and with all permits issued that require landscaping.  The Council should promote a native vegetation policy in the Shire. This can also be linked to the Gardens for Wildlife program, local Landcare group's activities and other authority programs such as Melbourne Water's waterway programs.  Local nurseries should be included in the program so they can advise customers on appropriate native species for landscaping.
	See comment to response #2
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Note 8 Managing uncert: (Cont.)

8.6 Impact of COVID-19 pandemic on Moorabool Shire Council operations and 2019-20 financial report

0On 30 January 2020, COVID-19 was declared as a global pandemic by the World Health Organisation. Since
then, various measures have been taken by all three levels of Government in Australia to reduce the potential
spread. This crisis, and measures taken to mitigate it, has impacted operations in the following areas for the
financial year ended 30 June 2020 and still posed uncertainty after balance date:

- Inresponse to decreases in demand and various Government directives amidst the COVID-19 outbreak, all
leisure centres, libraries and community centres were closed. These closures resulted in a decrease in Council
user fee revenue by $60,312 including annual fees waived for sporting groups who occupy council reserves
etc., and also decreased associated expenses by $36,799.

- Moorabool Shire Council paused all commercial rent agreements from March 2020 to December 2020. This
resulted in a decrease in rent revenue by $7,367.

- The financial impact to date from the deferral of rate revenue and the interest free period is $70,768. This has
also resulted in the debtor balance as at 30 June 2020 to increase by $513,653 compared to last year.

- Various other Council operations were impacted by the outbreak of COVID-19. This has resulted in an overall
increase in expenses by $248,708. This mainly relates to cleaning costs, advertising, signage, and equipment
hire

- No material impact on the valuation of Council’s land, building and infrastructure assets.

In Adopted 2020/21 Council Budget, Council has committed to allocating an amount at least equivalent to the
revenue generated from a 2.00% rate increase in 2020/21 Budget to help those in the community most
impacted by the effects of the COVID-19 Pandemic.
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Note 9 Other matters

Balance at Balance at end
beginning of  Increment of reporting
9.1 Reserves reporting period (decrement) period
(a) Asset revaluation reserves $'000 $'000 $'000
2020
Property
Land 26,482 - 26482
Land under roads 447 - 447
Buildings 603 - 603
27,531 - 27,531
Infrastructure
Roads 278,766 - 278,766
Bridges 18,063 - 18,063
Drainage 43,865 - 43865
Recreation, leisure and community facilities 7,234 - 7234
Kerb & channel 2,79 - 2791
350,718 - 350,718
Total Asset revaluation reserves 378,249 - 378,249
2019
Property
Land 26,482 - 26482
Land under roads 447 - 447
Buildings 603 - 603
27,531 - 27,531
Infrastructure
Roads 239,955 38,810 278,766
Bridges 18,063 - 18,063
Drainage 27,483 16,382 43865
Recreation, leisure and community facilities 5,065 2,169 7234
Kerb & channel 62 2,730 2791
290,627 60,091 350,718
Total Asset revaluation reserves 318,159 60,091 378,249

The asset revaluation reserve is used to record the increased (net) value of Council's assets over time.
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Note 9 Other matters (Cont.)

Balance at Transfer from  Transfer to Balance at
beginning of accumulated accumulated end of reporting

reporting period surplus surplus period
(b) Other reserves §$'000 §$'000 §$'000 §$'000

2020

Car park reserve 93 - (53) 40
Recreation facilities 583 269 (248) 605
Industrial estate 1,631 - - 1,631
Storm water management 73 - - 73
Closed landfill 818 100 (94) 823
Defined benefits 392 78 - 469
Community seed funding 339 78 (137) 280
Capital works contributions reserve 14 - - 14
Developer contribution reserve 880 5,144 (5,269) 755
LGFV Loan repayment reserve 5,902 3,269 - 9171
Maddingley brown coal reserve 66 73 - 139
Wind farm dilapidation deeds reserve I 304 (71) 304
Total statutory and other reserves 10,861 9,315 (5,872) 14,305
2019

Car park reserve 78 15 - 93
Recreation facilities 818 136 (371) 583
Industrial estate 1,631 - - 1,631
Social infrastructure reserve 6 - (6) -
Storm water management 73 - - 73
Closed landfill 817 100 (99) 818
Defined benefits 318 73 - 392
Community seed funding 210 73 (4) 339
Capital works contributions reserve 14 - - 14
Developer contribution reserve 880 4,101 (4,101) 880
LGFV Loan repayment reserve 3,342 2,560 - 5,902
Maddingley brown coal reserve - 66 - 66
Wind farm dilapidation deeds reserve 96 (25) 71

Total statutory and other reserves 8,246 7,220 (4,606) 10,861
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Note 9 Other matters (Cont.)

Car park reserve

The purpose of this reserve is to provide improved parking facilities in urban areas.

Recreation facilities reserve

The purpose of this reserve is to provide funding for recreational facilities. Funded from developer contributions
this reserve requires that recreation facilities be established within the proximity of the relevant new subdivision

Industrial estate reserve

The purpose of this reserve is to fund future opportunities for industrial subdivision or economic development
activity of a capital nature in and around Bacchus Marsh. This reserve is funded from the net proceeds of land
sold in the Council developed Industrial Estate (the final parcel of land sold was in the 2013/14 financial year).

Social Infrastructure reserve
The purpose of this reserve is to provide funding for increased social infrastructure requirements arising out of
new subdivisions and developments and is funded by a levy on developers.

Storm water management reserve
The purpose of this reserve is to provide funding for future storm water management works which will be
required for future subdivisions at the western end of Holts Lane in Darley.

Closed landfill reserve

The purpose of this reserve is to provide funding for future site remediation works related to closed landfills
within Moorabool Shire

Defined benefits reserve

The purpose of this reserve is to provide funding for future liability calls related to the Defined Benefits
Superannuation scheme.

Community seed funding reserve
The purpose of this reserve is to provide a funding platform for the planning and advancement of future capital
works projects.

Capital works contributions reserve
The purpose of this reserve is to provide funding for future capital works, such as road works, associated with
specific developments funded by contributions from the developer.

Developer contribution reserve
The purpose of this reserve is to provide funding for various agreed infrastructure requirements arising from
new developments and is funded from developer contributions.

Local Government Funding Vehicle (LGFV) loan repayment reserve
The purpose of this reserve is to provide funding for the repayment of the principal component of loans held
through the LGFV. These loans are interest only until maturity.

Maddingley brown coal reserve
The purpose of this reserve is to provide funding for the maintenance of the local road network between the
Maddingley Brown Coal site and the Westem Freeway, Bacchus Marsh!

Wind farm dilapidation deeds reserve
The purpose of this reserve is to provide for remediation works for Council assets that have had accelerated
deterioration in their condition as a result of construction activity at Wind Farms.
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Note 9 Other matters (Cont.)

9.2 Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to surplus/(deficit)

2020

$'000
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 21,403
Depreciation/amortisation 10,595
Loss on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 858
Contributions - non-monetary assets (11,924)
Finance costs-leases 50
Interest expense - borrowing cost 511
Change in assets and liabilties:
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (208)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments. (149)
(Increase)/decrease in accrued income (736)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables (1,445)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 1
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 302
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 19,257

9.3 Superannuation

2019
$'000
22,066
9,109
952
(10.443)

583

(1.247)
(30)
(124)
1411
(12)
337
22,591

Council makes the majority of its employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to the
Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (the Fund). This Fund has two categories of membership, accumulation
and defined benefit, each of which is funded differently. Obligations for contributions to the Fund are

recognised as an expense in the Comprehensive Income Statement when they are made or due.

Accumulation

The Fund's accumulation categories, Vision MySuper/Vision Super Saver, receive both employer and
employee confributions on a progressive basis. Employer contributions are normally based on a fixed
percentage of employee eamings (for the year ended 30 June 2020, this was 9.5% as required under

Superannuation Guarantee legislation).
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Defined Benefit

Council does not use defined benefit accounting for its defined benefit obligations under the Fund's Defined
Benefit category. This is because the Fund's Defined Benefit category is a pooled multi-employer sponsored
plan

There is no proportional split of the defined benefit liabilities, assets or costs between the participating
employers as the defined benefit obligation is a floating obligation between the participating employers and the
only time that the aggregate obligation is allocated to specific employers is when a call is made. As a result,
the level of participation of Council in the Fund cannot be measured as a percentage compared with other
participating employers. Therefore, the Fund Actuary is unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets and costs
between employers for the purposes of AASB 119.

Funding arrangements
Council makes employer contributions to the Defined Benefit category of the Fund at rates determined by the
Trustee on the advice of the Fund Actuary.

A friennial actuarial review is currently underway for the Defined Benefit category as at 30 June 2020 and is
expected to be completed by 31 December 2020

A review of the financial and demographic assumptions used in the investigation has been completed as at the
30 June 2020. The vested benefit index (VBI) of the Defined Benefit category of which Council is a contributing
employer was 104.6%. To determine the VBI, the fund Actuary used the following long-term assumptions:

Net investment returns 6.0% pa
Salary information 3.5% pa
Price inflation (CPI) 1.20% pa.

Vision Super has advised that the estimated VBI at 31 March 2020 was 102.1%. The VBl is to be used as the
primary funding indicator. Because the VBI was above 100%, the 30 June 2019 actuarial investigation
determined the Defined Benefit category was in a satisfactory financial position and that no change was
necessary to the Defined Benefit category’s funding arrangements from prior years.

Employer contributions

Regular contributions

On the basis of the results of the 2017 full actuarial investigation conducted by the Fund Actuary, Council
makes employer contributions to the Fund's Defined Benefit category at rates determined by the Fund's
Trustee. For the year ended 30 June 2020, this rate was 9.5% of members' salaries (9.5% in 2018/2019). This
rate is expected to increase in line with any increases in the SG contribution rate and reviewed as part of the 30
June 2020 friennial valuation. In addition, Council reimburses the Fund to cover the excess of the benefits paid
as a consequence of retrenchment above the funded resignation or retirement benefit.
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Funding calls

If the Defined Benefit category is in an unsatisfactory financial position at an actuarial investigation or the
Defined Benefit category's VBI is below its shortfall limit at any time other than the date of the actuarial
investigation, the Defined Benefit category has a shortfall for the purposes of SPS 160 and the Fund is required
to put a plan in place so that the shortfall is fully funded within three years of the shortfall occurring. The Fund
monitors its VBI on a quarterly basis and the Fund has set its shortfall limit at 97%.

In the event that the Fund Actuary determines that there is a shortfall based on the above requirement, the
Fund’s participating employers (including Council) are required to make an employer contribution to cover the
shortfall. Using the agreed methodology, the shortfall amount is apportioned between the participating
employers based on the pre-1 July 1993 and post-30 June 1993 service liabilities of the Fund's Defined Benefit
category, together with the employer's payroll at 30 June 1993 and at the date the shortfall has been
calculated

Due to the nature of the contractual obligations between the participating employers and the Fund, and that the
Fund includes lifetime pensioners and their reversionary beneficiaries, it is unlikely that the Fund will be wound
up. If there is a surplus in the Fund, the surplus cannot be returned to the participating employers. In the event
that a participating employer is wound-up, the defined benefit obligations of that employer will be fransferred to
that employer’s successor.

2019 interim actuarial investigation surplus amounts
An actuarial investigation is conducted annually for the Defined Benefit category of which Council is a
contributing employer. Generally, a full actuarial investigation conducted every three years and interim actuarial
investigations are conducted for each intervening year. An interim investigation was conducted as at 30 June
2019 and the last full actuarial investigation was conducted as at 30 June 2017.The Fund's actuarial
investigations identified the following as at 30 June 2019:

AVBI surplus of $151.3 million; and
Atotal service liability surplus of $233.4 million
A discounted accrued benefits surplus of $266.7 million

The VBI surplus means that the market value of the fund's assets supporting the defined benefit obligations
exceed the vested benefits that the defined benefit members would have been entitled to if they had all exited
on 30 June 2020. The discounted accrued benefit surplus means that the curent value of the assets in the
Fund’s Defined Benefit category exceeds the value of benefits payable in the future but accrued in respect of
service to 30 June 2020. Council was notified of the 30 June 2020 VBI during August 2020,
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The 2020 triennial actuarial investigation
Atriennial actuarial investigation is being conducted for the Fund's position as at 30 June 2020. It is anficipated
that this actuarial investigation will be completed by 31 December 2020.

2020 2019
Scheme Type of Scheme Rate $,000 $,000
Vision super Defined benefit ~ 9.50% 51 62
Vision super Accumulation  9.50% 1,736 1568

There were $14,000 contributions outstanding and no loans issued from or to the above schemes as at 30
June 2020. The expected contributions to be paid to the Defined Benefit category of Vision Super for the year
ending 30 June 2021 are $36,000.
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Note 10 Change in accounting policy

(b)

Council has adopted AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, AASB 16 Leases and AASB 1058
Income of Not-for-Profit Entities, from 1 July 2019. This has resulted in changes in accounting policies and
adjustments to the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Due to the fransition methods chosen by Council in applying these standards, comparative information
throughout these financial statements has not been restated to reflect the requirements of the new standards
except in relation to contracts that were not complete at 1 July 2019. The transition impact of these are detailed
below.

a) AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers - Impact of Adoption

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers applies to revenue transactions where Council provides
services or goods under contractual arrangements.

Council adopted AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers using the modified (cumulative catch up)
method. Revenue for 2019 as reported under AASB 118 Revenue is not adjusted, because the new standard
is only applied from the date of initial application.

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers requires revenue from contracts with customers to be
recognised as Council satisfies the performance obligations under the contract.

AASB 16 Leases

AASB 16 Leases requires right of use assets and related liabilities for all lease agreements to be recognised on
the balance sheet. The Statement of Comprehensive Income is to separately recognise the amortisation of the
right of use asset, and the finance costs relating to the lease. Council has elected to adopt the modified
(cumulative catch up) method under the standard and as such has not adjusted 2019 disclosures. The
transition impact of these are detailed below.

AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities

AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities applies to income received where no contract is in place. This
includes statutory charges (such as rates) as well as most grant agreements.

Council adopted AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities using the modified (cumulative catch up) method
Income for 2019 is not adjusted, because the new standard is only applied from the date of initial application.
AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities requires income to be recognised as Council satisfies the
performance obligations under the contract.
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(d) Transition impacts

The following table summarises the impact of transition to the new standards on retained eamings at 1 July

2019.
2019
$'000
Retained earnings at 30 June 2019 180,888
Revenue adjustment - impact of AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers -
Income Adjustment - impact of AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities -
Retained earnings at 1 July 2019 180,888

Council adopted the practical expedient of deeming the lease asset to be equal in value to the lease liability at
1July 2019. As such there was no impact on retained eamings on the adoption of AASB 16 Leases.

There was no impacts of transition to the new standards on Council's balance sheet for the year ending 30

June 2019,

As reported 30 June 2019 Adjustments Post adoption
Assets 000 $000 $000
Right of use assets - - -
Grants receivable - - -
Liabilities - - B

Uneamed income - operating grants. - - -
Uneamed income - capital grants - - -
Lease liability - current - - -
Lease liability - non-current - - -
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Moorabool Shire s a fast growing semi-rural municipality nestled between Melbourne, Geelong and Ballarat. Moorabool’s eastern boundary is located just 40km west of
Melbourne’s CBD and extends westwards to the City of Ballarat municipal boundary. The Shire straddles Victoria’s Western Highway and has excellent transport access to
Melbourne, Ballarat and Geelong.

Spanning more than 2,110 square kilometres, Moorabool is made up of 64 localities, hamlets and towns. More than 74% of the Shire comprises of water catchments, state
forests and national parks.

The estimated resident population of Moorabool Shire in 2019/20 is 35,049. More than half the population lives in Bacchus Marsh and surrounds (18,835) (2016). The Shire’s
second largest population can be found in and around Ballan (2,985) (2016). The population is distributed throughout the large number of small towns, hamlets and farming
areas within the Shire.

The population of the Shire is forecast to increase by 81.34% between 2020 and 2041 to 63,838.

2019-20 Review

On 30 January 2020, COVID-19 was declared as a global pandemic by the World Health Organisation. Since then, various measures have been taken by all three levels of
Government in Australia to reduce the potential spread. This crisis, and measures taken to mitigate it, has impacted operations in the following areas for the financial year
ended 30 June 2020 and still posed uncertainty after balance date:

- Inresponse to decreases in demand and various Government directives amidst the COVID-19 outbreak, all libraries and community centres were closed. These closures
resulted in a decrease in Council user fee revenue by $60,312 and decreased associated expenses by $36,799. Moorabool’s outdoor aquatic centres are seasonal and
were not impacted by COVID-19 for the 2019/20 season.

- The financial impact to date from the deferral of rate revenue and the interest free period is $70,768. This has also resulted in the debtor balance as at 30 June 2020 to
increase by $513,653 compared to last year.

In the adopted 2020/21 Council Budget, Council has committed to allocating an amount at least equivalent to the revenue generated from a 2.00% rate increase in 2020/21
Budget to help those in the community most impacted by the effects of the COVID-19 Pandemic.
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Population

C1 | Expenses per head of municipal population $1,400.93 | $142325 | $1439.25 | $1,56347 | Theincreases in 2019/20 was mainly due to the
increases in depreciation expense resulting from
[Total expenses / Municipal population] the revaluation of assets in the prior year in
addition to one off expenses related to the
December 2018 flood event. Expenses per
property assessment are predicted to increase
over the next 4 years fuelled by rapid growth and
infrastructure investment. However, in
comparative terms, expenses per property
assessment are significantly lower in Moorabool
Shire than both the state average and that of
similar Councils. This reflects a high degree of
resource efficiency and responsible financial
stewardship over Council resources, but also
reflects the ongoing challenge that

Moorabool Shire faces in receiving its fair share
of recurrent funding from state and federal
governments. It is currently noted that
Moorabool Shire receives significantly less in
recurrent grants than the state average which in
turn, reduces the level of investment and
expenditure that Council can put back in the
community. As a result, Moorabool Shire is
compelled to manage its resources efficiently in
the face of these strategic challenges.

C2 | Infrastructure per head of municipal population $13,417.99 | $13,026.44 | $15,065.11 | $15,257.41 | The value of Infrastructure has increased due to
) o ) the revaluation of Roads, Drains and Footpaths in
[value of infrastructure / Municipal population] 2018/19. In addition to this, population growth

is fuelling community demand for infrastructure
investment. As a result, this ratio is projected to
steadily increase over time.
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C3 | Population density per length of road 2248 2334 2328 2434 State planning policy identifies Bacchus Marsh as
a peri-urban regional centre with potential for
significant growth. Bacchus Marsh’s population
is predicted to double by 2041. As a result, this
ratio is predicted to steadily increase over time.
Notwithstanding this, the population density per
length of road is significantly lower than the
state average and to a large degree reflects the
significant challenge faced by many rural
Councils in managing a large infrastructure base
over a large geographical area with the costs
borne by a comparatively smaller population
base.

[Municipal population / Kilometres of local roads]

Own-source revenue

C4 | Own-source revenue per head of municipal population $1,04259 | $1,17867 |$1,230.74 | $1,240.94 | Own source revenue per head of municipal
population has increased by 19.0% over the last
3 reporting years. Notwithstanding this,
Moorabool Shire generates significantly lower
levels of own source revenue per head of
municipal population than the Victorian average
and similar sized Councils. Own source revenue

[Own-source revenue / Municipal population]

can come in a variety of forms and can include
Council rates, user fees, statutory fees, fees from
significant Council businesses (caravan parks,
holiday parks, recreation facilities) and other
activities. It is noted that due to a number of
factors (for e.g. such as geographic factors and
low population density) Moorabool Shire does
not currently have the same capacity to generate
significant revenue from non rate revenue
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sources compared to other Victorian Councils.
As aresult, it has a low level of own source
revenue per head of municipal population as
compared to the Victorian average and similar
sized Councils. In other instances, where
Moorabool Shire has the potential to broaden its
revenue base it has been significantly restricted
by other legislation from doing so. The most
significant example of this has come about with
the construction of 3 new windfarms in
Moorabool Shire. In each instance, the revenue
payable to Moorabool Shire by the windfarms
will be governed by the Electricity Act 2000
which has the impact of significantly reducing the
revenue that would otherwise be payable to
Council.  For Moorabool Shire, the annual
revenue loss from windfarms due to the
Electricity Act is estimated to exceed $3.0m per
annum.

Recurrent grants

C5 | Recurrent grants per head of municipal population $44523 | $32996 | 530176 | $328.11 | Moorabool Shire receives significantly less grants
per head of municipal population than similar
[Recurrent grants / Municipal population] Councils and the Victorian average. To overcome
this structural disadvantage, Moorabool Shire
has a higher reliance on other sources of funding
such as loan borrowings as compared to other
Victorian Councils. According to the audited
results of the 2018/19 Local Government
performance reporting, Moorabool Shire
receives on average $4.74m less on an annual
basis compared to other Victorian Councils, and
$6.09m less annually than similar size Councils.

Disadvantage

c6 Relative Socio-Economic Disadvantage 7.00 7.00 7.00 7.00
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[Index of Relative Socio-Economic Disadvantage by decile]
Workforce turnover
€7 | Percentage of staff turnover 15.0% 12.9% 10.2% 12.4% There was a slightly higher level of staff turnover
in 2019/20 compared to 2018/19.

Sustainable Capacity Indicators — Definitions

djusted underlying revenue” means total income other than:

(a) non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and

(b) non-monetary asset contributions; and

(c) contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other than those referred to above

“Infrastructure” means non-current property, plant and equipment excluding land

"Local road" means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road authority under the Road Management Act 2004
"Population” means the resident population estimated by council

"Own-source revenue" means adjusted underlying revenue other than revenue that is not under the control of council (including government grants)
elative socio-economic disadvantage’

in relation to a municipality, means the relative socio-economic disadvantage, expressed as a decile for the relevant financial year, of the area in
which the municipality is located according to the Index of Relative Socio-Economic Disadvantage (Catalogue Number 2033.0.55.001) of SEIFA

"SEIFA" means the Socio-Economic Indexes for Areas published from time to time by the Australian Bureau of Statistics on its Internet website

"Unrestricted cash” means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash.




image72.png
2019-20 Performance Statement

Service Performance Indicators — for the year ended 30 June 2020

Aquatic Facilities

AF6 | Utilisation 026 0.26 030 0.20 Bacchus Marsh total entries: 4,912

Utilisation of aquatic facilities Ballan total entries: 1,939

[Number of visits to aquatic facilities / Municipal population] Total=6,851

The entry figures for the pools last season were
significantly lower this year however this can be
attributed to :

« Cooler days (closed or reduced hours more
than previous years)

« Smoke haze causing pools to close during the
2019/20 bushfires

« Storms occurring on days of high
temperature (pools either closed or low
patronage due to weather conditions)

Council's pools operate based upon a
temperature policy and due to a much cooler
summer season than previous years this resulted
in a higher number of pool closures. On the days
where the heat would have seen the pools open
to the community, Council was required to close
the pools to ensure the safety of our community
due to hazardous air quality that occurred during
the 2019/20 bushfires.

On the higher temperature days when the Shire
experienced storm events the pools were closed
for the safety of the community.
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Participation in the MCH service

Animal Management
AM7 | Health and safety Newin New in Newin 0% During the 2019-20 period no animal
2020 2020 2020 prosecutions were undertaken.
Animal management prosecutions
[Number of successful animal management prosecutions]
Food Safety
Fs4 | Health and safety 94.74% 100.00% | 100.00% | 100.00% | In recognition of the serious nature of all critical
and major non-compliances, Council ensures that
Critical and major non-compliance outcome notifications
all necessary follow up assessments are
[Number of critical non-compliance outcome notifications and major undertaken to ensure food safety standards are
non-compliance notifications about a food premises followed maintained.
up/Number of critical non-compliance outcome notifications and
major non-compliance notifications about a food premises] x 100
Governance
G5 | Satisfaction 29.00 51.00 29.00 47.00 Council is committed to considering the different
o o views and interests in the municipality to reach a
Satisfaction with council decisions majority position on what is in the best interests
[Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with how council has of the whole community, and how it can be
performed in making decisions in the interest of the community] achieved.
Libraries
B4 | Participation 9.18% 9.51% 9.64% 8.35% New library member numbers were tracking well
o . o until March 2020 when Council was affected by
Active library borrowers in municipality the restrictions applied due to the Coronavirus
[Number of active library borrowers in the last three years / The Global pandemic. As with every other aspect of
sum of the population for the last three years] x 100 the library service, new memberships declined
from mid-March.
Maternal and Child Health (MCH)
MC4 | Participation 77.28% 77.92% 76.17% 74.14% The impact of the Coronavirus COVID-19

Pandemic has seen lower participation in the
MCH service
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[Number of children who attend the MCH service at least once (in
the year)/Number of children enrolled in the MCH service] x 100

Kerbside collection waste diverted from landfill

[Weight of recyclables and green organics collected from kerbside
bins / Weight of garbage, recyclables and green organics collected
from kerbside bins] x 100

MCS | Participation 7179% | 8L97% | 90.24% | 7500% | The impact of the Coronavirus COVID-19
Pandemic has seen lower participation in the
Participation in the MCH service by Aboriginal children ;
MCH service
[Number of Aboriginal children who attend the MCH service at least
once (in the year)/Number of Aboriginal children enrolled in the MCH
service] x 100
Roads
RS | Satisfaction 43.00 46.00 48.00 42.00 The deterioration of the sealed road surface
o condition with age may have led to a drop of
Satisfaction with sealed local roads satisfaction. Council acted early in 2019-2020 to
[Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with how Council has inject additional funding for the road
performed on the condition of sealed local roads} maintenance program to address this matter.
Statutory Planning
SP4 | Decision making 3333% | 66.67% | 33.33% | 50.00% | Given the small number of applications
determined by VCAT, this percentage can see
Council planning decisions upheld at VCAT \ o
arge variations.
[Number of VCAT decisions that did not set aside Council’s decision in
relation to a planning application / Number of VCAT decisions in
relation to planning applications] x 100
Waste Collection
WC5 | Waste diversion 3691% | 37.56% | 38.49% | 38.38% | Thisresultis based on the assumption that all

kerbside recyclables were diverted from landfill
Due to the collapse of SKM Recycling, Council
had to send 1017.96 tonnes of kerbside
recyclables to landfill. This result does not take
these tonnages into consideration and Councils
diversion rate is lower than indicated on these
figures.
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Service Performance Indicators - Definitions

"Aboriginal child” means a child who is an Aboriginal person
"Aboriginal person” has the same meaning as in the Aboriginal Heritage Act 2006

ctive library member” means a member of a library who has borrowed a book from the library
nnual report” means an annual report prepared by a council under sections 131, 132 and 133 of the Act

“CALD” means culturally and linguistically diverse and refers to persons born outside Australia in a country whose national language is not English

“Class 1 food premises” means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984, that have been declared as class 1food premises under section 19C of that Act

“Class 2 food premises” means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984, that have been declared as class 2 food premises under section 19C of that Act

“Critical non-compliance outcome notification” means a notification received by council under section 19N(3) o (4) of the Food Act 1984 , or advice given to council by an authorised officer
under that Act, of a deficiency that poses an immediate serious threat to public health

"Food premises” has the same meaning as in the Food Act 1984

ocal road” means a sealed or unsealed road for which the council is the responsible road authority under the Road Management Act 2004

ajor non-compliance outcome notification” means a notification received by a council under section 19N(3) or (4) of the Food Act 1984, or advice given to council by an authorized officer
under that Act, of a deficiency that does not pose an immediate serious threat to public health but may do so if no remedial action s taken

CH" means the Maternal and Child Health Service provided by a council to support the health and development of children within the municipality from birth until school age
"Population” means the resident population estimated by council

"WorkSafe reportable aquatic facility safety incident” means an incident relating to a council aquatic facility that is required to be notified to the Victorian WorkCover Authority under Part 5
of the Occupational Health and Safety Act 2004.
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Financial Performance Indicators — for the year ended 30 June 2020

Effi

ncy

E2 | Expenditure level Expenses per property
assessment are predicted to
increase over the next 4 years
[Total expenses / Number of fuelled by rapid population

property assessments] and infrastructure
investment. In comparative

terms, expenses per property
assessment are significantly
lower in Moorabool Shire
than both the state average
and that of similar Councils.
This reflects a high degree of
resource efficiency and
responsible financial
stewardship over Council
resources, butalso reflects
the ongoing challenge that
Moorabool Shire faces in
receiving its fair share of
recurrent funding from state
and federal governments. It
is currently noted that
Moorabool Shire receives
significantly less in recurrent
grants than the state average
which in turn, reduces the
level of investment and
expenditure that Council can
putback in the community.

Expenses per property assessment | $2,798.23 | $2,867.61 | $2,876.48 |$3,105.22 |$3,117.25 |$3,062.61 | $3,149.53 | $3,221.89
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As a result, Moorabool Shire
is compelled to manage its
resources efficiently in the
face of these strategic

challenges.
E4 Revenue level New in New in New in $1,76345 | $1,791.03 |$1,839.78 | $1,885.19 | $1,930.12
2020 2020 2020

Average rate per property
assessment
[General rates and Municipal
charges / Number of property
assessments]

Liquidity

[EY Working capital 16358% | 192.64% | 226.49% | 277.07% | 15450% | 132.79% | 98.60% 94.22% The ratio was favourably
impacted by the receipt of

Current assets compared to current -

-urren significant levels of Developer
liabilities Contributions as compared to
[Current assets / Current liabilities] the 2018/19 year. In addition
X100 to this, Council had higher

cash levels due to capital

works being carried over to

the 2020/21 financial year.
12 Unrestricted cash 37.46% 76.70% 91.13% 2751% 84.81% 65.78% 40.35% 37.16% The improvement in this ratio

Unrestricted cash compared to
current liabilities

[Unrestricted cash / Current
liabilities] x100

over the last 4 financial years
is consistent with Councils
Strategic Financial Plan. In
2019/20 year, $10 million
term deposit over 3 months
were displayed in Other
Financial Asset section, which
wasn't used to calculate





image78.png
unrestricted cash. If this $10
million term deposit were
included in the cash and cash
equivalent, this ratio would
be 107.88%. The ratio is
predicted to reduce in the
medium term as Council
proposes to embark on
significant infrastructure
programs in the coming years.
Asa consequence of this,
Council will be utilising its
cash reserves and working
capital (in addition to
government grants and
borrowings) to accelerate the
provision of critical
infrastructure for a growing
‘community. Over the longer
term, this ratio is predicted to
improve.

Obligations

02

Loans and borrowings

Loans and borrowings compared to
rates

[Interest bearing loans and
borrowings / Rate revenue] x100

43.93%

37.85%

32.59%

50.90%

53.63%

56.37%

59.92%

59.90%

This ratio is impacted by the
take up of $8.608m in loan
borrowings for the 2019/20
financial year. The loans were
taken up as part of the
Community Sports
Infrastructure Loan Scheme at
a significantly discounted
interest rate.
Notwithstanding, the level of
loan borrowings s forecast to
increase in the medium term.
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In comparative terms,
Moorabool Shire has higher
loan borrowings than the
state average and that of
similar size Councils. This is
driven by a couple of factors.
Firstly, rapid population
growth is fuelling community
demand for investment in
infrastructure. In addition to
this, Moorabool Shire receives
significantly less in
government grants than other
Victorian Councils. As a
result, it has a higher reliance
on loan borrowings than most
other Victorian Councils.

03

Loans and borrowings repayments
compared to rates

[Interest and principal repayments
on interest bearing loans and
borrowings / Rate revenue] x100

7.17%

6.33%

4.99%

4.46%

5.17%

16.07%

5.98%

7.26%

This ratio was favourably
impacted by the timing of
loan borrowings taken up in
the 2019/20 financial year.
However, as noted previously,
this ratio is forecast to remain
high in the medium term. In
comparative terms, this ratio
is likely to be higher than the
state average in the future.
Moorabool Shire is compelled
to fund infrastructure growth
through loan borrowings in
lie of large-scale funding
support from state and
federal governments.
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04 | Indebtedness 37.68% 20.49% 25.72% 43.06% 35.29% 26.25% 47.81% 47.45% This ratio was unfavourably
impacted by the take up of
Non-current liabilities compared to $8.608m In loan borrowings
own source revenue for the 2019/20 financial year.
[Non-current liabilities / Own As noted previously, this ratio
Source revenue] x100 is forecast to remain high in
the medium term. In
comparative terms, this ratio
is likely to be higher than the
state average in the future.
Moorabool Shire is compelled
to fund infrastructure growth
through loan borrowings in
lieu of large-scale funding
support from state and
federal governments.
05 | Asset renewal and upgrade New in Newin New in 17384% | 220.76% | 177.85% | 14553% | 131.27% | The highresultisdue toa
2020 2020 2020 substantial Capital
Asset renewal and upgrade Improvement Program. The
p g
compared to depreciation outlook for asset renewal and
[Asset renewal and asset upgrade upgrade expenditure is strong
expense / Asset depreciation] x100 and is indicative of a robust
asset management plan and
an effective strategic financial
plan.
Operating position
OP1 | Adjusted underlying result 7.44% 6.37% 7.96% 0.92% 021% 289% 161% 120% Moorabool Shire is predicted

Adjusted underlying surplus (or
deficit)

to generate an underlying
surplus in future years but at
a lower level in comparison to
the last 3 reporting years.
Part of the reason is due to a
proposed increase in the
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[Adjusted underlying surplus
(deficit)/ Adjusted underlying
revenue] x 100

Capital improvement program
in the next 4 years in addition
to an increase is service
growth to meet the needs of
rapid population growth. In
addition to this, Moorabool
Shire receives lower levels of
grant funding that the state
average, whilst having to
service higher levels of debt in
comparative terms to other
Victorian Councils.

Stability

s1

Rates concentration

Rates compared to adjusted
underlying revenue

[Rate revenue / Adjusted
underlying revenue] x100

63.31%

63.71%

63.91%

66.13%

68.46%

69.25%

69.55%

69.55%

Moorabool Shire has a higher
level of reliance on rate
revenue than other Victorian
Councils. This is driven by
two main factors. Firstly, as
previously mentioned,
Moorabool Shire receives
significantly lower levels of
recurrent funding from state
and federal governments on
average compared to other
Victorian Councils. In
addition to this, factors such
as geographical size and low
population density
significantly limit its ability to
generate alternative income
streams outside of rates and
grants.
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s2 Rates effort 0.49% 0.50% 0.47% 0.42% 0.43% 0.44% 0.45% 0.46% The decline in this ratio is
attributed to significant
property price growth in the

Rates compared to property values

[Rate revenue / Capital improved municipality in the 2019/20
value of rateable properties in the financial year
municipality] x100

Financial Performance Indicators — Definitions

"Adjusted underlying revenue” means total income other than:
(a) non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and
(b) non-monetary asset contributions; and
(¢) contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other than those referred to above
"Adjusted underlying surplus (or deficit)" means adjusted underlying revenue less total expenditure
"Asset renewal expenditure” means expenditure on an existing asset or on replacing an existing asset that returns the service capability of the asset to its original capability
“Current assets” has the same meaning as in the AAS
"Current liabilities" has the same meaning as in the AAS
“Non-current assets” means all assets other than current assets
on-current liabil

es” means all liabilities other than current liabilities

“Non-recurrent grant” means a grant obtained on the condition that it be expended in a specified manner and is not expected to be received again during the period covered by a council's
Strategic Resource Plan

"Own-source revenue” means adjusted underlying revenue other than revenue that is not under the control of council (including government grants

"Population "means the resident population estimated by council

“Rate revenue” means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, service rates and service charges

"Recurrent grant "means a grant other than a non-recurrent grant

esidential rates” means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, service rates and service charges levied on residential properties

estricted cash” means cash and cash equivalents, within the meaning of the AAS, that are not available for use other than for a purpose for which it is restricted, and includes cash to be
used to fund capital works expenditure from the previous financial year
"Unrestricted cash” means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash.
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Other Information - Basis of preparation

Council is required to prepare and include a performance statement within its annual report. The performance statement includes the results of the prescribed sustainable capacity, service
performance and financial performance indicators and measures together with a description of the municipal district and an explanation of material variations in the results. This statement
has been prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 1989 and Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.

Where applicable the results in the performance statement have been prepared on accounting bases consistent with those reported in the Financial Statements. The other results are based
on information drawn from council information systems or from third parties (e.g. Australian Bureau of Statistics).

The performance statement presents the actual results for the current year and for the prescribed financial performance indicators and measures, the results forecast by the council's
strategic resource plan. The Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 requires explanation of any material variations in the results contained in the performance
statement. Council has adopted materiality thresholds relevant to each indicator and measure and explanations have not been provided for variations below the materiality thresholds
unless the variance is considered to be material because of its nature.

The forecast figures included in the performance statement are those adopted by Council in its Strategic Resource Plan on 15 July 2020 and which forms part of the Council Plan. The
Strategic Resource Plan includes estimates based on key assumptions about the future that were relevant at the time of adoption and aimed at achieving sustainability over the long term.
Detailed information on the actual financial results is contained in the General Purpose Financial Statements. The Strategic Resource Plan can be obtained by contacting Council.
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Retired — for the year ended 30 June 2020

The following indicators were retired in 2020:

Animal Management

AM4

Animal management prosecutions

[Number of successful animal
management prosecutions]

2.00

0.00

0.00

Retired in 2020

This measure was replaced
by AM7 from 1 July 2019,

Efficiency

E1

Revenue level

Average residential rate per residential
property assessment

[Residential rate revenue / Number of
residential property assessments]

$1,512.85

$1,543.84

$1,580.05

Retired in 2020

This measure was replaced
by E4 from 1July 2019.

Obligations

o1

Asset renewal
Asset renewal compared to depreciation

[Asset renewal expense / Asset
depreciation] x100

104.74%

90.25%

124.41%

Retired in 2020

This measure was replaced
by 05 in 1 July 2019.
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Certification of the performance statement

In my opinion, the accompanying performance statement has been prepared in accordance with the Local Government Act 1989
and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.

Steven Ivelja CPA
Principal Accounting Officer
Dated: 02 September 2020

In our opinion, the accompanying performance statement of the (council name) for the year ended 30 June 2020 presents fairly
the results of council’s performance in accordance with the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and
Reporting) Regulations 2014.

The performance statement contains the relevant performance indicators, measures and results in relation to service
performance, financial performance and sustainable capacity.

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render any particulars in the performance statement
to be misleading or inaccurate.

We have been authorised by the Council and by the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 to certify this
performance statement in its final form.

Cr. Tonia Dudzik
Councillor
Dated: 02 September 2020

cr. John Keogh
Councillor
Dated: 02 September 2020

Derek Madden
Chief Executive Officer
Dated: 02 September 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Attachment 2

Moorabool Shire Council

PREMIUM Action and Task Progress Report
July 2019 - June 2020

Report Filters

Date From :01-07-2019
Date To :30-06-2020
Display Task : No

Action Filter :Council Plan

i Dinterplan

J
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Moorabool Shire Council Action & Task Progress Report

Action Status Action Progress Against Targets

@OfiTrack  7.0%
 Montor 8%
@onTrack  842%
No Taget _00%
Toak  100.0%

57 Actions reported on
48 Atleast 90% of action target achieved
5 Between 60and 90% of action target achieved
4 Less than 60% of action target achieved
0 Actions with no target set

Key Result Area: 1 Providing Good Governance and Leadership
Objective: 1.1 (1A) Our Assets and Infrastructure

STRATEGY: 1.1.4 Produce 10 Year Capital Improvement Programs

Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

Lace Daniel - Coordinator Completed 1007/2019 | 300062020 | 100% | 100%
Asset Management

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual

Recurrent

Action
1.1.4.1 Produce 10 Year Capital Improvement Programs
(2017-2021) - Year 3 Progress

YTD Variance

Asset Management

Action Progress Comments
/Afinancial allocation for each component of the annual Capital Improvement Program for the next ten years is provided within Council's Strategic Financial Plan. The 2020/21 draft
Capital Improvement Program, including a five year forecast, was presented to Council in March 2020. Community consultation was completed as part of the annual budget process

Last Updated - 27/07/2020

July 29, 2020 Q‘) Page 2 of 29
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Moorabool Shire Council Action & Task Progress Report

STRATEGY: 1.1.5 Deliver Annual Capital Improvement Programs

Action Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

Martin Ferguson - Capital Completed 1/07/2019 30/06/2020 100% 100%
Works Coordinator

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual
Recurrent

1.1.5.1 Deliver Annual Capital Improvement Programs
(2017-2021) - Year 3 Progress

YTD Variance

Capital Works

Action Progress Comments
The Capital Improvement Program for 2019/20 consists of 62 Projects and is currently on schedule

New Projects are added during the year. Currently there are 2 new Projects.

The Capital Improvement Program progress is reported quarterly to Council and provides details on each individual project.
Last Updated - 25/06/2020

STRATEGY: 1.1.6 Develop and implement a Fleet and Plant Strategy

Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

1.1.6.1 Develop and implement a Fleet and Plant Strategy Steven Ivelja - Chief Financial 1/07/2019 30/06/2020 100%
Officer

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual YTD Variance
Fleet Management Recurrent‘One Off ltem

Action Progress Comments
The Fleet and Plant Strategy is currently being updated with input from key user departments. It is anticipated that the project will be endorsed by the end of November 2020 and will
be incorporated into the 2020/21 Strategic Financial Plan.

Last Updated - 27/07/2020

STRATEGY: 1.1.7 Finalise the Community Infrastructure Framework
Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

1.1.7.1 Finalise the Community Infrastructure Framework Sarah Kernohan - Strategic Completed 2/0772018 | 610312020 100% | 100%
Planning Coordinator

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual YTD Variance

Strategic Planning Recurrent

Action Progress Comments
Community consuttation was held from 24 September 2019 - 25 October 2019. The Community Infrastructure Planning Process was adopted by Council on the 5 February 2020.
Last Updated - 27/07/2020

July 29, 2020 @ Page 3 of 29
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Moorabool Shire Council

STRATEGY:

Action

1.1.9.3 Develop Infrastructure Policy for Bores/Standpipes

Asset Management

1.1.9 Develop Infrastructure Policy

Action Progress Comments

Budget Type
Recurrent

Action Status

Budget

Start Date End Date

YTD Budget

Action & Task Progress Report

% Comp. Target

Mick Gorfine - Coordinator - Completed 10012020 | 300062020 | 100% | 100%
Building Assets

YTD Actual

% OnTarget

YTD Variance

Report presented to the June 2020 Ordinary Meeting of Council for consideration. Formally adopted in July 2020
Last Updated - 27/07/2020

July 29, 2020

Qﬁ

Page 4 of 29
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Moorabool Shire Council Action & Task Progress Report

Objective: 1.2 (1B) Our People

STRATEGY: 1.2.1 Councillor Development

Action Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

Derek Madden - Chief pl Jo 100%
Executive Officer

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual

1.2.1.1 Councillor Development — induction and ongoing
professional development (2017-2021) - Year 3 Progress

YTD Variance

CEO's Office Recurrent

Action Progress Comments
Ongoing support and training opportunities are available to Councillors as required. Council passed a resolution at the Ordinary Meeting of Council on 5 September 2017 in relation to
this issue

Last Updated - 12/07/2019

Action Action Status Start Date End Date % OnTarget

Karen Jansen - Execuive In Progress 1/07/2018 | 30/06/2020 54% 50%
Manager - People and Culture

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual
Recurrent

% Comp. Target

1.2.2.10 Prepare an Organisational Development Strategy

YTD Variance

Business Improvement

Action Progress Comments

Aframework has been developed for consultation. The framework includes strategies and plans for leadership development, employee engagement, integration of systems and
process, future workforce planning including reward and recognition.Stakeholder consulation has been conducted

Last Updated - 27/07/2020

Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

1.2.31 Revise the Community Engagement Policy and Christopher Gardner - Manager Deferred 1/01/2019 30/06/2020 65% 100%
Framework Connected Communities

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual YTD Variance

Recreation and Development Recurrent

Action Progress Comments
The Engagement Policy and Framework will be revised and updated in 20202021 to reflect best practice and will reflect the changes per the updated Act. The timeline for the
reviewed policy and framework is per the requirements of the Act

Last Updated - 29/07/2020

July 29, 2020 @ Page 5 of 29
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Moorabool Shire Council Action & Task Progress Report
Action Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

Mike Whittaker - Manager omplet b | 100%
Customer Experience and
Innovation

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual
Recurrent

1.2.5.2 Review the Customer Service Policy & Strategy

YTD Variance

Customer Service

Action Progress Comments

Areview of both the Customer Service operations and the experience of customers across a wide range of Coundil services has now been completed . The insights gained through
this review have been incorporated into a Customer Experience Strategy and associated Action Plan for the next 12 months which will be presented to Councilin July.

Last Updated - 26/06/2020

Action Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target

Mike Whittaker - Manager In Progress 10032020 | 30/06/2020 0% | 100%
Customer Experience and
Innovation

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual
Recurrent

% OnTarget

1.2.5.5 Develop and implement the Action Plan of the
Customer Service Policy and Strategy

YTD Variance

Customer Service

Action Progress Comments
There is now a detailed action plan to support the new Customer Experience Strategy that has been developed in response to Action 1.2.5.2 (Review the Customer Service Policy &
Strategy)

A number of key action items aligned to the new Customer Experience Strategy have already been completed including the appointment of a Customer Experience and Innovation
Manager, the establishment of a Customer Experience team, and a re-aligned Customer Service Unit structure to better meet the needs of customers and the organisation. The
remaining actions will be completed during the next financial year

Last Updated - 26/06/2020

STRATEGY: 1.2.6 Risk and OHS Management
Action Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

1.2.6.1 Develop an OHS Strategy ‘Yvonne Hansen - Manager Completed 10712017 31/10/2019 100% 0%
Governance and Risk

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual
Recurrent

YTD Variance

Risk Management & OHS

Action Progress Comments
Occupational Health and Safety Strategy adopted by the Executive Team on 29 October 2019
Last Updated - 15/11/2019

July 29, 2020 @ Page 6 of 29
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Moorabool Shire Council Action & Task Progress Report
Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

1.2.6.2 Enhance our OHS systems and procedures for the ‘Yvonne Hansen - Manager omplet b | 100%
organisation (2017-2021) - Year 3 Progress Governance and Risk

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual YTD Variance
Risk Management & OHS Recurrent

Action Progress Comments
Akey pillar of the OHS Strategy focuses on OHS Framework and Management Systems to ensure Council has a fit for purpose OHS Management system that meets the
requirements of AS/NZS 48042001

Council has established a new OHS Committee, together with the adoption of a OHS Comittee Terms of Reference and appointments of Management Representatives and Health
and Safety Representatives

Areview of 16 Whole of Council ‘High Risk OHS Procedures has been completed together with the development of templates for the purposes of document consistency and
branding. All 16 procedures are periodically being presented to the Executive Team for adoption

ARisk Based Incident System (CAMMS) was implemented in the second quarter of 2019/20. This new module captures and provides a structure for recording and actioning
incidents/ hazards and near misses. Training on the new incident system has been implemented. To compliment the training in the incident system, a program called WhatFix is being
applied to further enhance the efficiency of the system for all users

AHealth and Wellbeing Calendar has been developed to promote health and safety events across the organisation

An OHS Climate survey was undertaken to establish employee satisfaction of OHS systems/management
Last Updated - 29/06/2020
Action Action Status StartDate  EndDate % Comp. Target % OnTarget

‘Yvonne Hansen - Manager Completed 1/07/2018 28/11/2019 100% 100%
Governance and Risk

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual
Recurrent

1.2.6.3 Review idenified corporate, strategic and operational
risks (2017-2021) - Year 3 Progress

YTD Variance

Risk Management & OHS

Action Progress Comments

Council's risks are identified at three levels - Strategic, Operational and Corporate risks.
These Risk Registers are updated in CAMMS and accessible through CAMMS Risk.

Strategic Risk Register includes the risks at the strategic level that may hinder achievement of the current Council Plan actions
Operational Risk Register includes all isks, applicable to a particular Service Unit, identified by the respective Service Unit Manager or Executive Team as and when a risk emerges
Corporate Risk Register includes the risks applicable to more than one service unit. Examples of corporate risks are: risks of working in isolation, breach of privacy policy etc.

/Additional Controls are put in place if necessary to mitigate the risks
Last Updated - 03/03/2020

July 29, 2020 @ Page 7 of 29
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Moorabool Shire Council

Action & Task Progress Report
Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

1.2.6.4 Implement child safety standards across the Karen Jansen - Executive omplet b | 100%
organisation (Year 3 Progress) Manager - People and Culture

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual YTD Variance
Recurrent

Human Resources

Action Progress Comments

The child safety standards and reportable conduct scheme policies were adopted by Council at the May 2018 Ordinary Meeting. An action plan has been developed and this is
currently being implemented across the organisation. A child safety statement is now listed on job advertisements for Council and all new or updated staff position descriptions reflect

Council's commitment to child safety. The next step is for each manager to complete an action plan for their areas in relation to how their unit meets the Child Safety standards.
Last Updated - 27/07/2020

July 29, 2020 @ Page 8 of 29
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Moorabool Shire Council Action & Task Progress Report
Objective: 1.3 (1C) Our Business & Systems

STRATEGY: 1.31 Legislative and Regulatory

Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

1.3.1.1 Review the Local Law Andy Gaze - Coordinator P b | 100%
Community Health & Safety

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual YTD Variance
Community Health and Safety Recurrent

Action Progress Comments

At the Ordinary Meeting of Council on Wednesday 7 August 2019, Council adopted the Community Impact Statement and the Moorabool Shire Council Community Local Law 2019. A
notice was placed in the Victorian Government Gazette in the first gazettal for October 2019. A copy has been provided to the Minister of Local Government
Last Updated - 27/07/2020

Action Action Status

Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

Rod Davison - Senior Strategic 1/07/2018 30/06/2020 100%
Planner

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual
Recurrent

1.3.1.2 Review the Municipal Planning Scheme

YTD Variance

Strategic Planning

Action Progress Comments

The Moorabool Planning Scheme Review comprises of two stages. The first two stages (review and recommendations) will be delivered by a Consuitant. Stage One draft report was
presented to Council for input at the June 2019 Section 86 Moorabool Growth Management Committee. The consultant has commenced Stage Two which will include community
consultation. The planning scheme review is currently on community consultation during June-July 2020

Last Updated - 25/06/2020

Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

1.3.1.56 Develop an Enforcement Policy Andy Gaze - Coordinator In Progress 1007/2019 | 30/06/2020 75% 75%
Community Health & Safety

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual YTD Variance
Community Health and Safety Recurrent

Action Progress Comments

Interal consultation and a draft policy has been completed. Due to the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic this project has been placed on hold and due to be completed by Dec
2020
Last Updated - 28/07/2020

July 29, 2020 @ Page 9 of 29
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Moorabool Shire Council Action & Task Progress Report

STRATEGY: 1321CT

Action Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

Lalitha Koya - Manager ICT Completed 1/07/2019 30/06/2020 100% 100% -

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual

1.3.2.3 Implement Phase 3 (GIS replacement) of the Digital
Strategy - Year 3 Progress

YTD Variance

Recurrent

Digital
Action Progress Comments
As a part of Implement Phase 3 of the Digital Strategy (2017-2019), Current Geographic Information System (GIS) platform is now successfully moved to Spectrum Spatial Analyst
(SSA) platform across all council's service units

Last Updated - 10/09/2019

STRATEGY: 1.3.3 Service Reviews

Action Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

Karen Jansen - Executive Completed 1007/2019 | 300062020 | 100% | 100%
Manager - People and Culture

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual

1.3.3.1 Develop Service Plans for all services (2017-2019) -
Year 3 Progress

YTD Variance

Business Improvement Recurrent

Action Progress Comments
As per Stage 2- B of the road map, 2019/20 Service Plans were developed for all Service Units including a service improvement action plan. These actions now form part of the overall
Service Unit Action Plan that is captured, measured and reported on in CAMMS Sycle.

The review and update of Service Plans occurs annually in December/January as per the Integrated Planning & Budget timetable

Last Updated - 05/05/2020
Action Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

‘Yvonne Hansen - Manager Completed 1/07/2019 30/06/2020 100% 100%
Governance and Risk

Budget Type Budge: YTD Budget YTD Actual
Recurrent

1.3.3.2 Governance: Undertake service review in accordance
with the policy and framework and as determined by Council

YTD Variance

Risk Management

Action Progress Comments

Presented and endorsed by Executive Group.
Last Updated - 25/10/2019
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Action Status StartDate  EndDate % Comp. Target % OnTarget
1.3.3.6 Visitor Information Centre: Undertake service feview in Andy Waugh - Coordinator omplet b | 100%

accordance with the policy and framework and as determined Economic Development

by Council

Activity Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual
Economic Development Recurrent

YTD Variance

Action Progress Comments

Service review of the Bacchus Marsh Visitor Information Centre (VIC) has been completed and was adopted by Council at its meeting held in July 2020
Last Updated - 27/07/2020

Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

1.3.3.9 Align finance system with service plans, system views Steven Ivelja - Chief Financial | Completed 26/08/2019 | 3010612020 | 100% | 100%
and ESC requirements Officer

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual YTD Variance
Strategic Financial Management Recurrent

Action Progress Comments

Finance system was updated to reflect the Business Excellence Systems Views
Last Updated - 27/07/2020

STRATEGY: 1.3.4 Financial Sustainability
Action

Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

Steven Ivelja - Chief Financial Completed 1/09/2019 31/12/2020 100% 100%
Officer

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual
Recurrent

1.34.12 Annually review the Long Term Financial plan 2020/21

YTD Variance

Finance and Accounts

Action Progress Comments

The long term financial plan has been reviewed and updated. Significant rework of the model has occurred to incorporate the Developer Contribution database which will provide a
greater level of accuracy around the delivery of S.173 project commitments. In addition to this, there are a number of material changes to the LTFP which have been modelled and

have been incorporated into the draft 2020/21 Annual Plan & Budget. Some minor refinement may occur as the budget progresses but in the absence of that this action has been
completed.

Last Updated - 28/06/2020
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Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

1.3.4.13 Annually review the need to make a rate cap variation Steven Ivelja - Chief Financial omple Jo 100%
for 2020/21 year Officer

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual YTD Variance
Finance and Accounts Recurrent

Action Progress Comments

Council formally resolved to not apply for a rate cap variation for the 2020/21 financial year at the Ordinary Meeting of Council on 4 December 2019
Last Updated - 27/07/2020

Action Status StartDate  EndDate % Comp. Target % OnTarget
1.3.4.3 Identify and develop shared services with other LGs, Sally Jones - GM Community Completed 1007/2019 | 300062020 | 100% | 100%

community and private sector organisations (2017-2021) - Year Strengthening

3 Progress

YTD Variance

Activity Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual
Child Youth and Family
Action Progress Comments

The project s being undertaken in phases over the four-year life of the Council Plan 2017-2021. Phase one was the preparation of a report to the Executive Management Team; phase
2 is the preparation of scoping/business plans for new or expanded shared service opportunities including the determination of charge ot rates and preparation of marketing materials
including capabilty statements; phase three is the implementation of the new or expanded shared service opportunities.

Recurrent

Opportunities for shared services with Hepburn Shire Council and Golden Plains Shire Councils are progressing in relation to waste, recycling and building surveying services. The
Central Highlands Group of Councils (including Moorabool Shire) have established an incorporated association and secured resources from the Victorian Government to faciltate the
establishment of shared services in the region. Discussions are currently taking place with a number of Councils in relation to a joint road asset condition collection project
Discussions are also currently taking place with the regional waste and resource recovery group in relation to joint procurement opportunities for waste services. This action is being
implemented over the life of the council plan.

New Library Agreement was negotiated and endorsed by Council in January 2020. This provides a new 5 year shared services contract with Ballarat Libraries in conjunction with
Central Highlands Libraries. Ministerial Exemption was required to ensure compliance with procurement for the term of the agreement

Discussions to encourage further scope across LG's, community and private sector will continue
Last Updated - 25/06/2020
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Action Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

1.3.4.4 Seek funding for new, upgrade and renewed Christopher Gardner - Manager mplet b | 100%
community faciliies (2017-2021) - Year 3 Progress Connected Communities

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual YTD Variance

Recurrent

Recreation and Development

Action Progress Comments

$7M has been received for BMRRR Master Plan- Stage 1 Delivery via the Community Sports Infrastructure Loan Scheme

$1.6M has been received to fund 5 oval lighting upgrades via the Community Sports Infrastructure Loan Scheme

$800,000 has been received for MOOR Sport- BMRRR Paviion via the 2019-20 Community Sports Infrastructure Fund- Major

$30,000 has been received to conduct a feasibility study on activating Bald Hill

$100,000 has been received to help fund irigation works at Wallace Recreation Reserve

$120,000 has been received from the State Government's Pick My Project program to install a playground at Masons Lane.

$50,000 has been received to resurface the netball courts and upgrade the lighting at Ballan Recreation Reserve

$18,000 has been received for the upgrade of outdoor facilties at Mt Wallace Hall

$200,00 has been received to upgrade the lighting at Darley Park Recreation Reserve (combination of Community Sport Infrastructure Grant Program ( Sport Australia) and Country
Football Netball Program)

$20,000 was received from VicHealth to undertake a feasibility study on addressing bariers to female participation in physical activity at BM Leisure Centre
$250,000 has been received to upgrade the netball courts at Gordon Recreation Reserve

8 grants have been applied for in Feb/March 2020:
-Indoor Stadium - $2M

-Ballan cricket nets - $130,000 (2 grants)

-Soccer pitches at BMRRR - $500,000
-Dunnstown pavilion upgrade - $402,000

Netball court resurfacing (4 courts) - $98,000
-Mill Park Redevelopment - $250,000

-Gordon Public Park Redevelopment - $150,000

The provision of COVID-19 Stimulus Funding grants has created opportunities for further community infrastructure funding submissions. The outcome of these is currently unknown,
however applications will continue to be submitted to address the need for new and upgraded failties
Last Updated - 27/07/2020
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Key Result Area: 2 Minimising Environmental Impact
Objective: 2.1 (2A) Built Environment

STRATEGY: 2.1.1 Develop frameworks for each small town & action plans to address components in (current) strategies
Action Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target

2.1.1.1 Develop the Gateways Strategy (2017-2021) - Year 3 Justin Horne - Manager Completed 17112019 | 3000612020 |  100% | 100%
Environmental Management

progress
Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual
Recurrent

% OnTarget

YTD Variance

Environmental Planning

Action Progress Comments

A preliminary scope has been developed. The Gateways Strategy will be completed in 2020721
Last Updated - 27/07/2020

STRATEGY: 2.1.2 Implement the Gordon Infrastructure & Structure Plans

Action Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

2.1.2.1 Implement the Gordon Infrastructure Plan. (2017-2019) Ewen Nevett - Manager Completed 1007/2018 | 317122019 | 100% | 100%
Engineering Services

- Year 2 Progress
Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual YTD Variance
Recurrent

Project Management
Action Progress Comments.

Contact works were completed in October 2019. Minor issues with maintenance of landscape areas have now been completed.
Last Updated - 01/06/2020

STRATEGY: 2.1.4 Work with relevant authorities to ensure that flooding and bushfire risks are addressed
Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

2.1.4.1 Incorporate flood mapping into the Planning Scheme Henry Bezuidenhout - In Progress 21/12/2018 | 30/06/2020 0% | 100%
(2017-2021) Executive Manager Community
Planning and Economic
Development
Activity Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual YTD Variance

Strategic Planning Recurrent

Action Progress Comments

Amendment C91 seeks to introduce flood controls to the Moorabool Planning Scheme. Following the preparation of the flood study and mapping in conjunction with Melbourne Water,
a report was presented to the Ordinary Meeting of Council in September 2019, where Coundillors endorsed seeking authorisation from the Department of Environment, Land, Water
and Planning (DELWP) and exhibiting the Amendment. Conditional authorisation was received from DELWP on 25 November 2019, to prepare and exhibit the amendment. On 13
February 2020, DELWP granted approval to commence exhibition. Exhibition formally commenced on the 12 March 2020 for a period of 8 weeks. Due to COVID-19, Council has
written to all affected parties, advising that the exhibition period will now be extended until 4 weeks after government restrictions are either removed or relaxed. A further letter will be
sent at a later date, to advise of the new closing date for submissions

Last Updated - 28/07/2020
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% OnTarget

Moorabool Shire Council
Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target

2.1.4.3 Work with relevant authorities to ensure that flooding Rod Davison - Senior Strategic omplet b | 100%
risks are addressed and flood mapping incorporated into the Planner

planning scheme (2019-2021)

Activity Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual
Strategic Planning Recurrent

Action Progress Comments

| This action is a duplication of 2.1.4.1
Last Updated - 02/12/2019

2.1.5 Review and implement a Bacchus Marsh Avenue of Honour Management Plan

YTD Variance

% OnTarget

Start Date End Date % Comp. Target

STRATEGY:

Action Status

Action
2.1.5.1 Review and implement a Bacchus Marsh Avenue of Daniel Smith - Manager Completed 1007/2019 | 300062020 | 100% | 100%
Honour Management Plan Operations

Budget Type Budge: YTD Budget YTD Actual

Recurrent

YTD Variance

Parks and Gardens

Action Progress Comments
Anew Avenue of Honour Management Plan has been developed using three volumes being;

1. The Management Plan document,
2. Tree condition data

3. Tree replacement strategy

The development of the Plan and associated documents has been based on updated tree condition data and use of intenal expertise, expert arborists and maintenance contractors.
Due to COVID-19, the community engagement component has been delayed to ensure this component is done adequately given the restrictions in place.

Last Updated - 30/06/2020

% Comp. Target % OnTarget

2.1.6 Implement an Energy Efficient Street Lighting Plan

STRATEGY:
Action Status Start Date End Date

Action
2.1.6.1 Implement an energy efficient street lighting plan John Miller - Manager Asset Completed 10012020 | 300062020 | 100% | 100% e
Management
YTD Variance

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual

Recurrent

Asset Management

Action Progress Comments
An energy efficient street lighting plan has been implemented with a contract being awarded to Powercor and works commenced on the replacement of 1,911 Mercury Vapour street

lights to LED.
Last Updated - 27/07/2020
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STRATEGY: 2.1.9 Complete Bald Hill Activation Plan Feasibility Study

Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

Justin Horne - Manager Completed 1007/2019 | 300062020 | 100% | 100%
Environmental Management

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual

Recurrent

Action
2.1.9.1 Complete Bald Hill Activation Plan Feasibility Study

YTD Variance

Environmental Planning

Action Progress Comments
The Bald Hill Activation Plan Feasibility Study was received by Council at the Ordinary Meeting of Council in February 2020. Funding has been obtained for the design and construction

of the Bacchus Marsh 1000+ by 2022
Last Updated - 27/07/2020
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Objective: 2.2 (2B) Natural Environment

STRATEGY: 224 Finalise and implement the action plan of the Moorabool Sustainable Environment Strategy
Action Status StartDate  EndDate % Comp. Target % OnTarget

2.2.1.1 Finalise and implement the action plan of the Justin Horne - Manager P b | 100%

Moorabool Sustainable Environment Strategy (2017-2021) - Environmental Management

Year 3 Progress

Activity Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual YTD Variance

Recurrent

Environmental Planning

Action Progress Comments

This is a multi year project across the period 2017 to 2021

Three key projects identified for delivery in 2019/20 were:

1. Solar installation completed on three Council buildings

2 Monitoring of density of pest plants and animals on Council managed / owned roadsides and reserves completed
3. LED Lighting upgrades undertaken at one Coundil building

Last Updated - 27/07/2020

STRATEGY: 2.2.3 Develop an Open Space Integrated Water Management Plan

Action Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

Justin Horne - Manager Completed 1007/2019 | 300062020 | 100% | 100%
Environmental Management

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual YTD Variance

2.2.3.1 Develop an Open Space Integrated Water Management
Plan - Stage One

Recurrent

Environmental Planning

Action Progress Comments
The Open Space Integrated Water Management Plan is a strategic document that informs the policy , infrastructure and systems required to improve amenity and functionality of the
open space areas in Moorabool and manage water resources equitably. The Strategy has been completed and will inform the development of the policy relating to allocation, use and
trading

Last Updated - 30/06/2020

STRATEGY: 2.2.4 Develop and implement a policy on allocation use and trading of water for Council water assets
Action Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

Justin Horne - Manager In Progress 1007/2019 | 30/06/2020 0% | 100%
Environmental Management

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual
Recurrent

2.2.4.1 Develop and implement a policy on allocation, use and
trading of water for Council water assets - Stage One

YTD Variance

Environmental Planning

Action Progress Comments
Apolicy has been developed, with internal engagement to be undertaken in July 2020, with the aim for it to be considered by the Executive Group
Last Updated - 29/07/2020
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Key Result Area: 3 Stimulating Economic Development
Objective: 3.1 (3A) Land Use Planning

STRATEGY: 3.1.1 Incorporate strategic documents into the Planning Scheme

Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

3.1.1.1 Incorporate strategic documents into the Planning Henry Bezuidenhout - Completed 6/06/2018 | 28/022020 | 100% | 100%
Scheme - Ballan Strategic Directions (2017-2021) - Year 3 Executive Manager Community
Progress Planning and Economic
Development
Activity Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual YD Variance

Strategic Planning Recurrent

Action Progress Comments

Counci adopted Amendment C88 Ballan Strategic Directions at the Ordinary Meeting of Council on 2 October 2019. The Amendment was submitted to the Minister for Planning for
approval on 10 October 2019, The Minister for Planning formally approved the Amendment on 21 February 2020. The Amendment was gazetted on 6 March 2020
Last Updated - 01/05/2020

Action Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

Sarah Kernohan - Strategic In Progress 1007/2019 | 30/06/2020 45% | 100%
Planning Coordinator

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual
Recurrent

3.1.1.3 Incorporate strategic documents into the Planning
Scheme - West Moorabool Heritage Study (2017-2021)

YTD Variance

Strategic Planning

Action Progress Comments

The consultant undertaking the amendment has completed a review of West Moorabool Heritage Study 2a to ensure the study is consistent with the Planning Practice Note 1
Applying the Heritage Overlay. As a result of this review, a number of changes are required to the statements of significance and heritage curtilages to ensure consistency with the
practice note. A consultant was engaged to undertake these changes and progress the planning scheme amendment. The consultant has completed all ground truthing.

Last Updated - 28/07/2020
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STRATEGY: 3.1.2 Implement the adopted Small Towns and Settlement Strategy

Action Status

Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

3.1.2.1 Develop a program for services and utilties in small Henry Bezuidenhout - In Progress 1007/2019 | 30/06/2020 50% | 100%
towns (2017-2021) Executive Manager Community
Planning and Economic
Development
Activity Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual YD Variance

Strategic Planning

Recurrent

Action Progress Comments

Structure planning is required to assist in determining the likely future population of these small towns and to plan for the provision of infrastructure in conjunction with the water
authorities, state government and the community. Officers have had discussions with Central Highlands Water and is developing a program for the delivery of infrastructure to the
towns. An advocacy item was prepared and discussions initiated with RDV and other key stakeholders to source funding and support in providing water and sewerage. The next step
is to develop a growth scenario (framework plan) and formalise the MOU. In preparation of a framework plan, the following documentation and background studies were reviewed;

services analysis report, options report, and flood study. These informed the framework plan and updated the MOU and a project plan was developed. A briefing note outlining the key
issues and next steps will be presented to the Executive Group in July 2020.
Last Updated - 27/07/2020

STRATEGY: 3.1.5 Develop a long term strategy for the Bacchus March Civic Precinct

Action Status

Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

3.1.5.1 Develop a long term strategy for the Bacchus Marsh Henry Bezuidenhout - In Progress 100772019 | 30/06/2020 60% | 100% s
Civic Precinct Executive Manager Community —
Planning and Economic
Development
Activity Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual YTD Variance

Strategic Planning Recurrent

Action Progress Comments

Council has completed a high-level strategic analysis and urban design investigation of the Bacchus Marsh main street. Identification of a consolidated land area is to be investigated

as a future civic precinct. An advocacy item has been developed to source funding and promote the establishment of a civic precinct. Grant funding is also being sought
Last Updated - 29/07/2020
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STRATEGY: 3.1.6 Review future opportunities for the Darley Civic Precinct

Action

Action Status StartDate  EndDate % Comp. Target % OnTarget
3.1.6.1 Review future opportuntties for the Darley Civic Precinct Sally Jones - GM Community Completed 1007/2019 | 300062020 | 100% | 100%
(2019-2021) Strengthening

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual
Recurrent

YTD Variance

Recreation and Development

Action Progress Comments

Future use of the site s being reviewed to ascertain capacity of the existing buildings to support staffing and required meeting and engagement spaces

This is being undertaken in
conjunction with Assets who are reviewing the possibility of redesigning current staff work space and requirements

Negotiations have taken place with Belgravia Kids to replace Acrofun as the provider of a Gymnastics program at the current location at Darley . This lease agreement will continue for
2 years. Future use of the facility after this time wil be reviewed in 20/21 financial year.

Van Go received confirmation of funding arrangement for an extended 12 months. The NFP organisation will continue to utilise administrative and consulting space at the site during
this time.

Lease with RSPCA has been renewed for a 12 month period to support their ongoing operational needs

Research will continue via Social Planner role during 20/21 to undertake analysis of future community needs in relation to location and accessibility of the site.
Last Updated - 25/06/2020
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Objective: 3.2 (3B) Investment & Employment

STRATEGY: 3.2.1 Implement the action plan of the Economic Development Strategy

Action Status

Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

3.2.1.1 Implement the action plan of the Economic Henry Bezuidenhout - Completed 1007/2019 | 300062020 | 100% | 100%
Development Strategy (2017-2021) - Year 3 Progress Executive Manager Community
Planning and Economic
Development
Activity Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual YD Variance

Economic Development Recurrent

Action Progress Comments

The implementation of the action plan associated with the Economic Development Strategy has achieved the actions listed below for the 2019/2020 financial year.
This action plan is delivered across multiple years with the final stage to be delivered in 2020/21

The Strategy has delivered;

- Industry sector development - research undertaken into industrial, agricultural and accommodation sectors with agricultural action plan completed.
- Investment attraction materials (print and digital) produced in English and Chinese.
- Two keynote events delivered including a business breakfast delivered to 120+ local business and community members, and a Women in Business event delivered to 60+ attendees.
- Completed 50 points of engagement with business during 2019 consisting of networking, training and business development opportunities
- E-news delivered to 2,500+ businesses each edition.
- Work commenced on the marketing and branding for the Parwan Employment Precinct in coordination with Council departments and stakeholders
- Exploration of marketing and promotional options for produce and how local producers can be engaged to work and market collaboratively.
- Development of a business case for the future use of the Fiskville site, in conjunction with stakeholders
- Analysis of the visitor economy and how the visitor information centre can be utilised to maximum opportunity in engaging the visitor.
- Support of business groups in Bacchus Marsh and Ballan
- Response to the COVID-19 pandemic to support business including;
-Shop local campaign to support hospitality businesses.
- Research and analysis into trends and changing circumstances to inform future responses and strategies.
- Delivery of on-line seminars including the virtual business summit and Virtual Country Cuppa to support rural women in business
- One page fact sheet to summarise Federal/State initatives and informtion.
- Creation of a Grants Hub available through the Council web page
- Phone calls and site visits to businesses to provide information and support
- Business survey to gain information for planning of future initiatives.
- Participation in a fortnightly Central Highlands Economic Development meeting to share information and initiatives
Last Updated - 30/06/2020
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STRATEGY: 3.2.4 Facilitate Parwan Employment Precinct planning and marketing

Action Status

Start Date End Date % Comp. Target

% OnTarget

3.2.4.1 Faciltate the Parwan Employment Precinct planning Henry Bezuidenhout - In Progress 1007/2019 | 30/06/2020 60% | 100%
and marketing (2017-2021) - Year 3 Progress Executive Manager Community
Planning and Economic
Development
Activity Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual YD Variance

Strategic Planning

Recurrent

Action Progress Comments

Council was successful in obtaining funding from the Victorian Planning Authority under Streamlining for Growth. This funding will assist with final background studies and further work
on a Precinct Structure Plan.

Council officers are undertaking investigations of stakeholder engagement of existing and potential businesses in the Parwan Employment Precinct (PEP) with the aim to faciltate
economic investment, expansion of current businesses and to inform future planning studies.

Meeting held with the Victorian Planning Association (VPAY), Invest Victoria, and Regional Development Victoria (RDV) to strategically plan for the purpose and identification of the
Parwan Employment Precinct. This resulted in a vision statement for the Agri Business Precinct, a workshop is planned with Councillors in early 2020 to further enhance this vision.
Invest Victoria, in conjunction with Council is preparing a funding proposal under the Federal Government City Deals initiative. Councilis also working closely with Invest Victoria and
service providers to secure the upgrade/provision of key infrastructure to facilitate catalyst projects. Next step is to develop a marketing strategy targeted at Agri Business investors
This is currently being prepared.

Project initiated to understand the needs of the PEP and from there identify the potential investors and what an appropriate brand may be . The project commenced in May and this
action wil carry into the next financial year.
Last Updated - 27/07/2020

STRATEGY: 3.2.5 Construct the Ballan depot
Action Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

3.2.5.1 Construct the Ballan Depot (2019-2021) Corinne Jacobson - Senior Completed 1007/2019 | 300062020 | 100% | 100%
Project Engineer

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual
Recurrent

YTD Variance

Management

Action Progress Comments

Design is complete for the facility. Earthworks induded in Haddon Drive extension contract. Tenders for construction of facility will be advertised in July 2020
Last Updated - 28/07/2020
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STRATEGY:
Action

Action & Task Progress Report

3.2.6 Advocate resource and implement the Bacchus Marsh Integrated Transport Strategy (BMITS) action plans

Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target
3.2.6.1 Advocate, resource and implement the Bacchus Marsh

Phil Jeffrey - GM Community Completed 1007/2019 | 300062020 | 100% | 100%
Integrated Transport Strategy (BMITS) action plans - Year 3 Assets and Infrastructure

Progress

Activity

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual
Management Recurrent

% OnTarget

YTD Variance
Action Progress Comments

The infrastructure actions from the Bacchus Marsh Integrated Transport Strategy have been included in Councif's Long Term Capital Improvement Program for consideration , along

with other priority projects, as part of each annual budget process. Currently working with Regional Roads Victoria on funding opportunites for improvement projects along Gisborne

Road and Grant Street. Coundil is also part of the Steering Committee for the Eastem Link Road planning study that is currently in progress.
Last Updated - 01/06/2020

STRATEGY: 3.2.9 Advocate for improved Ballarat Line rail and integrated public transport outcomes through the Ballarat Line Action Committee (BRAC)
Action

Action Status StartDate  EndDate % Comp. Target % OnTarget
3.2.9.1 Advocate for improved Ballarat Rail Line and integrated Derek Madden - Chief Completed 1007/2019 | 300062020 | 100% | 100%
public transport outcomes (2017-2021) - Year 3 Progress Executive Officer

Budget Type

CEO's Office

Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual

YTD Variance
Recurrent

Action Progress Comments

Advocacy has been made to the State Government on Ballarat Rail Line Action Committee issues. Significant investment approved as part of the state government Budget. Further
advocacy will occur as required.
Last Updated - 01/04/2020
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Key Result Area: 4 Improving Social Outcomes
Objective: 4.1 (4A) Health & Wellbeing

Action & Task Progress Report

STRATEGY: 4.1.1 Health & Wellbeing Plan

Action

Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

“Tom Laurie - Manager Completed 1007/2019 | 300062020 | 100% | 100%
Communication, Advocacy and
Government Relations

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual
Recurrent

4.1.1.1 Prepare and implement an advocacy and partnership
plan to atiract investment in government and non-government
services in the municipality. (2017-2021) - Year 3 Progress
Activity

Advocacy

YTD Variance

Action Progress Comments

The purpose of the advocacy is to ensure that the Shire’s current and future residents have access to a range of community services needed to maximise their health , safety and
well-being. In early 2020, an Advocacy Plan was developed and completed; acknowledging that advocacy is ongoing and the plan s a living document that is regularly reviewed,
improved and updated as circumstances change. The plan is supported by a detailed centrally-housed spreadsheet that captures all the projects and issues that require advocacy
work. The spreadsheet indludes current status, risk to brand and mitigation measures. Regular updates are provided to the Executive on the status of projects and issues. Advocacy
sheets have also been developed for major projects and are regularly reviewed and updated. For the purpose of reporting, this Council Plan action is now complete. However, given

the nature of Council's advocacy work, the Advocacy Plan will continue to evolve over the life of the Council Plan
Last Updated - 30/06/2020

STRATEGY: 4.1.2 Municipal Early Years Plan

Action Status StartDate  EndDate % Comp. Target % OnTarget
4.1.2.1 Plan and design the proposed West Maddingley

Sharon McArthur - Manager Completed 17102019 | 300062020 | 100% | 100%
Community Facility Child, Youth & Family

Budget Type Budge: YTD Budget YTD Actual YTD Variance
Recurrent

Child Youth and Family

Action Progress Comments

This is a muli year project and the project s currently in its infancy, required tasks for this year of the project have been actioned with coundil officers completing the business case

documentation for the West Maddingley Early Years and Community Hub and draft Community engagement plans for the project
Last Updated - 27/05/2020
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Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

4.1.3.1 Implement the Reserve Management Framework Christopher Gardner - Manager | Complet b | 100%
(2017-2021) - Year 3 Progress Connected Communities

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual YTD Variance
Recurrent

Recreation and Development

Action Progress Comments

The Council Fees and charges have been issued in accordance with the Recreation Reserve User Fees and Charges Policy and 2019-20 Budget. User agreements have been

completed for summer season tenants (Oct - March). Annual Management Agreements (AMAs) have also been put in place and operational funding provided to committees as per the
Recreation Reserve Funding Policy.

Changes to planned outcomes have been adjusted to reflect non-use of reserves and facilties through the impact of the current pandemic. Communication with Reserve Committees
of Management and sporting clubs continues. This is a multi-year action and will continue in 2021
Last Updated - 27/07/2020

Action

Action Status StartDate  EndDate % Comp. Target % OnTarget
4.1.3.2 Construct stage 1 of the Bacchus Marsh Racecourse Corinne Jacobson - Senior Completed 1007/2019 | 300062020 | 100% | 100%
Recreation Reserve (2017-2019) - Year 3 Progress Project Engineer

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual
Recurrent

YTD Variance

Management

Action Progress Comments

Stage 1 of the project includes the construction of pony club facities, a BMX track, sports fields and a pavilion at the Bacchus Marsh Racecourse Recreation Reserve site to be
constructed over three years. Works completed to date:

- bulk earthworks

- equestrian cross country

- multipurpose sports oval (soccer, cricket and football)
- BMX Track

- Sports pavilion under construction

Civil and services works are well advanced however there have been significant delays due to authority approvals and weather conditions. Remaining works to be completed are
landscaping.

Construction is scheduled to be completed in December 2020.
Last Updated - 25/06/2020

Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget
4.1.3.3 Finalise the Open Space Framework including Justin Horne - Manager Completed 1007/2019 | 300062020 | 100% | 100%

beautfication and irrigation of neighbourhood parks Environmental Management

(2017-2019) - Year 3 Progress

Activity

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual
Recurrent

YTD Variance
Environmental Planning

Action Progress Comments

/A Bacchus Marsh and Ballan Open Space Framework was adopted at the Ordinary Meeting of Council in February 2020.
Last Updated - 27/07/2020
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Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

4.1.3.4 Design indoor courts in Bacchus Marsh Christopher Gardner - Manager | Complet b | 100%
Connected Communities

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual YTD Variance
Recreation and Development Recurrent

Action Progress Comments
A contract for Principal Consultant has been awarded. The contract includes master planning for the Mill Park site along with master planning for a Bacchus Marsh Sports Precinct
(including Maddingley Park, Siberia, Taverner Street and Peppertree Park)

Preliminary masterplans have been developed for the Tavemer street site including the indoor sports and aquatic centre and the Mil Park site

Architects have been engaged and have created concept design plans for the project, including a Stage 2 Aquatic Centre project. Concept designs have been presented to Council
with detailed design ready to proceed.
Last Updated - 28/06/2020

Start Date

Action Action Status End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

Christopher Gardner - Manager Completed 1/07/2019 30/06/2020 100% 100%
Connected Communities

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual
Recurrent

4.1.3.5 Prepare and revise a rolling cycle of Reserve Master
Plans (2017-2021) - Year 3 Progress

YTD Variance

Community Development

Action Progress Comments

Master plan for Darley Park is in progress

Precinct planning for Maddingley Park, which includes a master plan for the Maddingley Park recreation reserve. These 2 plans are being undertaken by the Engineering Services
The rolling cycle of Reserve Master Plans will be transferred back to Connected Communities per the outcome of a department restructure and recruitment to support this ongoing
action

Last Updated - 27/07/2020
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Moorabool Shire Council

Action & Task Progress Report

Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget
4.1.4.6 Facilitate and support existing and emerging arts and Christopher Gardner - Manager mplet b | 100%

cutural development groups and activities across the Connected Communities

municipality. (2017-2021) - Year 3 Progress

Activity

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual
Recurrent

YTD Variance
Recreation and Development

Action Progress Comments

The Bacchus Marsh Arts Council i utilising workshop space at the Darley Civic & Community Hub. Ongoing support continues to be provided to the Arts Council in building the

capacity of its group and examining opportunities for joint projects and funding. Support is being provided to the Arts Council to exhibit art work in the common areas ffoyers of the
building it is sharing with other groups at the Darley Civic & Community Hub

In August 2018, the Council allocated $7,600 to 3 Arts and Cultural projects: 1) Winternits' Group Ballan; 2) Gordon Community Fair and; 3) Bacchus Marsh & Melton District
Community Theatre Incorporated

The Council's Youth Strategy outlines the development of a new arts program for young people with a focus on improved mental health of young people by sing arts as a medium . A

project to create a mural and ofher art work has been undertaken with young people at the Bacchus Marsh Skate Facility (Rotary Park) as part of a Victorian Government funded
grafti education project. This action has been completed.

In March 2019, the Council allocated $2,700 to one Arts and cultural project via its community grants program: "Framing your art for exhibition”

In the 2019/2020 budget, council approved the appointment of an Arts and Culture Officer. The recruitment of an Arts and Culture Officer has been completed . The officer begins in
July 2020. This is a multi-year action and will continue through the life of the Council Plan.
Last Updated - 28/06/2020
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Moorabool Shire Council Action & Task Progress Report

STRATEGY: 4.1.6 Youth Strategy

Action

Action Status. Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget
4.1.6.1 Advocate and support the development of programs Sharon McArthur - Manager Completed 1007/2019 | 300062020 | 100% | 100%

and services to increase employment opportunities for young Child, Youth & Family

people (2017-2019) - Year 3 Progress

Activity

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual
Recurrent

YTD Variance
Child Youth and Family

Action Progress Comments

The Youth Services team and the Economic Development team at Council are working together to deliver this action . The aim of the projectis to increase employment opportunities
for young people in Moorabool. The objectives are: increase investment in educational opportunities to improve the educational attainment levels of young people; increase investment

in programs and services to support young people experiencing multiple barriers to employment; and develop the capacity and diversity of the Moorabool workforce by developing the
skill set of the young people of Moorabool

A Lifeguard Scholarship program was first introduced in 2018/2019 and applications have recently dlosed for 2019/2020, this program assists local young people to undertake
Lifeguard qualifications and gain employment at Counci's outdoor pools

Council's youth strategy 2018-2021 outlines key actions relating to increasing employment opportunities for young people aged under 25 years. The Youth Engagement Support
(YES) project has been funded by the Department of Premier and Cabinet for the employment of an additional youth worker to support young people who have or are at risk of
disengaging from education or employment, referral to this project and engagement by young people in the first year of this project has been significant. In partnership with local
agendies sessions are being delivered for young people in preparing and updating resumes and interview skills practice

The advocacy is being undertaken over the life of the Council Plan 2017-2021
Last Updated - 28/06/2020

Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target

% OnTarget

4.1.6.3 Undertake a Master Plan including concept and cost

Sharon McArthur - Manager In Progress 2000072019 | 30/06/2020 40% | 100%
plan for a youth space at Rotary Park, including the Andy Child, Youth & Family
Arnold Faility
Activity Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual YD Variance

Child Youth and Family

Action Progress Comments

Recurrent

This is a muli year project that has been delayed due to COVID-19. The project is currently i its infancy. Council officers have completed a project plan and community engagement
plans. Initial meeting on the project with internal stakeholders has occurred and this identified relevant internal and external stakeholders. This project will run over the 19-20 and
20-21 financial years and is to be completed by December 2020.

Last Updated - 28/07/2020
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Objective: 4.2 (4B) Community Connectedness and Capacity

STRATEGY: 4.2.2 Emergency Management Plan

Action Action Status Start Date End Date % Comp. Target % OnTarget

Cherie Graham - Chief a 6| 100%
Emergency Officer

Budget Type Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual YTD Variance

4.2.2.1 Deliver community emergency management education
program (2017-2021) - Year 3 Progress

Recurrent

Environmental Planning

Action Progress Comments

Fire prevention inspections are occurring and a social media campaign to educate and advise the communty. Lal Lal was successful for a Safer Together Program for the 2019/2020
year with agency and council involvement as required.  Assisted DELWP to provide community education and liaison for planned buring prior to summer season . A social media
campaign on home safety, insurance campaigns and house fire incidents was undertaken. Emergency Service Agencies and Council are developing a Search and Rescue Plan for
the Werribee Gorge and Lerderderg State Park and then an education program will follow . Blackwood Community Fire Refuge Open Night and Bushfire Planning Scenario Workshop
was held in November. Submitted a grant application for a Bushfire Mitigation Education and Engagement Officer . Key engagement with community currently occurring due to
COVID-19, newsletters for older residents, key messaging from goverment agencies being used. Ongoing liaison with all community agencies to ensure messaging and information
on relef provisions being provided. Initial COVID-19 Relief and Recovery Committee Meeting held.
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1.0 INTRODUCTION

This Landscape Design Manual (LDM) is to be read in conjunction with Moorabool Shire Council's
Infrastructure Design Manual (IDM). It is an adjunct to the IDM specifically for Landscape Design and
Standards. The LDM has been developed by the Moorabool Shire Council as a guide to specifying,
installing and maintaining all landscape within the Shire. The LDM sets out all the landscaping
requirements for newly developed residential subdivisions, and landscape works on Moorabool
Shire Council owned and managed land.

The LDM is to be used as a reference tool by Council representatives when assessing permit
applications, by landscape design consultants for consideration during the preparation of landscape
plans for Council submission, and by landscape contractors, site representatives and council
representatives in the field during the landscape construction and maintenance periods.

The LDM is a device for Council to ensure that the quality and workmanship of landscape works
undertaken within the municipality are of a standard that is in accordance with accepted industry
standards, and sound horticultural and conservation practices.

The assessment of works against this LOM should be undertaken with a degree of flexibility and
acknowledgement that alternative, and equally appropriate approaches, can be considered.

Alllandscape works must be documented and endorsed by Council within the detailed landscape
plans forming part of the approved planning permit. This may include the requirement for the
following documents to be to be read in conjunction with the Landscape Plan:

Moorabool Shire Infrastructure Design Manual (IDM).
Moorabool Shire Open Space Framework
e Moorabool Street Tree Strategy

It may also require the Site Representative to prepare the following documents to be to be read in
conjunction with the Landscape Plan:

Vegetation Management Plan
Tree Management Plan

Weed Management Plan

Native Vegetation Offset Plan

Site Management Plan
Environmental Management Plan
Sediment and Erosion Control Plan
Litter Control Plan

o Landscape Maintenance Plan

Please Note:
Itis recommended that a meeting be arranged with Council Representatives prior to the submission
of the landscape and urban design plans.

Itis the developer’s responsibility to ensure all relevant authorities are notified and requirements
are met.

These standards do not waive any responsibilities or approvals required by other authorities.
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Prior to any works commencing, consideration shall be given to the Flora and Fauna Reports, Native
vegetation management and offset reports, and Cultural Heritage Assessment and its
recommendations.

All material brought onto the site must be disease and pathogen free.

1.1 DEFINITIONS:

Site Representative: The person responsible for part or all of the landscape works.

Contractor: The company/person contracted to undertake the construction and maintenance of the
entire works or part of the works, or their authorized representative.

Proprietor: The owner of the land.

Council Representative: The person nominated by Moorabool Shire Council to provide comment on
the landscape plan/s during the approval and construction process.

HP: Hold point

PC: Practical Completion, when the construction and planting has been completed and the
development enters into the maintenance stage.

HO: Handover, when the development is deemed to be ready for the final handover to Council.
SMP: Site Management Plan

EMP: Environment management Plan

2.0 EARTHWORKS

2.1 DIAL BEFORE YOU DIG

All onsite contractors must have appropriate Dial before You Dig information onsite and available for
on the spot inspections by Council Officers. Failure to do so may result in works being halted until
such information can be provided. Any damage to utility infrastructure will be the responsibility of
the developer / contractor.

2.2 FILLING
Wherever possible, material should be obtained from site. Should imported soil be required, written
approval of the fill material must be provided to the Council Representative.

Imported fill shall be externally tested and certified prior to delivery on site. All fill material shall be
free of any deleterious material, including weed material or seed, vegetation, debris, building waste,

asbestos, rock and any other contaminates.

All rubbish must be removed from the site at the contractor’s/developer’s expense.

Moorabool Shire Council - Landscape Design Manual - 6




image123.png
2.2.1 PLACING AND COMPACTION
Structural fill shall be spread and compacted in accordance with the requirements of the current
applicable Australian Standards.

2.2.2 BACKFILLING

Unless otherwise noted on drawings, backfilling and compacting for irrigation trenches and minor
excavations may be site-won materials, provided such filling is sound material free of perishable
material or any material that will not form stable fill and is to the satisfaction of Council.

All vegetation, topsoil, debris, building waste, rock and rock floaters shall not, under any
circumstances, be used as filling, and all such materials shall be separated out from any site-won
material considered suitable for filling.

2.3 EXCAVATED ROCKS
Any earthworks, including the removal of excavated rocks, must be in accordance with the
Environmental Management Plan for the site.

Should excavated rocks need to be removed from the site, it must be ensured that the removal
process will not cause major disturbance to adjacent works or the surrounding site.

Under no circumstances should rocks be moved into existing waterway reserves without approval
from Councils representative. Earthworks on waterways should retain as much embedded and
surface material as possible.

2.4 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Any works performed must be in accordance with the Site Management Plan in regard to the
protection from sediment movement off the site into waterways and storm water systems.
Remnant vegetation is to remain and should be protected prior to work commencing and
Council representative advised of protection plan.

2.4.1 SITE LITTER RETENTION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL

The Site Management Plan must include a site litter retention plan and a sediment control plan e.g.
Fencing downwind of the predominant wind direction, regular site clean ups, rubbish removal and
disposal and sediment traps as required.

Methods available for controlling the movement of sediment on the site include:
Hay bale sediment fences
The hay bales should follow the contours of the land as much as possible and be embedded
into the ground, butted together as tightly as possible and secured.
Geotextile sediment fences

The geotextile fabric should be secured with the bottom of the fabric buried to make it
secure, and to ensure that water is not able to pass underneath the fabric untreated.
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Grass filter strips

Grass filters can be used on the footpath adjacent to and flush with the top of the kerb. The
filter strip consists of a single roll of turf laid along the kerb with a 1.5m long strip laid
perpendicular to the kerb every 10m.

The site must be progressively stabilized and rehabilitated as the project progresses to minimize the
area of unstable ground. The maintenance of sediment control devices must continue until the site
has been adequately stabilized and the risk of erosion is minimized.

3.0 PREPARATORY WORK
3.1 EXISTING TREE PROTECTION

Existing trees to be retained shall be protected on construction sites in accordance with
Australian Standard AS4970 ‘Protection of Trees on Development Sites”:

This will include but not be limited to;

Erect a temporary tree protection fence 1.8 high temporary chain wire fencing at the drip
line of the tree to set up a Tree Protection Zone (TPZ) before work commences.

No access, stockpiling of materials, soil disturbance, excavation works or storage of
machinery to be allowed inside the TPZ. The extent and the alignment of the fence must be
in accordance with location set out at pre-site inspection. The fence should be retained and
maintained for the duration of construction.

In the case that temporary vehicular movement is required across the TPZ, heavy plywood
or metal sheets laid over coarse bark mulch can be used for short term protection. These
should be removed as soon as movement is complete.

Where services are to be implemented through the root zone of a tree to be retained, their
alignment should be bored rather than placed in open trenches, to ensure that root
severance does not occur. New services should be located in a single bore hole.

Should root excavation be required, the work should be carried out by a qualified arborist by
hand digging or the use of an air knife. Root cutting should be done by hand, not backhoe or
other mechanical equipment, to avoid tearing of roots.

All tree pruning works are to be carried out by a qualified arborist. Any works carried out
within the TPZ are to be supervised by a qualified arborist and no signs, fences or other
items are to be attached to trees at any time.

The Contractor shall cause no damage to trunk or branches of the existing tree unless
otherwise specified to be removed or pruned. if damage is caused that affects the health of
the tree or results in the death of the tree, the contractor shall be liable for the replacement
and /or financial compensation to the values determined as per Moorabool Shire Councils
Street Tree Strategy.
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3.2 STANDARD SUBSOIL DRAINAGE DETAIL

Where appropriate, provide subsoil drainage to prevent the ponding of surface water in garden beds
or grassed areas adjacent to hard paving.

-Woodchip mulch
Topsail

Cultivate subsoll to minimum 150mm
depth and grade to fall.

Paving

Existing sub-grade.
-5-7mm Drainage screenings (with no fines)
400mm PVC AG Drain / UPVC slotted drain

plpe to stormwater drain or on site retention
system/ weftand.

3.3 Soil Preparation

For minimum requirements regarding soil preparation for garden bed and grassed areas, Refer
to section Garden Bed Construction (4.0) and Lawn Area (6.0).

3.4 TOPSOIL AND SOIL TESTING

Where possible, site topsoil should be used for garden beds and lawns. In acquiring site soil, the
top 100mm layer shall be stripped of soil and vegetation and stockpiled on the site. Soil for use
in garden bed and lawn areas may then be obtained from the stockpile soil provided the soil
meets the requirements as stated below.

3.4.1 EXISTING SoIL

® Free from perennial weeds and their roots, bulbs or rhizomes.

e Free from building rubble, including bricks, concrete, plaster, timber, oil or any other
matter deleterious to plant growth.

* Free from rocks or stones greater than 5mm diameter, but in any case, to have less than
5% stone by dry weight.

* Texture to be light to medium friable.

3.4.2 IMPORTED SOIL
Should imported soils be required, the subsoil shall be ripped and cultivated to a depth of 300mm to
combine with existing soil/base (refer to Australian Standard AS4419 ‘Soils for Landscaping and

Garden Use').
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e Free from perennial weeds and their roots, bulbs or rhizomes.

o Free from building rubble, including bricks, concrete, plaster, timber, oil or any other matter
deleterious to plant growth.

o Free from rocks or stones greater than 5mm diameter, but in any case, to have less than 5%
stone by dry weight.

e Phtobe6.0-7.0.

e Texture to be light to medium friable.

o Free from silt material.

e Non-hydrophobic

The soil shall conform to the following sieve analysis:

AS Sieve Size (mm) % Passing by Mass
9.001 100

35 100

1.18 90-100

0.600 7080

0300 4555

0.150 2030

0.075 515

0002 35

The Contractor is responsible to make allowance for the stockpiled topsoil to be tested prior to
spreading. Three (3) samples of the site won soil shall be randomly selected from different locations.
The samples shall be comprehensively laboratory tested by a nominated agency, as per the
requirements above, for approval by Council.

The laboratory report shall be accompanied with recommendations for amelioration measures
required to improve any deficiencies. Laboratory certificates shall accompany the sample soil mix
submitted for approval at the commencement of the work, including details of the soil source.

If the site topsoil fails to conform to the above tests, the material may be ameliorated, in accordance
with the recommendations of the laboratory report, to reach the relevant Australian Standards and
the above requirements, as identified above. If the material is deemed unsuitable for amelioration,
imported topsoil (meeting the above requirements) shall be used in landscape construction. A
laboratory certificate shall accompany the imported soil demonstrating the mix is in accordance with
the above requirements.

During the progress of the works, the Superintendent shall select two further samples of soil mix for
analysis, to confirm compliance with the above requirements. In the event that the subsequent tests

reveal unacceptable deviations from the approved, tested samples, the Contractor, at his expense,
will be responsible for undertaking further amelioration processes.

3.5 WEED ERADICATION

Please note: Contact should be made with the appropriate Council representative regarding weed
control.
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An approved Weed Management Plan shall be followed and implemented throughout the landscape
works period.

The Weed Management Plan s to incorporate:

o Assessment and identification of declared noxious weed species, and environmental weeds,
on the site and across the extent of the property,

o Weed management actions to be undertaken prior to landscape works,

e Mitigation and weed hygiene practices for materials brought on site,

«  Weed hygiene practices for all vehicles and personnel entering and leaving the site,

Recommended ongoing weed management practices, following completion of landscape
works.

3.5.1 HERBICIDES
Only herbicides registered for use in Victoria may be used.

All herbicides and pesticides are to be used in strict accordance with any and all local authority
requirements or restrictions, and with the manufacturer’s instructions at the recommended rates.
Herbicides may only be applied by a qualified contractor, certified specifically for herbicide
applications.

Prior to using herbicides, considerations for public use of the space and perceptions of the activities
must be made. Application methods, and timing of works, will be chosen to minimise public
exposure to chemicals.

In areas of public use, warning signage will be erected, advising of herbicide use in the area.

3.5.2 WEEDS IN LAWNS AND TURF

Aweed eradication program shall be implemented to all areas scheduled for lawn and planting.
Following topsoil placement, fine grading, and the installation of a fully functioning irrigation system
(where applicable), establish a regular watering program that will encourage germination and
growth of weeds over a two to three-week period to remove weed seed bank from the soil.

The Contractor shall wait an additional one to three weeks, depending on extent of weed
desiccation, to remove residual weed foliage and roots prior to the planting and seeding operations.

3.5.3 Noxious WEEDS
Al declared noxious weeds (ref CALP Act) are to be identified within the approved weed
management plan and should be removed or treated accordingly following best practice
management techniques.

Control will occur prior to the commencement of landscaping works and management will continue
until handover, as per the site’s Weed Management Plan.

3.6 PEST ANIMAL MANAGEMENT
Please note: Contact should be made with the appropriate Council representative regarding pest
animal control.

An approved Pest Animal Management Plan shall be followed and implemented throughout the
landscape works period. This plan will advise on best practice management techniques to control
pest animal species.

The Pest Animal Management Plan s to incorporate:
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o Assessment and identification of established pest animal species, on the site and across the
extent of the property,

e Pestanimal management actions to be undertaken prior to landscape works and throughout
construction phase,

Recommended ongoing pest animal management practices, following completion of
landscape works.

3.6.1 RABBIT CONTROL

Were the presence of rabbits has been identified within the site’s Pest Animal Management Plan,
best practice rabbit control is to occur. Control is to occur across the entirety of the site, including
conservation reserves, water corridors, and areas within future stages of development.

Best practice management of rabbit control requires integrated control techniques, including
baiting, ripping and fumigating, to occur during the correct season.

Rabbit control may only be undertaken by a qualified contractor, certified specifically for chemical
baiting, fumigation and the use of machinery used for mechanical warren destruction.

Control techniques must consider site specifics, including but not limited to:

e Public use of the space and perception of activities
e Environmental assets and native vegetation

e Risks of harm to off-target animal

o Cultural heritage values

Sites are to be free from rabbit warrens prior to handover.

In sites where rabbit activity is present post warren removal, exclusion fencing will be required to
protect newly planted vegetation and turf. Installation and maintenance of exclusion fences will be
the responsibility of the developer/contractor.

Rabbit exclusion fencing will meet the following minimum standards:

e Use of 105 x 4 x 1.4' standard rabbit netting. That is, 105 cm width, 4 cm mesh diameter, 1.4
mm wire diameter

o Rabbit netting must reach at least 88cm above the ground

e Fences must include a skirt, of a minimum of 17cm, buried on the outside of exclusion area

o Pegsare to be used to secure the lower skirt of the fence to the ground

o suitable rabbit-proof gates should be placed at all breaks in the fence.

e The support fence should be able to withstand native animal impacts.

4.0 GARDEN BEDS
4.1 GARDEN BED CONSTRUCTION

All garden beds must be excavated to a minimum depth of 300mm. Where possible, site soil should
be stockpiled and used for the garden beds. Subgrade within planting areas s to be ripped to a
minimum depth of 150mm and cultivated with gypsum at a rate of 2.5kg/m2. All soil, whether
existing on site or imported must meet the requirements as stated below.
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4.1.1EXISTING SoIL
Referto 2.4

The subsoil is to be graded and lightly compacted to re-establish a finished soil level of a minimum of
300mm below paving level throughout. The soil is to be evenly compacted throughout to
approximately 70% modified maximum dry density.

Supply and place 200mm minimum depth of approved garden soil, to establish a finished grade that
is 100mm below paving and general levels throughout. Supply and place 75mm depth of approved
mulch.

Min, 75mm approved Muich.

'200mm approved imported
orsite fopsoil.

FNin. 200mm

T~ Subsoll to be ripped and

\u cultivated to 150mm depth
L \Win. 300mm

Existing subgrade.

Note:
Topsoilshall be free from stones greater than 25mm.

4.3 GARDEN EDGING

4.3.1 SPADE EDGING

Mulch as specified
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4.3.1 TIMBER EDGING

100x25mm H4 treated pine edging.

20mm

Garden bed / path profile detailed elsewhere.
500x75x25mm H4 treated pine pegs at 1.0m centres.

Note:

Timber edging to be secured at 1.0m centres to pegs with
galavanised screws. Pegs shall be 20mm below the top of
edging. Joints shall be made by bridging the abutting
lengths with an additional section of edging set 20mm below
the top of the abutting lengths - peg shall be no more than
300mm each side of the join.

NOTE: Steel Metal edging may also be used instead of the standard timber edging. Check
manufacturer's specification regarding installation. If using steel edging it MUST NOT be installed
so that its top edge is flush with mown lawn surfaces. Steel edging may only be used if installed a
um of 100mm proud of lawn surfaces to avoid mower blade strikes.

4.4 MULCH

4.4.1 GARDEN BED MULCH:

Mulch for all planting areas shall be bark mulch or otherwise approved by Council. 80% of particles
shall be in the size range 20-35mm in plan, and 5-10mm in thickness. No particle is to exceed 50mm
in plan. Mulch is to be free of weed material and seed, debris and foreign matter.

Contractor is to submit a 5kg bag sample to the Council Representative for approval, prior to
delivery to site. All mulch used shall comply with the approved sample.

The Contractor shall spread a 75mm thickness of approved mulch on all garden beds and 150mm
thickness of mulch on all trees in accordance with Council's detailed specifications. The stems of all
plants shall be kept free of mulch to protect the stem from possible rot.

NB: Mulch found to contain any recycled building materidls (i.e. chipboard, pine pallet etc.) will be
rejected.

4.4.2 PLAY AREA MULCH:
The design of all play areas shall incorporate an approved subgrade drainage system connected to a
stormwater system.
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Generally, the subgrade system shall comprise subsoil drains surrounded by drainage screenings to
minimum depth of 100mm all around. Subgrade levels shall be formed to fall to drains, allowing for
required depth of play area mulch.

Details of play area drainage shall form part of the landscape plan submissions for review and
approval.

Mulch to playground areas shall comply with the Australian Standard AS4685.1:2004 for soft-fall
mulch, placed at a minimum 300mm depth under all equipment and to all fall zones.

Approved softfall mulch
/ Geotextile drainage fabric
Drainage screenings

/ 90mm Dia. slotted AG drainage pipe

5.0 PLANTING
5.1 SHRUB & GROUNDCOVERS

5.1.1 PLANT STOCK QUALITY:

Trunks, stems and branches to be:
e Freeof pests and pathogens;

Free of conspicuous scarring. Any scars must be healed;

Free of splitting of canes or trunks at branching points. Free of dead wood or dead

branches;

Well formed, sturdy and well rooted; stable, self-supporting in the container, can be

installed in the ground without staking;

Sufficiently ‘hardened-off’ to resist prevailing winds and other climatic conditions following

installation;

Exhibiting a dominant central leader and generally even canopy form.

Foliage to be:
e Freeof pests and pathogens;
o Reasonable free of any chlorosis, yellowing or poor chlorophyll formation, as well as
blemishes from pest damage;
e Cleaned of all dust and fertilizer residue and presentin a representative way of the species.
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The root system to be:
o Welldeveloped and free of pests and pathogens;
Welldistributed throughout the container, so that the roots visibly extend on all sided to the
inside face of the container and are not ‘pot-bound’ ie. swirling the container.

5.1.2 SHRUB & GROUNDCOVER PLANTING TECHNIQUES/PROCEDURES

Excavate planting holes in accordance with the planting diagram below Excess excavated soil shall be
evenly spread throughout planting areas by the Contractor.

Mix 12 month slow release fertilizer granules with the broken up soil. Do not use granules on species
which may be intolerant of fertilizer. Use appropriate fertilizers for indigenous (low PH) or non
indigenous plants.

The Contractor shall be responsible for the handling and planting of trees and in particular shall
prevent protect the root mass from all forms of damage during the planting operations.

All planting setouts shall conform to the planting documentation in specified densities, sizes and
numbers. Any change to plant set out to be approved by the Site Representative and Council
Representative.

e Post hole diggers must not be used. The contractor must ensure there is no glazing of the
sides of the holes as a result of the method of digging the hole.

e Allhessian and other packaging material must be removed prior to planting.

e Prior to planting, water the plant in the pot and fill the planting hole with water.

e Ensure the hole is backfilled immediately on the placement of the plant.

Specified shrub

Top of rootball level

Excavate hole large enough to with sol.

provide a 75mm - 100mm
clearanca around rootball. Post

hole diggers not to be used. 75mm depth approved mulch
Backfill with approved topsoil. Mulch to be feathered away
Hole to be no deeper than from stems.
height of rootball.

Fertiliser to be mixed with
backfilled soil around rootball.

5.2 REVEGETATION PLANTING

Areas of revegetation will be identified within the site landscape plan. These areas require specific
management that differs from street trees and amenity plantings.
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Revegetation locations, designs and species lists will be approved within the landscape plan of the
project. Council may refuse handover when revegetation areas are not in accordance with the
landscape plan or do not meet the following standards intended to maximise their survival.

o Timing
e Revegetation is to be undertaken as early as practicable during the project
construction
o Plantingis to be undertaken during optimal planting conditions to maximise plant
growth
o Plants
e Tube stockis preferred for planting in revegetation areas
o Plants used in revegetation sites are to be locally indigenous species sourced from
local provenance stock.

o Design and species selection

o Species selection will be primarily based on the site’s traditional ecological
vegetation class (EVC) and site-specific factors.

o Site preparation

o Revegetation sites are to be prepared to encourage optimal growth of species. This
may include cultivation or importation of high-quality soil to improve the quality of
the planting site.

o Areas of revegetation must be clear of all debris and contaminated soils

o Weed control

o Revegetation sites are to be free from weeds prior to planting. Weed control must
be undertaken between 2 and 4 weeks prior to planting to ensure satisfactory die-
off of weeds.

Weed control is to be undertaken throughout revegetation sites until the
completion of the handover process. Weeds must not be allowed to impinge on the
survival or growth of revegetation stock

o Density/spacing

o Density of planting will be in accordance with the site landscape plan. Planting
density will allow for plants to achieve their maximum size without disruption to
other plants or assets.

o Where possible, large-growing plants are to be scattered throughout revegetation
areas.

o Planting specifics

e Tube stockis to be planted to a depth that the top of the potting tube sits 1cm

below ground level
e Tree Guards

o All revegetation plants are to be protected with a corflute plastic tree guard, held in
place with 3 hardwood stakes

o Stakes are to be installed to a depth that the top of the stake is no more than 10cm
above the top of the tree guard

o Regular maintenance of revegetation areas is required to ensure guards remain
secured

e Asoutlined in section 3.0, in areas of observed rabbit activity, exclusion fencing may
be required at the perimeter of revegetation areas
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e Mulching
o Where possible, revegetation sites should be mulched to preserve soil moisture and
restrict weed growth. Mulch must be free from weeds and pathogens
o Biodegradable weed matting may be appropriate in some situations
e Handover standards
o Prior to handover, revegetation areas will be inspected by Council to ensure they are
in accordance with the landscaping plan
o Revegetated areas will be held to a 24 month maintenance period. At the
completion of this period a 5% plant failure rate will be considered acceptable.

5.3 TREE PLANTING

Please note: Locations of existing utilities networks must be obtained from Dial Before You Dig Ph:
1100 prior to any excavation taking place on public land. Any damage to utilities will be the
responsibility if the developer.

General:

Ataminimum, provide one advanced street tree in the centre of each residential allotment
ina high density subdivision;

o Where the allotment is to be used for unit development and a central crossoveris proposed,
place a street tree on either side of the crossover;

o Where practical, provide consistent, equal spacing between trees;

e Locate trees along nature strip centre line where possible;

Ataminimum, spacing between trees to be no less than 8-10m for small trees, 10-12m for
medium sized trees, and 12-15m for larger trees.

o Treesin parks and reserves must be located at least 3m apart and 3m from garden beds and
fixed structures to allow for future mowing.

e The planting of tubestock or smaller street trees may be considered in special
circumstances.

Trees to residential streets to be planted a minimum distance from the following:

e 1.2m from pedestrian pathways;
e 2.0m from pedestrian pathways in reserves;

o 3m from driveways;

e 4m from power poles;

«  4m from light poles;

e 2m from service assets, including junction boxes, pits etc
e 2m from service conduit crossin
o 3m from fire plugs;

e 2m from domestic service tapping points; and
o 2m from storm water outlet points.

N.B. Where these distances are not attainable, root barriers may be appropriate in some instances
and on the advice of a relevant professional with approval for the council representative.
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5.3.1 TREE PLANTING AND STAKING IN RESERVES AND NATURE STRIPS.

Please note: Locations of existing utilities networks must be obtained from Dial Before You Dig Ph:
1100 prior to any excavation on public land.

Wooden or recycled plastic stakes only are to be used. No metal stakes are permitted in any
circumstances. Tree ties are to be 50mm wide Hessian ties, secured to each of the stakes. No ‘shoe
string’ or nylon ties are permitted.

5.3.2 INTERSECTION SITE DISTANCES AND CLEAR ZONES

The diagrams below are the Austroads guide to ‘Clear Zones’ at road intersections.

For traffic safety, the Approach Distances (ASD) shown should be retained in all instances where the
speed limit on the major road is 60km/hr or above. However, the vast majority of intersections are
on minor residential roads where the speed limit is restricted to 50kmy/hr. In this instance, the

distance may be safely reduced to 10m.

GIVEWAY INTERSECTION

ASD ASD-

LANE G—FK—— Hw f —

ASD ASD

ASD = APROACH SITE DISTANCE E
(Refer Austroads guide

Intersections at Grade") \\\\ INTERSECTION CLEAR ZONE

i\

ASD = 40m @50km/hr 7 - No tree planting to occur within
ASD = 55m @ 60km/hr W this zone

ASD = 70m @ 70km/hr I

AASD = 80m @ 80km/hr

Note: ASD on the terminating road can be reduced to 10m at intersections between two 50km/hr
roads only
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5.3.3 TREE STAKING

Street tree

50mm wide Hessian ties wrapped around trunk at

1/3 tree height and stapled /nailed to stakes

allowing some trunk movement. Looped in figure
of '8'as shown.

3 No. 50X50X2400mm H.W. or recycled plastic
stakes set vertically and clear of rootball and
minimum 800mm into ground. Stakes are to be
offset from the nearest underground services a
‘minimum of 200mm to ensure no damage is caused
to underground services.Place stakes to best
support tree from prevailing winds.

Industrial Estates: Tree stakes should be a minimum of 75 x 75 x 2400mm. It is also suggested
that 4 stakes be used to minimize truck damage to street trees.
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Tree watering (1): Immediately sfter planting, free
shell be watered thoroughy regardiess of weather
canditions. Quantity of waler will be adequate to
salurate the root bal (o its core.

Tree watering (2): post planting, provide a minimum of
15 ltres of water (for tree In a 45 Iire pof) o the newly
planted tree per 7 days. Water at & slow rate s0 as not
o displace muich. For trees in pot sizs larger than 45
fitres, provide quantity of water on third of that pot size.

Al frees to be healthy specimens free of pests and
diseases. Trees to be well watered a maximum of
24 hours pricr Io planting.

(3) 50x50x2400mm hardwood or recyclad plastc stakes
set vertically and clear of rootball and minimum 800mm
info ground. Stakes are to be offset from the nearest
underground services a minimum of 200mm to ensure no
damage is caused to undarground services.

(3) 50mm wide Hessian ties wrapped around trunk at 1/3
tree height and stapled /nailed to stakes allowing some
frunk movement.

P
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Create dish 1o keep mulch clear of tree trunk.

topo ot bl it s el f aing o
Install 26L, black ‘greenwell’ water well as per
manufactureres instructions

150mm depth of approved mulch shall be spread a
minimum of 1200mm diameter from centre of tree and
beyond the edge of the planting hole, overtapping

5 undistrurbed soil.

Excavate a shallow planting hole wilh sioping sides 3
times the width of the root ball and break-up sides and
base. Refirm base (see nole below). Top of rootball
must be at the same height as surrounding level.
Backll with 50/50 blend imported topsailsite topsoil
broken up to friable texture, firming progressively.
Slow release fertliser (for exotic species only).

Lightly compact soil under rootball to prevent setfling.

Water retaining product to be mixed info backfilled
soll as por manufacturers specifications.

SRPIT
RO

Note: It is the responsibility of the contractor to confirm the location of all
underground services prior to commencement of any excavation or staking works.

5.4 TREE SPECIFICATIONS

When selecting trees to be planted, it is
the tree height and calliper ratio falls wi

Options available for tree planting:

the responsibility of the Site Representative to ensure that
thin the parameters of the Size Index table below.

Tree species, size, type and planting locations will be endorsed in the approved Landscaping Plan.
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5.4.1 ADVANCED TREES

Trees must be a minimum of 1.8m in height and a minimum pot size of 451. The calliper of the tree
must be calculated and must fit within the parameters of the table below.

Calliper: The stem o trunk diameter measured at a nominated point, generally 300mm above soil
level.

Trees that fall below the Size Index are to be rejected by the Site Representative. To calculate the
size index the following formula must be used:

Below: Size Index, Product of tree height (m)  tree calliper (mm).

Pot Size in
Litres Size Index
(mm)

45 (500mm) | 57-74

60 77-99
75 83107
100 111143
150 154 — 200
200 194 — 251

5.4.2 TUBESTOCK

Tubestock must be supplied in 150mm forestry tubes, or as specified in the plant schedule, and
where the species are indigenous to the local region they shall be propagated from local provenance
seed only. Species shall be true to form and shall not be taller than 500mm above the tube.

All trees are to be fully maintained by the developer for a 24 month period following Practical
Completion sign off by Council.

5.4.3 TREE DATA
As planted tree data for all street and formal parks (excluding revegetation works),
developer/contractor is to provide GPS coordinates in an excel spreadsheet, and at a minimum most
include:

e Tree species (botanical and common)

«  GPS coordinate (MGA 94/55)

o Size of planted stock

e Expected mature canopy coverage

6.0 LAWN AREAS
6.1 GRASSING

The following table provides a summary of approved grass species.

Moorabool Shire Council - Landscape Design Manual - 22




image139.png
Dryland / Summer mix: for use in parks, | 70% Kikuyu, 15% Rye and 15% Tall
nature strips and open space reserves in | fescue.

the Bacchus Marsh area (except sporting | Alternate blends or seeding techniques
grounds or adjacent to a waterway). will be considered and must be
approved by the Council Representative.

Sport and recreational areas and areas | 50% Premier Rye Blend with 50% warm
west of Myrniong. season grass (Couch).

Alternate blends or seeding techniques
will be considered and must be
approved by the Council Representative.

Wetland and Waterways Indigenous natives only. Couch and
kikuyu is not to be used in areas
adjoining waterways, wetlands, or areas
of native vegetation.

NB. The maximum slope for grassing is 1:6 to cater for mowing requirements.
A concrete mowing strip shall be provided to all lawn areas abutting a wall. The mowing strip shall
be 150mm wide and 75mm in depth smooth trowelled concrete, over 50mm FCR base.

For any works within the Environmental Overlay e.g. along waterways, indigenous native grasses
should be used. The proposed seed mix shall be prepared and approved by the council
representative. The Relevant Catchment management Authority approval must be obtained if
applicable.

Prior to grassing, all soil preparation work shall be completed in accordance with approved project
specification clauses.

Instant turf or sprigging is Council’s preferred method of grassing, however, hydro-mulch using the
approved seed mixes shown above is acceptable. For the site to be handed over to Council, a
minimum standard must be followed to meet Council specifications. Hydro-mulch must not be used
throughout the summer months unless it is to be straw mulched or equivalent treatment and
watered twice weekly.

All waterways and native vegetation must be protected from overspray of slurry.

6.1.1 NATURE STRIPS
Nature strip treatment is a requirement of the streetscape landscaping plan approval process.

Nature strip treatment includes grassing (as defined in “Lawn Areas’ of this document), except where
street trees and associated mulch rings are located.

In areas where building works are being undertaken, the establishment of nature strip grassing or
any other acceptable treatment approved by the Council Representative may be delayed for a
defined period of time. In these instances, PC can be approved for the overall landscape works
within the development and the 2 year maintenance period can commence prior to the grassing
occurring. However, the grass nature strips must be established with a 2nd cut, prior to the end of
the st year maintenance period. Failure, for any reason, to establish the nature strips within the
first year of maintenance, will lead to an extension of the maintenance period of the entire site.
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The Site Representative is responsible to ensure that, at all times, either prior to the grassing process
or after the seed, sprigging or turfing has been undertaken, the site is in a clean and tidy condition,
free of rock, weed and rubbish and the grass mown.

Once the nature strips have been completed, the Site Representative is required to contact Council
and make arrangements for an inspection to be undertaken.

6.1.2 PARKS AND RESERVES

Anumber of options are available for grassing parks and reserves such as direct seeding, instant turf
or sprigging, however hydro mulch may be acceptable in some instances.

The grassed areas of all parks and reserves must be germinated and showing even coverage with no
significant bare patches and must be at second cut stage prior to Practical Completion.

Where lawn or turf has a particular designated use within a park (casual recreation, organised sport
and or picnicking etc.) it would be expected that the grass remains green and usable through the
year to meet performance expectations. As a result, some grass areas within the Shire (particularly
Bacchus Marsh) will require to be irrigated.

7.0 IRRIGATION
7.1 SYSTEMS COMPONENTS

Any areas to be irrigated need to be confirmed and approved by council. All ‘as built’ drawings are to
be submitted to Council by the site representative.

e Anyirrigation systems to be installed are to be sub surface.

«  Automatic controller, dual program 240V or solar power connection and associated control
wiring. Battery powered systems are not permitted.

o Irrigation systems need to abide by the permanent water saving restrictions.

«  Approved vandal resistant stainless steel irrigation controller enclosure located adjacent to
the backflow device position, and mounted on a 75mm thick concrete pad.

o Automatic rain shutoff device.

Commission the entire system and maintain against malfunction for a period of 24 months
from date of practical completion.

e Allsystems must be fitted with an inline filter system.

o Allsystems must integrate with the ‘Rainbird IQ-Cloud’ system.

7.2 SYSTEMS INSTALLATION

7.2.1 COMMISSIONING

The contractor must be responsible for the testing and satisfactory performance of the complete
irrigation system.

Moorabool Shire Council - Landscape Design Manual - 24




image3.png
Moorabool Shire Council

2019/2020 Financial Report
Table of Contents

ancial Report

FINANCIAL REPORT
Certification of the Financial Statements
Victorian Auditor-General's Office Report

Financial Statements
Comprehensive Income Statement
Balance Sheet

Statement of Changes in Equity
Statement of Cash Flows
Statement of Capital Works

Overview
Notes to Financial Statements

Note ! Performance against budget
1. Income and expenditure
1.2. Capital works
Note2  Analysis of Council resutts by program
Note3  Funding for the delivery of our services
3.1. Rates and charges
3.2. Statutory fees and fines
3.3. User fees
3.4. Funding from other levels of government
3.5. Contributions
3.6. Netloss on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
3.7. Otherincome
Noted4  The costof delivering services
4.1. Employee costs
4.2. Materials and services
4.3. Depreciation
4.4. Amortisation - right of use assets
4.5. Bad and doubtful debts
4.6. Borrowing costs
4.7. Finance costs — leases
4.8. Other expenses




image141.png
7.2.2 STATIC TESTS

Prior to commissioning, ensure valve stations close satisfactorily. Pipe work and fittings to be
pressure tested to the satisfaction of the Council Representative to ensure there are no water
leaks in the system prior to control valve installation.

7.2.3 COMMISSIONING PROCEDURE

Upon completion of the above static tests in the presence of the Council representative, the system
is to be commissioned in accordance with the following procedure:

«  Open each valve to test irrigation system operation. During this procedure, only one valve

station is to be open at any one time.
o Test the system by continuous operation for a minimum of 3 minutes for each valve.

7.2.4 CLEAN SITE

Upon completion of the contract, leave the site in a tidy condition, free from rubbish and
surplus excavated materials to the satisfaction of the Council Representative.

7.2.5 COMPLETION

Complete contracted work in accordance with contract documents and written variation orders
issued by the Council Representative.

7.2.6 GUARANTEE

Allirrigation work shall be guaranteed by a written Certificate of Guarantee provided at the time
of hand over.

7.3 AS-BUILT DRAWINGS - IRRIGATION

An instruction manual must be provided to the Council Representative with a copy of the as-
built drawings when applying for the Certificate of Practical Completion.

Drawings are to clearly and accurately show mainline pipe runs and sizes, valve types and
controller locations, all dimensioned from fixed structures such as buildings, kerbs etc. All As-
built data must comply with O-spec as per section 11.3.

Clearly and accurately notate dimensions of control valve and gate valve locations. Provide two

sets of as-built irrigation drawings and the controller box key to the Council Representative at
the handover inspection.

7.4 MAINTENANCE MANUAL

All component literature shall be compiled into a well organised folder and submitted to the
Council Representative in preparation for final handover.
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8.0 PLAYGROUNDS

8.2 PLAYGROUND CONSTRUCTION

All playgrounds must include sub-surface drainage. It is the responsibility of the Site Representative
to inspect the site during construction and to sign off on the drainage prior to the installation of soft
fall mulch or other suitable treatment. The Site Representative must supply a copy of the Safety
Audit and a list of all Compliance Certificates prior to the issue of Practical Completion.

Prior to the inspection by the Council Representative for both Practical Completion and Hand Over:

e Allhard landscape equipment must be cleaned and in good working order. Keys, where
appropriate, are to be handed to Council prior to Handover;

o Alltimber railings and timber park furniture, must be cleaned and oiled;

e All graffiti removed and surfaces re-finished as necessary; and

o Allirrigation systems must be flushed and in good working order. The keys are to be handed
to Council prior to Handover.

8.3 PLAYGROUND SAFETY

According to Kidsafe Victoria, whilst play is essential for children’s growth, development and
learning and that play spaces encourage physical activity, stimulate children’s curiosity and
imagination and provide opportunities for social interaction; there is a risk of injury associated with
playgrounds and they need to be considered in playground design.

Hazards include:
e Height of fall from equipment
e Inadequate guardrails
e Inadequate safe play surfaces
e Entrapment hazards
o Trip hazards, objects that protrude, and pinch points
e Inadequate maintenance of equipment
Equipment that is not recommended for use in playgrounds, such as plank swings, boat
swings, roundabouts, maypoles, climbing rockets and old machinery.

The Australian Standards for Playgrounds should be consulted by anyone planning, designing,
building or maintaining a playground. It is important to note that the Australian Standards are a
minimum benchmark.

Council will not consider any playgrounds that do not meet the minimum benchmark, and reserves

the right to reject or request modification to installations if it believes there is a potential or
perceived risk.

8.4 EQUIPMENT REQUIREMENTS

8.4.1 AUSTRALIAN STANDARDS
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All equipment and fall zones should comply with all relevant Australian Standards including but not
limited to AS/NZS 4685, 4422, 4486. Evidence to be provided detailing full compliance when
submitting plans to Council for approval.

8.4.2 EQUIPMENT LAYoUT

e Allseparate pieces of equipment shall be installed within the one soft fall area.

e Spacing of 1500mm between equipment pieces where possible for maintenance equipment
to access area to maintain soft fall.

e Consideration given to the layout of equipment to minimise the size of the soft fall area,
whilst maintaining fall zones required.

«  Consideration given to paths of travel of children using the playground to avoid clashes with
swing paths, slide runoffs and track ride paths.

e Consideration given to shape of the area to ensure it is easy to mow and maintain around
the edges.

8.4.3 EQUIPMENT HEIGHT

Where suitable, play equipment s to be installed to a depth that allows the compacted soft fall
(250mm deep) to finish flush with existing ground level, and consequently any soft fall indicator
plates.

Therefore excavation will be required to achieve a depth of 250mm across the playground area (with
relevant fall for drainage) for the installation of soft fall, with the top of the edging to finish flush
with the existing ground level.

8.5 INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS

8.5.1 INSTALLER

All equipment must be installed in accordance with the relevant Australian Standards and the
manufacturer’s recommendations.

8.5.2 EDGING

Where the site is suitable, the top of the edging is to finish flush with existing ground surface. It is to
be 175mm wide X 200mm high 20 MPa concrete (with 10mm trowlled radius top edges) installed
over 50mm consolidated depth of class 2 20mm NDFCR over sub base.

8.5.3 DRAINAGE

Within excavated playground soft fall area, sub grade with min 1:50 (2%) fall needs to drain to a
central spine with 100mm agricultural pipe with geotextile sleeve installed in a 150mm (min depth)
trench with 20mm screenings to a legal point of discharge. Drainage plans to be provided to Council
on completion of project. Swale/Table drains may be required around the site to direct surface
water away from the playground.
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8.5.4 SOFT FALL

The certified playground mulch is to be installed at depth of 300mm to allow for settling and
compaction over time to 250mm, in order to meet minimum Australian Standard of 200mm.

The extent of the soft fall area needs to comply with manufacturer's requirements and all relevant
Australian Standards and certification provided to Council.

8.5.5SpoIL

As excavation s required, suitable spoil (upon Council’s approval) is to be spread onsite to Council
requirements to back fill to concrete edging. Any additional and/or unsuitable spoil will be required
to be removed from site.

8.5.6 SITE SAFETY

During construction, site is to be fully parawebbed to protect park users. Parawebbing is to remain in
place until the playground has been signed off by a Playground Auditor and Moorabool Shire Council
Officers.

8.5.7 SITE REINSTATEMENT

All rubbish, loose concrete o excess building materials shall be removed from site and clean
excavated spoil free of rocks and debris in excess of 50mm size used to backfill to concrete edging.
Compact spoil and finish by top dressing with topsoil (100mm deep) to 25mm below top of edging.
Finish with hardy lawn seed to suppliers recommendation.

8.6 PROCESS

The specifier/designer shall prepare and submit the following information for Council’s approval
prior to ordering or installing equipment:

a) Ascaled diagram of the reserve showing the location and dimensions of soft fall areas, the
topography or levels of the land or equipment.

b) The existing and proposed site immediately surrounding the equipment (eg existing and
proposed trees, seats, picnic facilities, water bodies, roads etc) within a minimum 50 metre
radius.

¢) Any proposed drainage or services to the equipment.

d) The type, depth and details for containment of any undersurfacing.

e) Details of any proposed fencing and gates.

f) The brand, model number, colours, and accompanying illustrations, photos or list of
individual components of the playground equipment.

g) Any additional information that the specifier/designer thinks is relevant.

h) Final plans and installer details.

Please note: On completion of playground installation, a Playground Auditor is to provide written
confirmation of the playground’s compliance with Australian Standards prior to hand over. It would
be worthwhile checking proposed plans with Playground Auditor prior to installation to ensure
compliance post construction.
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8.7 ADDITIONAL PARK ELEMENTS

Consideration needs to be given to:

8.7.1 SHADE

Natural shade will be developed through the planting of appropriate tree species in and around play
spaces.

If shade is required in a built form, a shelter may be provided with prior council agreement.

Shade can be provided within the play elements of a play space by maximising roof coverage and
undercover / under-deck spaces.

8.7.2 BARRIERS AND FENCING

Play spaces will be developed as an integral part open public spaces where barriers are minimised
and seamless movement to and from the play space into the surrounding setting can occur.

Barriers may be considered where:
Animmediate safety concern exists alongside a road or similar danger.
e In some complementary play spaces that offer confined play for groups of young children

and/or some types of disability.
o Separation of activities is justified through a planning process.

9.0 MISCELLANEOUS WORKS
9.1 WETLAND ESTABLISHMENT

Refer to Melbourne Water Guidelines, ‘Constructed Wetland Systems: Design Guidelines for
Developers’. All wetlands must be constructed to Melbourne Water guidelines.

http://www.melbournewater.com.au/content/library/wsud/Melbourne_Water_Wetland_Design_G
uide.pdf

As built drawings of all waterways must be provided to Moorabool Shire Council.

9.2 PATHWAYS

9.2.1 GRAVEL PATHS
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Where gravel material such as Granitic sand is used, the gravel must be stabilised. Pathway
widths will vary however must be a minimum of 1500mm wide. In some circumstances timber
edging will not be required.

100mm Compacted depth of 3% cement stabilised granitic:
gravel foppings as specified fo be installed in two layers.
Each layer to be watsred in and compacted s specified.
~————— Approved timber edge (refer to timber edge detall).

~— Lawn/garden bed

SO

100mm Compacted depth of Class 3, 20mm Nom. size F.C.R.
Weed-mat barrier
Existing subgrade to be proaf rolled & any obvious st or
‘spongy areas are fo be excavated & replaced with
compacted granular fill material to the satisfaction of the
‘superintendent.

Typ. 1.5% - 2% Crowned crossfall,
‘raining towards a low point.

9.2.2 CONCRETE PATHS
Concrete paths must be constructed to Council specifications. The detail below is for a shared

path of 2.5m in width, however some footpaths may be narrower but must be constructed as
per the detail below and approved by Moorabool Shire Council.
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1in 100
[ RN 2z}
15 5
125mm THICK 25 MPa concrete
5162 Mesh placed on bar
chairs (40mm top cover)
50mm Compacted depth of Class 3,

20mm Nom. size fine crushed rock.

Notes:

01. Concrete strength is 25MPa.

02. Council's pram crossing detall to be used at roadways

03. Concrete finish to be light broom finish with edges
neatly tooled after the broom is applied ( no bullnoses ).

04, Shared path to have 30mm deep sawcut joints at 2.5
metre centres ( no tooled joints ) and expansion joints
at 12metres max.

05. All surfaces must comply with AS4586 - siip resistance
classification of new pedestrian surface materials.

08. Any exposed aggregate surface finish to be achieved
by sandblasting after at least 48hours curing time.

07. N12mm dia. deformed Dowell bars at 450mm crs. to
join old concrete to new when reinstating broken
footpath or as directed by Council officer.

08. Expansion joints to be constructed at 12m max. cirs.
and one bay either side of vehicle crossings.

09. Remedial grass saeding to any areas of grass damagad
as a result of construction works.

10. Where permission is granted o use coloured concrets
strength to be 32MPa.

9.3 INFRASTRUCTURE

All hard landscape elements, including BBQ facilities, shade shelters, lighting, playground
equipment, furniture and paving must be installed in accordance with the approved plan details
prior to the issuing of the PC Certificate.

Compliance Certificates for all installations must be provided to the Council Representative at
that time.

9.3.1PAVING

The Site Representative is responsible to ensure that all paving and/or concrete works, including
paths, basketball courts, granitic gravel paths or paving is constructed according to Australian
Standards and have been inspected and signed off at all relevant HP stages during the
construction process.

Moorabool Shire Council — Landscape Design Manual - 31




image148.png
9.4 ESTATE ENTRANCE FEATURES

All entrance features are discouraged however; if developed and approved must be located
wholly within private property. Council will not be responsible for the maintenance of estate
entrance features and must be removed prior to hand over.

10.0 CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTATION
10.1 SITE REPRESENTATIVE

All documents should be submitted electronically in Microsoft word or PDF format. Prior to the
commencement of the landscaping works, a pre-commencement meeting must be arranged on site
by the Site Representative to meet with the Council Representative.

The Site Representative, as identified at this meeting, will then be responsible for all construction
works, landscape establishment and maintenance of the site and will be the point of contact for
Council officers.

Please note that 14 days notice must be given for site meetings unless otherwise agreed.

10.2 CONSTRUCTION INSPECTIONS AND HOLD POINTS

During Construction of all landscaping, both hard and soft, The Site Representative must attend the
site and sign off on all construction Hold Points. This signed and dated document, including photo
evidence, must then be presented to Council prior to Practical Completion.

i. Pre-commencement meeting with Council
Site preparation
iii. Hard infrastructure preparation
e Retaining Walls
e Pavement areas
o Boardwalks
e Structures
e Rock beaching
o Irrigation systems
e Drainage systems
iv. Soil preparation
e lawns areas
o Garden beds
®  Nature strips
v. Construction
o Water bodies, Wetlands and waterways
e Feature mounding
vi. Inspection of plant stock
e Trees
e Wetland plants
e Garden bed plants
vii. Planting ~planting has been done to Council specifications
Mulch— type and depth of mulch
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ix. Watering in.

11.0 PRACTICAL COMPLETION, MAINTENANCE AND
HANDOVER

No contractors are to be present on site during Coun Representative must be
present for all Pre-commencement, Practical Completion and Handover inspections.

11.1 PRACTICAL COMPLETION OBLIGATIONS

The Site Representative must contact the Council Representative when all works have been
completed in accordance with the approved plans to arrange for an inspection by the Council
Representative. A minimum of 7-14 working days notice must be allowed.

No partial Practical Completion Certificates will be issued except in special circumstances and as
previously agreed by Council. No Practical Completions will be accepted during the period, between
30 November and 1 March. A signed checklist, Appendix 1, must be submitted to Council before the
arranged inspection date.

Construction documentation must be provided to Council prior to Practical Completion. This
documentation must include:
e The required Construction Inspection checklists signed off and dated by the Site
Representative;
e Building Permits and Structural Engineering compliance where necessary;
e Playground Audit.

The Site Representative must also submit a maintenance plan to Council 7-14 days prior to the
inspection date. This plan must then be approved by the relevant Council Representative.

The Council will notify the Site Representative in writing of any deficiencies and the works must be
completed within two to four weeks of notification as specified by the Council Representative.

Once defects have been completed to Councils satisfaction a maintenance schedule will be issued to
the Site Representative for the 24 month maintenance period.

When the works have been completed, the Site Representative will make an appointment for the
Council representative to revisit the site. A Certificate of Practical Completion (PC) will only be issued
when all works have been completed to the satisfaction of Council.

The Maintenance Schedule will include the expected date of final Handover (HO) which will be at
such time when the site has been maintained for a period of two years from the date of PC. Al
endorsed landscaping plans attract an 24 month maintenance period.

A maintenance diary outlining scheduled maintenance for the site must be available for inspection.
As built plans must be submitted in both PDF and AutoCad format (or a format required by Council)

prior to the issue of the Practical Completion Certificate and the subsequent release of the
outstanding works landscaping bonds.
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11.2 MAINTENANCE OBLIGATIONS

* The Site Representative must ensure that all works forming part of the endorsed plans
are maintained in accordance with the Maintenance Checklists (appendix 2) for a
minimum period of twenty-four (24) months, unless otherwise stated in the Schedule.

* The Site Representative must provide a signed and dated Maintenance Checklist,
Appendix 2, to Council every three (3) months during the maintenance period. Failure to
provide this information or the provision of incorrect information may result in the
extension of the maintenance period.

*  Council Representatives will regularly inspect the site during the maintenance period
and any defects will be communicated to the Site Representative in writing. Works must
then be completed within two (2) weeks or as specified by the Council Representative.
Failure to complete the works in the specified timeframe may lead to the extension of
the maintenance period.

* The maintenance period will commence on the date of issue of the Statement of
Compliance for all, or that particular stage, of a subdivision only where the landscape
works have been completed to the satisfaction of the Site Representative. Where the
landscape works are bonded the maintenance period shall commence from the time
that the landscape works have been inspected and completed to the satisfaction of the.
Site Representative.

11.3 AS-BUILT DRAWINGS - O-SPEC STANDARD SPECIFICATION

The key objectives of the O-SPEC initiative is to streamline stake holders’ (local
government/utilities/water authorities) processes for receiving, handling, validating and
storing of data related to newly constructed (either from subdivision developments or capital
works) or existing infrastructure assets in their GIS and AMIS.

0O-Spec details the specific requirements and attributes relating to assets within Open Space
and Recreational Reserves and is to be used as a reference for the supply of As Constructed
digital data.

The Developer will deliver all as built data to Council in the current/latest version of the O-
Spec Specification.

11.4 HANDOVER OBLIGATIONS

o The Site Representative must provide a signed and dated Handover Checklist, Appendix 3,
prior to the handover site meeting.

«  No partial handover will be undertaken except in specific circumstances and as previously
agreed by the Council Representative.
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o Any trees or plantings that are not up to the required standards must be replaced and
monitored until such time as the Council Representative deems that the trees or plants are
of an acceptable standard for handover. Proof of planting date must be supplied. In these
instances, the maintenance period of 2 years may need to be extended.

Nohandovers will be accepted during the summer period, between 15 December and 15
January.

«  Upon the acceptance of the site by Council, a Handover Certificate will be issued to all
relevant stakeholders with a copy forwarded Parks and Gardens Department and to Finance
for release of any Bonds being held on the site.

e Itisalso the obligation of the Site Representative to provide the Certificate of Handover to
all relevant utility providers.

11.5BONDS

Where landscaping works forming part of the endorsed plans are not completed to the satisfaction
of the Council Representative prior to the Site Representative seeking Statement of Compliance for
all, or a particular stage of a subdivision, the Council Representative may issue a Statement of
Compliance where the works are appropriately bonded.

Where the Site Representative seeks a bond, the estimate for the cost of incomplete landscaping
works must be professionally costed by the Site Representative (or their Landscape Designers or
Contractors) and then be submitted to the Council Representative for approval. The estimate must
allow for; completion of all incomplete landscape works shown on the endorsed landscape plans,
and the maintenance of all the works for a minimum period of twenty-four (24) months (itemised
separately), and shall be to the value of 150% of the total cost of works and maintenance.

Bonding incomplete landscape works prior to a Statement of Compliance for the final stage of a
subdivision is discouraged and will only be issued at the discretion of the Council Representative.
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APPENDIX 1 - PRACTICAL COMPLETION CHECKLIST

This checklist s to be completed and submitted to the Council Representative prior to Practical Completion.

Information to be provided to council prior to Practical Completion.

a

o o o o

o

General

o oo oo oo o

o o o

o o o o

Maintenance Schedule
Construction Inspection checklists signed off and dated by the Site Representative
Building Permits and Structural Engineering compliance where necessary
Playground Audit

As-built plans in AutoCad format (or any other format required by Council)

OSPEC plans in Maplnfo TAB format and PDF format

Grass Areas General Grass Areas (E.g. Parks and Nature Strips and Reserves)
Nature strips are leveled, free of rock, rubbish and weeds.

Park and reserve area are seeded, turfed or sprigged. Al seed is germinated and showing an even coverage with
no bare patches and no areas of weed. The grass is at least second cut.

Grassed area s free of pests and pest animals, diseases and weeds.
Reserves, where minimal landscaping s required (such as reserves which are to be developed by Council as
District Open Space) are graded, free of weed, pest animals, rock and debris. Top soil has been applied and the

area seeded to Council satisfaction.

Garden Beds
Garden beds are in neat order and free of litter.

Garden beds are free of weeds, or any small weeds have been sprayed.
Garden bed edges are dlearly defined.

Any edging material between garden bed and path does not encroach onto path.
Any dead, diseased or missing plants have been replaced.

All shrubs and groundcovers are displaying healthy and vigorous growth.

Mulch is to a minimum 7Smm deep and covers whole garden bed.

Trees
Trees are securely staked with three stakes and flexible ties, refer Typical Detail GB4

Trees are correctly planted with top of root ball even with surrounding ground.

Alltrees have a mulched ring at least 1.2m in diameter and 150mm in depth. The mulch is clear of the trunk of
thetree.

All bowls at the base of the trees are well formed, free of weeds and allow for maximum water retention.
Any dead, diseased or severely vandalised trees have been replaced.
All weeds and suckering material have been removed.

Alltrees have a single straight leader. Trees will not be accepted with multiple leaders.
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a

Trees are planted at correct offset distances, as specified.
Trees are of sound structure and display good health and are free of disease and pests. Where die back, leaf
burn, windburn, vandalism etc has occurred, trees are to be monitored for recovery or replaced where

necessary.

Irrigation System
All components of system are functional.

Automatic controller stations have been set to seasonal settings.
Allirrigation systems have been flushed and are in good working order.

Wetland Systems

Refer to maintenance requirements contained in Melbourne Water documents listed in Technical Note MW1 Wetlands
Establishment. Council requires that all Melbourne Water Maintenance standards are to be met.

a

a

All wetland systems and surrounds are free of weeds, pest animals and liter.

Nowetland system is to include Typha sp. (Combungi) or Cyperus Involucratus (Umbrella Sedge).

Inlets are adequately rocked to prevent erosion around pipes and infrastructure.

Hard Landscape Features.

All hard landscape equipment is installed in accordance with the approved plans and all paths and pavements are

of sound construction and built to Council required standards.

Adequate drainage treatment has been added to the subgrade during playground construction. Add more
standards here

Site Representative

Name.

Company.
Contact detalls..

Signature.

Date.

Comments:
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APPENDIX 2 - MAINTENANCE CHECKLIST

This checklist s to be completed and submitted to the Council Representative every three months during the maintenance

period.

General Grass Areas (eg. Parks and Nature Strips and Reserves)

a

a

a

Nature strips prior to seeding are levelled, free of rock, rubbish and weed.

Maintaining lawns in recreational reserves to function as a Local or Neighbourhood Park within a height range of
50mm to 150mm for (This will typically require a minimum of 13 cuts peryear).

Removing and controlling broadieaf weed growth within lawn areas and garden beds using registered herbicides
and methods to the approval of the responsible authority.

Maintaining lawns in drainage and linear reserves (ie not functioning as local or neighbourhood Reserves) within
a height range of 75mm to 200mm (This will typically require a minimum of 4 cuts per year).

Removing builders rubbish, builder's stockpiles, domestic ltter, wind blown litter and litter dumped on site.

Nature strips after completion

a

Nature strips are mown, free of weed and rubbish.

Parks and Reserves

O Parkand reserve areas have been mown and showing an even coverage with no bare patches and are free of
weed.

O Maintaining lawns in recreational reserves to function as a Local or Neighbourhood Park within a height range of
50mm to 150mm for (This will typically require a minimum of 13 cuts per year).

O Removing and controlling broadleaf weed growth within lawn areas and garden beds using registered herbicides
and methods to the approval of the responsible authority.

Garden Beds

O Garden beds are inneat order and free of weed and rubbish.

O Maintaining all planting support materials as installed (eg. replacing damaged or missing tree guards, tree stakes,
weed control mat, erosion control matting etc).

O Garden bed edges are clearly defined with no material encroaching on surrounding path or lawn areas.

O Hedges are uniform and clearly defined (where applicable).

O Any dead, diseased or missing plants have been replaced.

O Allshrubs and groundcovers are displaying healthy and vigorous growth.

O Mulchis to a minimum 75mm deep and covers whole garden bed.

Trees

O Trees are securely staked with three or four stakes and flexible ties, refer Typical Detail GB4.

O Trees are of sound structure and display good health and are free of disease and pests. Al trees have a single
straight leader and have been formative pruned.

O Alltrees are mulched with a ring at least 1.2m in diameter and 150mm in depth and a watering bowl formed. All

bowls are free of weeds.

a

a

All components of system are functional.

Automatic controller stations have been set to seasonal settings.
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Wetland Systems

Refer to maintenance requirements contained in Melbourne Water documents listed in Technical Note MW1 Wetlands
Establishment. Council requires that all Melbourne Water Maintenance standards are to be met.

O Allwetland systems and surrounds are free of litter and weed.

O Any dead or missing plants have been replaced.

Hard Landscape Features

O All hard landscape equipment, including garden furniture, BBQ, bins and playground equipment is undamaged
and is being maintained with no missing or damaged items.

O Allgraffiti has been removed and BBQ is clean and rubbish removed.

Site Representative

Name.

Company.

Contact details.

Signature.

Date.

Comments:
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APPENDIX 3 - LANDSCAPE HANDOVER CHECKLIST

This checklist s to be completed and submitted to the Council Representative prior to Handover.
Information Required by Council
O All compliance certificates is to be provided to Coundil, including supplier details, a lst of all nonstandard items,

and a schedule of rates (excluding costs).

Grass Areas General Grass Areas (eg. Parks and Nature Strips and Reserves)
O Grass is no longer than 100mm and no shorter than 40mm.

Grass is free of pests, diseases and weeds.
Grass is displaying even, healthy vigorous growth and must have coverage of minimum 90%

No consistent dead patches evident.

o o o o

Reserves with minimal landscaping must be graded, free of weed, pest animals, rock and debris. Top soil has
been applied as level and the area seeded to Council specification.

Garden Beds
O Garden beds are free of litter and weeds.

O Garden bed edges are clearly defined.

O Any dead, diseased or missing plants have been replaced a minimum of three months prior to handover. Proof of
planting date is provided.

O Allshrubs and groundcovers are displaying healthy and vigorous growth.

O Mulch s 75mm deep and covers whole of garden bed

O Trees display structural integrity and display vigorous healthy growth. Tree stakes must be retained unless
directed by the Council Representative.

O Formative pruning has been undertaken to ensure trunk and graft (if applicable) s free from offshoots and crown
displays good character

O Berms and mulch rings of at least 1.2m in diameter and 150mm in depth allow for maximum water retention.

O All dead or diseased trees have been replaced as required and maintained for an extended maintenance period
as determined by Council.

O All weeds and suckering material have been removed.
O Alltrees have a single straight leader. Minimum 1m from ground level is clear and straight.

O The root ball of all trees (planted more than 12 months previously) does not move. Any tree where movement
occurs should be replaced.

All parts and components of system are functional and the system has been flushed.
Certificate of Currency for the back flow test has been provided to Council Representative.
Stations have been set to seasonal settings.

As built drawings indicating fitting types and pipe locations and depth etc, have been supplied to Council
together with Irrigation Maintenance Manual and keys to controller box.

Moorabool Shire Council - Landscape Design Manual - 40




image157.png
Wetland Systems
O Allwetland systems and surrounds are free of litter.

O Allwetland systems and surrounds are to free of pest animals and have no more than 10% undesirable weed
cover and have 0% noxious weed cover.

All planting, including aquatic and indigenous plants are established and

u] isplay good health.
O Allsediment traps are removed as directed by the Council Representative.

O Allprotective netting has removed as directed by the Council Representative.

O Maintenance schedule has been provided for landscape works (including watering regimes, re-mulching
requirements, mowing frequency, weed control and irrigation system maintenance).

Hard Landscape Features.

O All equipment, including BBQ areas, shelters and lighting are cleaned and in good working order and the keys,
where appropriate, handed to Council.

O All playground equipment is sound and in excellent conditions and a Certificate of Compliance supplied to the
Council Representative.

O Softfall mulchisa

imum depth of 300mm.

O Alist of all non standard items has been provided along with the manufacturers details.

O Certificate of electrical compliance for any power connection e.
to the Council Representati

BBQ, lighting, irrigation etc has been supplied

O Timberr:

ngs and furniture are cleaned and oiled.

O Al graffiti has been removed.

O All necessary engineering certificates / forms or building permits for structures, playground equipment and walls
greater than 1.5m in height must be supplied to the Council Representative.

Utility Services
Developer / contractor must submit a copy of the Handover Ce:
acceptance by Council for the land and request that all future accounts be altered to reflect Council’s ownership and
lity for the service.

Company.

Contact details.

Signature.

Date.

Comments:
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Certi

ation of the Financial Statements 2019/20

In my opinion the accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Local Government Act 1969, the
Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014, Ausiralian Accounting Standards and other mandatory
professional reporting requirements

Steven Ivelja CPA
Principal Accounting Officer

Dated: 02 September 2020
Ballan

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements present fairly the financial iransactions of Moorabool Shire Council o the
year ended 30 June 2020 and the financial posiion of the Council as at that date.

As at the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which would render any particulars i the financial statements to
be misleading or inaccurate.

We have been authorised by the Council and by the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 to certiy the
finandial statements in their final form

Tonia Dudzik
Councillor

Dated: 02 September 2020
Ballan

John Keogh
Councillor

Dated: 02 September 2020
Ballan

Derek Madden
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: 02 September 2020
Ballan
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Moorabool Shire Council

2019/2020 Financial Report
Comprehensive Income Statement
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020
Note 2019
000

Income
Rates and charges 31 36,572 34,138
Statutory fees and fines 32 829 899
User fees 33 2853 3,200
Grants - operating 34(a) 10531 10,850
Grants - capital 34(b) 4839 3503
Contributions - monetary 35 5413 429
Contributions - non-monetary 35 11,924 10,443
Other income 37 3240 3,803
Total Income 76,201 71,218
Expenses
Employee costs 44 (21571) (20,074)
Materials and sevices 42 (20641) (17,878)
Depreciation and amortisation 43 (10371) (9,109)
Amortisation - right of use assets 44 (224) -
Bad and doubful debts 45 (51) ©)
Borrowing costs 46 (511) (583)
Net (loss)income on disposal of property, nfrastructure, plant and 5 #59) o)
equipment and investment properties
Finance costs - leases 47 (50) -
Other expenses 48 (522) (559)
Total Expenses (54,798) (49,162)
Surplus for the year 21403 22,05
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to surplus or deficit in future periods
Net asset revaluation increment 64 - 60,091
Total comprehensive result 21,403 82,147

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Moorabool Shire Council

2019/2020 Financial Report
Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2020
Note 2020 2019
000 5000

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5.1(a) 12,027 15,290
Other financial assets 5.1(b) 14,000 7,000
Trade and other receivables 5.1(c) 6,368 6171
Inventories 52 2 30
Other assets 52 2,048 1,163
Total current assets 34,471 29,653
Non-current assets
Trade and other receivables 5.1(b) 97 8
Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 6.1 567,105 564,166
Rightof-use assets 58 896 -
Total non-current assets 588,098 564,250
Total assets 622,569 593,904
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 53 4,934 5953
Trust funds and deposits 53(b) 1,205 1,630
Provisions 54 4,769 4137
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 55 1,320 1,120
Lease liabilfies 58 213 -
Total current liabilities 12,442 12,840
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 54 729 1,058
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 55 17,295 10,007
Lease liabilfies 58 04 -
Total non-current liabilities 18,727 11,065
Total liabilities 31,169 23,906
Net assets 591,400 569,998
Equity
Accumulated surplus 198,847 180,888
Reserves 91 392,553 389,110
Total Equity 591,400 569,998

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying noles




image9.png
[Moorabool Shire Couns

2019/2020 Financial Report
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

Accumulated Revaluation

Surplus Reserve
2020 $000 $000
Balance at beginning of the financial year 569,998 180,888 378249 10861
Surplus/(deficit for the year 21403 21403 - -
Transfers (fo)from other reserves 91 - (9.315) - 9315
Transfers from other reserves 91 - 5872 - (5872)
Balance at end of the financial year 591,400 198,847 378,249 14,304

Accumulated Revaluation

Surplus Reserve
2019 $000 $000
Balance at beginning of the financial year 487,851 161,446 318159 8246
Surplus/(deficit for the year 22,056 22,056 - -
Net asset revaluation increment/(decrement) 60,091 - 60091 -
Transfers (fo)from other reserves - (7.220) - 7220
Transfers from other reserves - 4606 - (4606)
Balance at end of the financial year 569,998 180,888 378249 10861

“The above statement shoud be read in conjundiion withthe accompanying notes
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Moorabool Shire Council
2019/2020 Financial Report
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Cash flows from operating activities

Rates and charges 35,844 33641
Statutory fees and fines 829 899
User fees (inclusive of GST) 3564 3083
Grants - operafing 10,531 10850
Grants - capital 4,839 3594
Contributions - monetary 5413 4292
Interest received 457 673
Trust funds and deposits taken 393 704
Other receipts (inclusive of GST) 3,107 3166
Net GST refundi(payment) 149 2349
Employee costs (21,268) (19,737)
Materials and services (inclusive of GST) (24,597) (20,084)
Short-term, low value and variable lease payments (1) -
Trust funds and deposits repaid (818) (@1)
Other payments (522) (567)
Net cash provided by operating activities 92 19,257 22,591

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property, infastructure, plant and equipment 64 (23,007) (15,621)
Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 763 445
Payments for investments (7,000) (7,000
Net cash (used in) investing activities (29,244) (221176)

Cash flows from financing activities

Finance costs 1) (583)
Proceeds from borrowings 8,608 -
Repayment of borrowings (1,120) (1421)
Interest paid - lease liabilty (50) -
Repayment of lease liabilties (203) -
Net cash (used in) financing activities 6,725 (1,703)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (3,262) (1,289)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 15,290 16578
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 5.1 12,027 15,290
Financing arrangements 56

Restrictions on cash assets & Other financial assets 5.1

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Property
Land 28 50
Buidings 548 27
Total property 79 217
Plant and equipment

Plant, machinery and equipment 2,901 1,699
Computers and telecommunications 184 553
Library books £ 97
Total plant and equipment 3478 2,349
Infrastructure

Roads 10,729 7,866
Bridges 625 207
Foolpaths and cycleways 996 1425
Drainage 20 -
Recreational, leisure and community faciities 5,93 3251
Parks, open space and streetscapes 346 18
Other infrastructure 8 138
Total infrastructure 18,732 12,995
Total capital works expenditure 23,007 15,621
Represented by:

New asset expenditure 4,980 2,938
Asset renewal expenditure 13,765 11,332
Asset upgrade expenditure 4,262 1,361
Total capital works expenditure 23,007 15,621

The above statement should be read in conjunciion with the accompanying notes
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OVERVIEW
Introduction

Moorabool Shire Council was established by an Order of the Governor in Council on Friday, 6 May 1994 and
is a body corporate. The Council's main office is located at 15 Stead Street, Ballan.

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements are a general purpose financial report that consists of a Comprehensive Income
Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Capital
Works and notes accompanying these financial statements. The general purpose financial report complies
with Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting
Standards Board, the Local Government Act 1989, and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2014

ficant accounting p
(a) Basis of accounting

The accrual basis of accounting has been used in the preparation of these financial statements, whereby
assets, liabilties, equity, income and expenses are recognised in the reporting period to which they relate,
regardless of when cash is received or paid.

Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated judgements are
based on professional judgement derived from historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and also in
future periods that are affected by the revision. Judgements and assumptions made by management in the
application of AAS's that have significant effects on the financial statements and estimates relate to:

- the fair value of land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to note 6.1 )

- the determination of depreciation for buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to note 6.1)

- the determination of employee provisions (refer to note 5.4 (a) )

- the determination of quarry restoration provisions (refer to note 5.4 (b) )

-the determination of whether performance obligations are sufficiently specific so as to determine whether
an arrangement is within the scope of AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers or AASB 1058
Income of Not-for-Profit Entities (refer to Note 3)

- the determination, in accordance with AASB 16 Leases, of the lease term, the estimation of the discount

rate when not implicit in the lease and whether an arrangement is in substance short-term or low value (refer
to Note 5.8)
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Significant accounting policies (cont.)

Unless otherwise stated, all accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the prior year. Where
appropriate, comparative figures have been amended to accord with current presentation (except where
transitional requirements of AASB 15 Revenue from Confracts with Customers, AASB 16 Leases and AASB
1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Enfities do not require restatement of comparatives under the modified
retrospective approach adopted by the Council), and disclosure has been made of any material changes to
comparatives.

(b) Committees of management

All entities controlled by Council that have material revenues, expenses, assets or liabilties, such as
committees of management, have been included in this financial report. Any transactions between these
entities and Council have been eliminated in full

(c) Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST
incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office. In these circumstances, the GST is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense. Receivables
and payables in the balance sheet are shown inclusive of GST.

Cash flows are presented in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis, except for the GST component of
investing and financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows.

(d) Rounding

Unless otherwise stated, amounts in the financial report have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars.
Figures in the financial statements may not equate due to rounding
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Note 1 Performance against budget

The budget comparison note compares Council's financial plan, expressed through its annual budget, with actual
performance. The Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 requires explanation of any
material variances. Council has adopted a materiality threshold of the lower of 10 percent or $1,000,000 where
further explanation is warranted. Explanations have not been provided for variations below the materiality
threshold unless the variance is considered to be material because of its nature

The budget figures detailed below are those adopted by Council on 3 July 2019. The Budget was based on
assumptions that were relevant at the time of adoption of the Budget. Council sets guidelines and parameters for
revenue and expense targets in this budget in order to meet Council's planning and financial performance
targets for both the short and long-term. The budget did not reflect any changes to equity resulting from asset
revaluations, as their impacts were not considered predictable.

These notes are prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Govermment Act 1989 and the Local
Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.

Budget Actual  Variance  Variance
1.1 Income and Expenditure 2020 2020 2020
§'000 §'000 §'000 % Ref

Income
Rates and charges 36,170 36,572 402 1%
Statutory fees and fines 1274 829 (445) (36%) 1
User fees 3118 2,853 (265) (8%)
Grants - operating 10,019 10,531 512 5%
Grants - capital 3949 4839 890 2% 2
Contributions - monetary 1,053 5413 4360 414% 3
Contributions - non monetary 4858 11,924 7,066 145% 4
Interest received 623 457 (166) (21%) 5
Other income 1018 2784 1,766 173% 6
Total income 62,082 76,201 14,119 2%
Expenses
Employee costs (21,863) (21,571) 292 (1%)
Materials and services (17,103) (20,641) (3,538) 2% 7
Depreciation (10,326) (10,371) (45) 0%
Amortisation - Right of use assets - (224) (224) (100%)
Bad and doubful debts - 1) 1) (100%)
Borrowing costs (657) (611) 146 (2%) 8
Loss on disposal of property,
\nfraslruclurz, plant gndpe(r]‘zl\p (1484 (898) 626 2% 9
Finance costs - Leases - (50) (50) (100%)
Other expenses (550) (522) 28 (5%)
Total expenses (51983)  (54798) (2815 5%
Surplus/(deficit) for the year 10,099 21,403 11,304 112%

(Explanation of material variations on next page)
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Note 1 Performance against budget (cont.

1.1.1 Explanation of material variations

Ref
1

Item
Statutory fees and fines

Grants - capital

Contributions - monetary

Contributions - non

monetary

Interest received

Other income

Materials and services

Borrowing costs

Loss on disposal of
property, infrastructure,
plant and equip.

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

Explanation

The unfavourable variance is mainly due to a significant decline in Statutory
Planning fees (§199k). Other unfavourable variances relate to Parking
Infringements, Animal Infringements, Fire Prevention, and Local Laws. The
impact of COVID-19 restrictions has negatively impacted Council's ability to
issue fines and infringements.

Capital grants are greater due to new funding received for projects that were
not included in the adopted budget. Some of these include; Darley Park Oval
Lighting ($150K), Sports Field Lighting Program ($145k), Local Area Traffic
Management Study ($85k), and Harris Road, Yendon ($70k)

The actual is $4,360k greater than budget which relates to significant
milestones for Developer Contributions. It was originally expected that these
contributions would be received in future financial years.

The increase of $7,066k relates to the significant level of growth in
subdivision development within the Shire in 2019/20. Assets gifted to Council
mainly relate to developments in Bacchus Marsh at Stonehill, Bellevue Tops
and Underbank Estates. The larger value of assets handed over by
developers include Land, Roads and Drainage.

The actual is less than budget by $166k mainly due to Council implementing
COVID-19 concessions on interest relating to overdue Rates and Garbage
charges. There was also a reduction on investment retums due to a decline
in interest rates throughout 2019/20.

This favourable variance primarily relates to reimbursements from the
Flood/Storm event of December 2018 ($1,337k). Both the income and
expenditure for the rehabilitation works were not included in the original
budget. The other significant increase relates to income received from Wind
Farm Dilapidation Deeds ($304k)

Unfavourable mainly due to costs incurred for the Flood/Storm event of
December 2018 ($1,034k) and Blackwood Localised Septic Project ($255k).
Other significant increases include; additional funds allocated to Local Roads
Maintenance ($342K), Building Maintenance ($255k - including security and
deaning costs), the cost of disposing of Recyclables ($172k), increased
costs for Gravel Road Maintenance ($126k), various COVID-19 related
expenditure ($123k), and Drainage Maintenance costs ($98k)

There is also some capital expenditure that was transferred to operating
($214k - relates to costs not deemed to be capital in nature). And also the
continuation/completion of Council approved new initiatives or grant funded
projects from prior financial years ($343k).

The favourable variance is due to the timing of new borrowings being drawn
down in 2019/20. The budget estimate was for borrowings to be taken up
earlier in the year than what was actually required.

Favourable by $626k mainly due to an overestimation in the budget for the
Wiitten Down Value of Infrastructure Assets replaced during the 2019/20
year. This mainly relates to a number of capital works jobs on Road
Infrastructure assets being incomplete at year end.
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Budget Actual Variance Variance
1.2 Capital Works 2020 2020 2020
§'000 §'000 §'000 % Ref

Property
Land 1270 28 (1,022) 80%) 1
Buildings 2,086 548 (1,538) (74%) 2
Total property 3,356 79 (2,560) (76%)
Plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 1805 2901 1,09 61% 3
Computers and telecommunications 874 484 (390) 45%) 4
Library books 105 93 (12) (11%)
Total plant and equipment 2,784 3478 694 25%
Infrastructure
Roads 10410 10,729 319 3%
Bridges 666 625 1) (6%)
Footpaths and cycleways 1,059 9% (63) (6%)
Recreational, leisure and community facilitie: 8403 5935 (2,468) (29%) 5
Parks, open space and streetscapes 250 346 9% 38% 6
Other infrastructure 20 82 62 310%
Total infrastructure 20,808 18,732 (2,076) (10%)
Total capital works expenditure 26,948 23,007 (3,941) (15%)
Represented by:
New asset expenditure 13144 4,980 (8,164) (62%)
Asset renewal expenditure 8,802 13,765 4,93 56%
Asset upgrade expenditure 5,002 4,262 (740) (15%)
Total capital works expenditure 26,948 23,007 (3,941) (15%)

(Explanation of material variations on next page)
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For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

Note1  Performance against budget (cor

1.2.1 Explanation of material variations

Ref Item
1 land
2 Buildings

3 Plant, machinery and equipment

4 Computers and
telecommunications

5  Recreational, leisure and
community facilities

6 Parks, open space and
streetscapes

Explanation

Less than budget by $1,022k which relates to the deferral of gas
connection works at the Parwan Employment Precinct. This is now
scheduled to commence in 2020121

Capital expenditure on buildings was $1,538k less than budget due to
some projects being incomplete at year end and will be carried over to
the 2020121 financial year. These include; Ballan Depot Relocation,
Bacchus Marsh Indoor Recreation Facility Preplanning, Ballan
Recreation Reserve Pavilion, and Masons Lane Western Pavilion
Extension

Actual expenditure was greater than budget by $1,096k due to the
completion of significant plant purchases carried over from the
previous financial year.

Expenditure was less than budget due to some significant system
improvement projects being incomplete at year end and being carried
over to the 2020/21 financial year.

Actual spend was less than budget by $2,468k due to some projects

being incomplete at year end, the largest being Bacchus Marsh
Racecourse and Recreation Reserve

The actual spend was greater than budget due to landscaping works
(including playground and open space facilities at Grantleigh Estate)
These works were notincluded in the original budget
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Note 2 Analysis of Council results by program

2.1 (a) Council delivers its functions and acfivities through the following programs.
CEO's Office

The CEO's Office is responsible for providing strategic direction to business units and to the Council as a
whole. This division includes:

Office of the CEO

Customer Care & Advocacy

Customer Care & Advocacy Division is responsible for providing internal operational services to business
units and external customer services, communications and advocacy to our community and different tiers of
govemment agencies. This division includes:

Finance and Procurement Governance, Risk and Corporate Planning
Communication, Public Affairs and Advocacy Customer Experience and Innovation
Information and Technology

People and Culture

People and Culture division is responsible for providing expertise and support in the areas of Performance
Management, Employee Relations, Employee Engagement, Diversity & Inclusion, Policy and Procedure
Development, and HR Compliance. This division includes:

Human Resources Payroll
Leaming and Development

Community Strengthening

Community Strengthening provides a diverse range of high quality services to meet the needs of growing
communities. This division includes:

Family, Youth and Children’s Services Libraries and Education Services
Active Ageing and Community Access Recreation and Leisure
Community Health and Safety

Community Planning and Economic Development

Community Planning and Economic Development is responsible for planning and delivery of major festivals
and events as well as strategic and statutory planning, building services and major development across the
municipality. This division includes:

Strategic and Statutory Planning Major Developments
Building Services Economic Development
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Note 2 Analysis of Council results by program (cont.)

24 (b)

Community Assets & Infrastructure

Community Assets & Infrastructure facilitates the provision management and maintenance of suitable
community assets and infrastructuyre for the delivery of services and fulfil the requirements of the
community now and into the future. This division includes:

Asset Management Capital Works
Operations Engineering Services
Waste Management Emergency Management

Summary of revenues, expenses, grants and assets by program

Grants Total
Income Expenses Surplus/ included
e assets
(Deficit) in income
2020 §'000 §'000  §'000 §'000 §'000
CEO's Office - 816 (816) - 9,276
Community Strengthening 5,348 10,284  (4,937) 3,390 116,842
Customer Care & Advocacy 44,561 8603 35958 6,753 97,739
Community Assets & Infrastructure 25,073 30386 (5,313) 5149 345219
Community Planning & Economic Development 1,067 3576  (2,509) 2 40,626
People & Culture 152 1,133 (981) 76 12,867
76,201 54,798 21,402 15,370 622,569
Grants

Income Expenses Surplus/ included Total

(Deficit) in income assets
2019 §'000 §'000  §'000 §'000 §'000
CEO's Office - 977 (977) - 11,808
Community Strengthening 6,803 10,782 (3,979) 3622 130,259
Customer Care & Advocacy 42,090 7,347 34743 6,842 88,757
Community Assets & Infrastructure 21,028 25,466  (4,437) 3,847 307,643
Community Planning & Economic Development 1,163 3,747  (2,594) 132 45268
People & Culture 142 842 (699) 10,169

71,218 49,161 22,056 14,443 593,904

“"Assets have been attributed to functions/activities based on the control and/or custodianship of specific
assets




image20.png
Moorabool Shire Council Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

2020 2019
$'000 $'000

3.1 Rates and charges

Council uses Capital Improved Value (CIV) as the basis of valuation of all properties within the municipal
district. The CIV of a property is the market value of the land and all improvements to that land as assessed
by a Council appointed valuer.

The valuation base used to calculate general rates for 2019/2020 was $8,474 million (2018/2019: $7,095

million).

General Rates 31,043 29,105
Waste / Garbage Charges 4,940 4,592
Supplementary rates and rate adjustments 589 441
Total rates and charges 36,572 34,138

The date of general revaluation of land for 2019/2020 rating purposes within the municipal district was
01 January 2019 and the valuation was first applied in the rating year commencing 01 July 2019.

Annual rates and charges are recognised as revenues when Council issues annual rates notices.
Supplementary rates are recognised when a valuation and reassessment is completed and a supplementary
rates notice issued

3.2 Statutory fees and fines

Infringements and costs 248 237
Town planning fees 455 536
Land information certificates 39 36
Permits 86 88
Freedom of Information 2 1
Total statutory fees and fines 829 899

Statutory fees and fines (including parking fees and fines) are recognised as revenue when the service has
been provided, the payment is received, or when the penalty has been applied, whichever first occurs.
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Note3 Funding for the delivery of our services (Cont.)

3.3 User fees
Aged and health services 690
Leisure centre and recreation 243
Child care/children's programs 35
Registrations and other permits 776
Building services 571
Waste management services 419
Other fees and charges 119
Total user fees 2,853

User fees by timing of revenue recognition
User fees recognised at a point in time. 2,853
Total user fees 853

748
232
70
858
694
474
125
3,200

User fees are recognised as revenue at a point in time, or over time, when (or as) the performance obligation

is satisfied. Recognition is based on the underlying contractual terms.
3.4 Funding from other levels of government

Grants were received in respect of the following

‘Summary of grants

Commonwealth funded grants 9,623
State funded grants 5,571
Others. 176
Total grants received 15,370

(a) Operating Grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government

Financial Assistance Grant 6,585
Commonwealth Home Support Program 1,756
Recurrent - State Government

Aged care 381
School crossing supervisors 93
Libraries 210
Maternal and child health 691
Other 237

Total recurrent operating grants 10,013

8,812
5,502
129
14,443

6,717
1,569

311
m
264
652
158
9,782
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Note 3 Funding for the delivery of our services (Cont.)

Non-recurrent - State Government

Emergency management 120 135
Valuations - 76
Strategic planning and tourism 29 130
Families and youth 148 271
Environment and health 140 187
Community development - 95
Disability access 81 175
Total non-recurrent operating grants 518 1,068
Total operating grants 10,531 10,850

(b) Capital Grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government

Roads to recovery 1,282 526
Total recurrent capital grants 1,282 526
Non-recurrent - State Government

Community and recreational facilities 999 1,079
Local roads 2,382 1,860
Non-recurrent - Other sources

Sundry capital grants 176 129
Total non-recurrent capital grants 3,557 3,068
Total capital grants 4,839 3,593

Grant income is recognised at the point in time when the council satisfies its performance obligations as
specified in the underlying agreement.
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Note 3 Funding for the delivery of our services (cont.)

(c) Unspent grants received on condition that they be spent in a specific manner

Operating

Balance at start of year 468 1M

Received during the financial year and remain unspent at balance 402 468

date

Received in prior years and spent during the financial year (359) (111)

Balance at year end 511 468

Capital

Balance at start of year 431 31

Received during the financial year and remain unspent at balance 120

date B

Received in prior years and spent during the financial year (431) -

Balance at year end - 431
3.5 Contributions

Monetary 5413 4,292

Non-monetary 11,924 10,443

Total contributions

Contributions of non-monetary assets were received in relation to the following asset classes.

Land 3,119 3,063
Buildings - 204
Infrastructure 8,805 7176
Total non-monetary contributions 11,924 10,443

Monetary and non monetary contributions are recognised as revenue when Council obtains control over the
contributed asset

3.6 Net loss on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

Proceeds of sale 763 445
Written down value of assets disposed (1,621) (1,396)
Total net loss on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and

equipment (858) (952)

The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has irrevocably passed to the
buyer.
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Note 3 Funding for the delivery of our services (cont.)

3.7 Other income

Interest 451 673
Reimbursements, rebates and recoveries 1,722 2273
Recycling income 64 47
Other rent 141 174
Royalties 73 118
Peri-Urban contributions 75 75
Insurance claims 47 6
Sales 91 61
Other 569 377
Total other income ,240 ,803

Reimbursements, rebates and recoveries

Income is recognised when the Council obtains control of the contribution or the right to receive the
contribution, when the performance obligation is met and the amount of the contribution can be measured
reliably.

Interest
Interest is recognised as it is earned

Other Income

Other income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is recognised
when Council gains control over the right to receive the income.

Note 4 The cost of delivering services

4.1 (a) Employee costs

Wages and salaries 18,551 17,387
WorkCover 449 381
Casual staff 761 695
Superannuation 1,787 1,689
Fringe benefits tax 23 22
Total employee costs 21,5711 20,074

(b) Superannuation
Council made contributions to the following funds:
Defined benefit fund

Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund 51 62
(Vision Super) at 9.5%
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For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

2019
$'000

Note 4 The cost of delivering services (cont.)

Accumulation funds
Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund
(Vision Super) and other funds at 9.5%

Employer contributions payable at reporting date
Refer to Note 9.3 for further information relating to Council's super obligations.

4.2 Materials and services
Materials and services
Contract payments
Building maintenance
General maintenance
Utilities
Office administration
Information technology
Insurance
Consultants
Agency staff
Community grants and advances
Total materials and services

4.3 Depreciation

Property

Plant and equipment

Infrastructure

Total depreciation and amortisation

1,736

1,736
14

2,916
10,749
678
787
639
649
1,254
701
1,114
429
724
20,641

826
1,230
8,315

10,371

1,568
1,568

3,139
7910
547
1,017
708
665
1,253
571
1,104
232
731
17,878

814
1,070
7,225
9,109

Refer to Note 5.8 and 6.1 for a more detailed breakdown of depreciation and amortisation charges and

accounting policy.

4.4 Amortisation - Right of use assets

Property
Total depreciation and amortisation

4.5 Bad and doubtful debts

Parking fine debtors
Other debtors
Total bad and doubtful debts

224
224

10
4
51
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2020 2019
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Note 4 The cost of delivering services (cont.)

Movement in provisions for doubtful debts

Balance at the beginning of the year 96 106
New provisions recognised during the year 93 75
Amounts already provided for and written off as uncollectible (96) (85)
Balance at end of year 93 96

Provision for doubtful debt is recognised based on an expected credit loss model. This model considers both
historic and forward looking information in determining the level of impairment.

4.6 Borrowing costs

Interest - Borrowings 511 583
Total borrowing costs 511 583

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred, except where they
are capitalised as part of a qualifying asset constructed by Council. Except where specific borrowings are
obtained for the purpose of specific asset acquisition, the weighted average interest rate applicable to
borrowings at balance date, excluding borrowings associated with superannuation, is used to determine the
borrowing costs to be capitalised

Borrowing costs include interest on bank overdrafts, interest on borrowings and finance lease charges.

4.7 Finance Costs - Leases

Interest - Lease Liabilities 50 -
Total borrowing costs 50 -
4.8 Other expenses

Auditors' remuneration - VAGO - audit of the financial statements,

performance statement and grant acquittals 45 55
Auditors' remuneration - Internal 55 33
Auditors' remuneration - Other 2 2
Councillors' allowances 248 249
Operating lease rentals 66 83
Bank fees 54 53
Other 51 83

Total other expenses 522 559
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5.1 Financial assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 3 3

Cash at bank 12,026 6,287

Term deposits - 9,000

Total cash and cash equivalents 12,027 15,290
(a) Other financial assets

Term deposits - current 14,000 7,000

Total other financial assets 000

Total financial assets 26,027 22,290

Council's cash and cash equivalents are subject to external restrictions that limit amounts available for
discretionary use. These include:

- Trust funds and deposits (Note 5.3b) 1,205 1,630
- Statutory reserves (Note 9.1) 1,486 1,643
Total restricted funds 2,692 3,274
Total unrestricted cash, cash equivalents and term deposits 23,336 19,016

Intended allocations

Although not externally restricted the following amounts have been
allocated for specific future purposes by Council:

- Cash held to fund carried forward capital works and projects 9914 6,050
- Recreation facilities reserve 605 583
Total funds subject to intended allocations 10,519 6,633

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits at call, and other highly liquid investments with
original maturities of 90 days or less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Other financial assets are valued at fair value, being market value, at balance date. Term deposits are
measured at amortised cost. Any unrealised gains and losses on holdings at balance date are recognised as
either a revenue or expense.
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Note 5 Our financial position (Cont.)

(c) Trade and other receivables

Current
Statutory receivables
Rates debtors 4,448 3,723
Special rate assessment 30 39
Infringement debtors 387 335
Provision for doubtful debts - infingements 9) (50)
Net GST receivable 699 634
Non-statutory receivables
Other debtors 898 1,536
Provision for doubtful debts - other debtors (84) (47)
Total current trade and other receivables 6,368 6,171
Non-current
Statutory receivables
Special rate assessment 97 85
Total non-current trade and other receivables 97 85
Total trade and other receivables 6,465 6,256

Receivables are carried at invoice amount as amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. A
provision for doubtful debts is recognised when there is objective evidence that an impairment has occurred.

(d) Ageing of receivables
At balance date other debtors representing financial assets were past due but not impaired. The ageing of
the Council's trade & other receivables (excluding statutory receivables) was:

Current (not yet due) 323 733
Past due by up to 30 days 60 591
Past due between 31 and 60 days 35 n
Past due between 61 and 90 days 110 12
Past due by more than 90 days 286 82
Total trade and other receivables 814 1,489

(e) Ageing of individually impaired receivables
At balance date, other debtors representing financial assets with a nominal value of $84,194 (2019: $46,691)
were impaired. The amount of the provision raised against these debtors was $18,561 (2019: $35,170). They
have been impaired as a result of their doubtful collection. Many of the long outstanding past due amounts
have been lodged with Council's debt collectors or are on payment arrangements.

The ageing of receivables that have been individually determined as impaired at reporting date was:
Past due by more than 90 days 84 47
Total trade and other receivables 84 47
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Note 5 Our financial position (cont.)

5.2 Non-financial assets
(a) Inventories

Inventories held for distribution 28 30
Total inventories 28 30

Inventories held for distribution are measured at cost, adjusted when applicable for any loss of service potential.

All other inventories, including land held for sale, are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Where
Inventories are acquired for no cost or nominal consideration, they are measured at current replacement cost at the
date of acquisition.

(b) Other assets

Prepayments 365 216
Accrued income 1,684 947
Total other assets 2,048 1,163
5.3 Payables
(a) Trade and other payables
Trade payables 415 1,387
Accrued expenses 3618 4491
Total trade and other payables 4,033 5,878

(b) Trust funds and deposits

Refundable building deposits 897 1,321
Refundable contract deposits 12 12
Refundable civic facilities deposits 14 29
Retention amounts 51 4
Fire services levy 72 61
Other refundable deposits 158 156
Total trust funds and deposits 1,205 1,630

(c) Unearned income

Grants received in advance - operating 704 %
Grants received in advance - capital 197 -
Total unearned income 901 75
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Note 5 Our financial position (cont.)

Amounts received as deposits and retention amounts controlled by Council are recognised as trust funds until they
are retuned, transferred in accordance with the purpose of the receipt, or forfeited. Trust funds that are forfeited,
resulting in council gaining control of the funds, are to be recognised as revenue at the time of forfeit.

Purpose and nature of items
Refundable deposits - Deposits are taken by Council as a form of surety in a number of circumstances, including in
relation to building works, tender deposits, contract deposits and the use of civic facilities.

Fire service levy - Council is the collection agent for fire services levy on behalf of the State Government. Council
remits amounts received on a quarterly basis. Amounts disclosed here will be remitted to the state government in
line with that process.

Retention amounts - Council has a contractual right to retain certain amounts until a contractor has met certain
requirements or a related warrant or defect period has elapsed. Subject to the satisfactory completion of the
contractual obligations, or the elapsing of time, these amounts will be paid to the relevant contractor in line with
Council's contractual obligations.

5.4 Provisions

Quarry restoration Employee Total
2020 000 $'000 $'000
Balance at beginning of the financial year 252 4,944 51%
Additional provisions 6 2,476 2482
Amounts used - (2,065) (2,065)
Change in the discounted amount arising because of ~ (14) )
time and the effect of any change in the discount rate
Balance at the end of the financial year 257 5241 5499
2019
Balance at beginning of the financial year 248 4611 4,859
Additional provisions 4 2,540 2544
Amounts used - (2,222) (2.222)
Change in the discounted amount arising because of ~ 15 15
time and the effect of any change in the discount rate
Balance at the end of the financial year 252 4,944 5,1%
2020 2019
(a) Employee provisions $'000 $'000
Current provisions expected to be wholly settled within 12 months
Annual leave 1,214 1,074
Long service leave 386 289
Other leave 20 175
1,820 538
Current provisions expected to be wholly settled after 12 months
Annual leave 32 -
Long service leave 2,628 2600
2,949 2,600

Total current employee provisions 4,769 4,137
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Note 5 Our financial po:

Non-current

Long service leave 412 492
Annual leave - 315
Total non-current employee provisions 472 807
Aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions:

Current 4769 41371
Non-current 472 807
Total aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions: 5,241 4,944

The calculation of employee costs and benefits includes all relevant on-costs and are calculated as follows at
reporting date:

Wages and salaries and annual leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulated sick leave
expected to be wholly settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in the provision for employee
benefits in respect of employee services up to the reporting date, classified as current liabilities and measured at
their nominal values.

Liabilities that are not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in the
provision for employee benefits as current liabilities, measured at the present value of the amounts expected to be
paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.

Long service leave

Liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits.

Current Liability - unconditional LSL is disclosed as a current liability even when the Council does not expect to
settle the liability within 12 months because it will not have the unconditional right to defer settlement of the
entitlement should an employee take leave within 12 months.

The components of this current liability are measured at

- present value - component that s not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months.

- nominal value - component that is expected to be wholly settled within 12 months.

Non-current liability - conditional LSL that has been accrued, where an employee is yet to reach a qualifying term of

employment, is disclosed as a non-current liability. There is an unconditional right to defer setflement of the
entitlement until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.

This non-current LSL liability is measured at present value.

Key assumptions:
- discount rate 0.87% 132%
- inflation rate 250% 431%
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Note 5 Our financial position (con

Retirement Gratuity

Retirement gratuities were provided to certain employees who were employed by the former Shire of Bacchus
Marsh. The liability represents a set proportion of accumulated sick leave that is payable on retirement. At balance
date, the liability is measured at the nominal value of 14 March 1996.

(b) Quarry restoration
Non-current 2571 252
257 252

Council is obligated to restore quarry sites to a particular standard. The forecast life of the sites are based on
current estimates of remaining capacity and the forecast rate of infill. The provision for quarry restoration has been
calculated based on the present value of the expected cost of works to be undertaken. The expected cost of works
has been estimated based on current understanding of work required to reinstate the site to a suitable standard.
Accordingly, the estimation of the provision required is dependent on the accuracy of the forecast timing of the work,
work required and related costs.

Key assumptions:
- inflation rate 220% 160%

- estimated cost to rehabilitate 257 252

5.5 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Current

Borrowings - Secured 1,320 1,120
Non-current

Borrowings - Secured 17,295 10,007

Total interest-bearing loans and borrowings

(a) The maturity profile for Council's borrowings is:

Not later than one year 1,320 1121
Later than one year and not later than five years 12,819 6,651
Later than five years 4476 4,476

18,615 12,248
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Note 5 Our financial position (cont.)

Borrowings are initially measured at fair value, being the cost of the interest bearing liabilities, net of transaction
costs. The measurement basis subsequent to initial recognition depends on whether the Council has categorised its
interest-bearing liabilities as either financial liabilities designated at fair value through the profit and loss, or financial
liabilities at amortised cost. Any difference between the initial recognised amount and the redemption value is
recognised in net result over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest method.

The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the interest bearing liabiliies. The Council determines the
classification of its interest bearing liabilities at initial recognition.

Borrowings are secured by a charge against rate revenue.
5.6 Financing arrangements

The Council has the following funding arrangements in place as at 30 June 2020.

Bank overdraft 750 750
Credit card facilities 200 200
Total facilities 950 950
Used faciliies 36 30

Unused facilities 914 920
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Note 5 Our financial position (cont.)

5.7 Commitments

The Council has entered into the following commitments. Commitments are not recognised in the Balance Sheet. Commitments are disclosed at their nominal
value and presented inclusive of the GST payable.

Later than 2
Later than 1 year  years and not

Notlaterthan 1 and not later later than 5 Later than 5

year than 2 years years years

§$'000 §'000 §'000 §'000
Operating
Waste collection 4,086 4168 8,587 - 16,841
Septic program 96 - - - %
Maintenance services 521 422 14 - 963
Financial and organisational services 643 313 3 - 987
Home care services 170 170 - - 340
Meals for delivery 99 99 - - 198
Total 5621 5172 8632 - 1942
Capital
Building 567 - - - 567
Roads 3430 - - - 3430
Recreational, leisure and community 5676 - - - 5676
Plant and Equipment 215 - - - 215
Bridges 328 - - - 328
Total 10,276 - - - 10,276

Total 15,897 5172 8,632 - 29,701
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Note 5 Our financial position (cont.)

5.7 Commitments (Continued)

Notlaterthan1  and not later  years and not Later than 5

year than 2 years later than 5 years

§'000 §'000 §'000 §'000
Operating
Waste collection 4,006 4,086 8419 - 16,511
Septic program 359 - - - 359
Maintenance services 553 328 342 - 1222
Financial and organisational services 626 569 213 - 1468
Total 5642 4983 9,034 - 19,659
Capital
Roads 2669 - - - 2669
Footpaths and cycleways 2 - - - 2
Recreational, leisure and community 3177 - - - 3177
Total 5848 - - - 5848

Total 11,490 4,983 9,034 - 25,507





image36.png
Moorabool Shire Council Notes to the Financial Report
2019/2020 For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

5.8 Leases
Policy applicable before 1 July 2019

As a lessee, coundil classifies leases as operating or finance leases based on its assessment of whether the
lease transferred significantly all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset to
council

Operating lease payments, including any contingent rentals, were recognised as an expense in the
comprehensive income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattem of the benefits derived from the use of the leased asset. The
leased asset was not recognised in the balance sheet

Allincentives for the agreement of a new or renewed operating lease were recognised as an integral part of the
net consideration agreed for the use of the leased asset, irrespective of the incentive’s nature or form or the
timing of payments.

In the event that lease incentives were received to enter into operating leases, the aggregate cost of incentives
were recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis, unless another
systematic basis was more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
were consumed.

Policy applicable after 1 July 2019

Council has applied AASB 16 Leases using a modified retrospective approach with the cumulative effect of
initial application recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of accumulated surplus at 1 July 2019,
with no restatement of comparative information. The council applied the approach consistently to all leases in
which itis a lessee.

On transition to AASB 16 Leases, Council elected to apply the practical expedient to ‘grandfather the
assessment of which transactions are leases. The council has applied this practical expedient to all of its
contracts and therefore applied AASB 16 Leases only to contracts that were previously identified as leases.

At inception of a contract, all entities would assess whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. To identify whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset, it is necessary to assess whether:

- the contract involves the use of an identified asset;

-the customer has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout
the period of use; and

-the customer has the right to direct the use of the asset.

This policy is applied to contracts entered into, or changed, on o after 1 July 2019.

As a lessee, Council recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for:

-any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received; plus

-any initial direct costs incurred; and

- an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located
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The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date
to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated
useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment.
In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, an appropriate incremental borrowing rate. Generally, Council uses an appropriate incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

- Fixed payments

- Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

- Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

- The exercise price under a purchase option that Council is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in
an optional renewal period if Council is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for
early termination of a lease unless Council is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

Council has no right-of-use assets at initial recognition at fair value in respect of leases that have significantly
below-market terms.

Right-of-Use Assets Property Total

§'000 §'000
Balance at 1 July 2019 1,120 1,120
Amortisation charge (224) (224)
Balance at 30 June 2020 896 896
Lease Liabilities 2020

Maturity analysis - contractual discounted cash

flows (including interest payable) 000
Less than one year 213
One to five years 704
Total undiscounted lease liabilities as at 30 June: 917
Lease liabilities included in the Balance Sheet at 30 June:

Current 23
Non-current 704

Total lease liabilities 917
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Short-term and low value leases

Council has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of machinery
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets (individual assets worth less than
existing capitalisation thresholds for a like asset up to a maximum of AUD$10,000), including IT equipment.
Council recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-iine basis
over the lease term.

Expenses relating to: 2020

$'000
Short-term leases 10
Total 10

Variable lease payments (not included in measurement of lease liabilities)
i Leases classified as operating leases under AASB 117 Leases

At transition, lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
at Council's incremental borrowing rate as at 1 July 2019. Right-of-use assets are measured at an amount
equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments. Council applied
this approach to all applicable leases.

Council used the following practical expedients when applying AASB 16 Leases to leases previously classified
as operating leases under AASB 117 Leases

- Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

- Adjusted the right-of-use assets by the amount of AASB 137 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets onerous contract provision immediately before the date of initial application, as an alternative to an
impairment review.

- Applied the exemption not to recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of
lease term

- Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate the
lease.
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Note 5 Our financial position (cont.)

ii. Leases previously classified as finance leases

For leases that were dlassified as finance leases under AASB 117 Leases, the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset and the lease liability at 1 July 2019 are determined at the carrying amount of the lease asset and
lease liability under AASB 117 Leases immediately before that date.

Council is not required to make any adjustments on transition to AASB 16 Leases for leases in which it acts as
alessor, except for a sub-lease. Council accounted for its leases in accordance with AASB 16 Leases from the
date of initial application.

Impact on financial statements
On transition to AASB 16 Leases, Council recognised an additional $1,120,000 of right-of-use assets and
$1,120,000 of lease liabilities, recognising the difference in retained eamings.

When measuring lease liabilities, Council discounted lease payments using its incremental borrowing rate at 1
July 2019. The weighted-average rate applied is 4.82%.

2019
$'000
Operating lease commitment at 30 June 2019 as disclosed in Coundil's financial statements 1,383
Discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at 1 July 2019 (143)
Finance lease liability recognised as at 30 June 2019 1,240
- Recognition exemption for:
short-term leases 10
Grandfathering rule 110

- Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 July 2019 1120
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Note 6 Assets we manage

6.1 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

‘Summary of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

AtFairValue  Acquisitions  Contributions  Revaluation  Depreciation  Disposal ~ Transfers At Fair Value
30 June 2019 30 June 2020
$000 $000 $1000 $1000 $000 $1000 $1000 $000
Land 49,571 248 3,119 - - - 310 53,248
Buildings 27416 537 - - (826) - 312 27,438
Plant and Equipment 6,140 3114 - - (1,230) (719) - 7,304
Infrastructure 468,004 10,868 8,805 - (8,315) (512) 9,925 488,776
Work in progress 13,035 8240 - - - (390)  (10,547) 10,339
Total 564,166 23,007 11,924 - (10,371) (1,621) - 587,105
Summary of Work in Progress  Opening WiP Additions Transfers Write Offs  Closing WIP
Buildings 1,006 395 (622) - 780
Plant and Equipment - 364 - - 364
Infrastructure 12,029 7481 (9,925) (390) 9,195
Total 13,035 8,240 (10,547) (390) 10,339
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Note 6 Assets we manage (Cont.)

(a) Property

Land - Land - non Total Buildings - Buildings - non Total Work In Total

specialised specialised Land specialised specialised Buildings Progress  Property

$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
At fair value 1 July 2019 3094 46,417 49511 31418 14,498 45916 1,006 96,494
Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2019 - - - (17,383) (1,118) (18,501) - (18,501)
3094 46,417 49511 1403 13,381 27,416 1,006 77,993

Movements in fair value

Acquisition of assets at fair value - 248 248 374 163 537 395 1,180
Contributed assets 1,697 1,422 3,119 - - - - 3,119
Revaluation increments/decrements - - - - - - - -
Fair value of assets disposed - - - - - - - -
Transfers - 310 310 312 - 312 (622) -
1697 1,980 3,677 686 163 848 (226) 4,299

Movements in accumulated depreciation

Depregciation and amortisation - - - (531) (295) (826) - (826)
Revaluation increments/decrements - - - - -

Accumulated depreciation of disposals - - - - - - - -

Transfers - - - - - - - -

, , s 531) (295) (626) , (626)
At fair value 30 June 2020 47191 48,456 53248 32104 14,661 46,765 780 100,793
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2020 (17,914) (1,413) (19,327) - (19,327)

4,791 48,456 53,248 14,190 13,248 27,438 780 81,466
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Note 6 Assets we manage (Cont.)

(b) Plant and Equipment

Plant, Total plant
machinery and “m‘z“‘;i';::g Library books P"N"'k In Pond
equipment 09185 g quipment
$000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
At fair value 1 July 2019 9127 807 585 - 10,519
Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2019 (3,825) (292) (263) - (4,380)
5303 516 321 - 6,140
Movements in fair value
Acquisition of assets at fair value 2901 119 93 364 3478
Contributed assets - - - - -
Revaluation increments/decrements - - - - -
Fair value of assets disposed (2,184) (92) (158) - (2,434)
Transfers - - - - -
718 27 (65) 364 1,044
Movements in accumulated depreciation
Depregciation and amortisation (1,012) (166) (52) - (1,230)
Accumulated depreciation of disposals 1481 92 142 - 1,715
Transfers - - - - -
469 (74) 90 - 485
At fair value 30 June 2020 9845 834 520 364 11,563
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2020 (3,356) (366) (173) - (3,895)

6,489 469 347 364 7,668
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Note 6 Assets we manage (Cont.)

(c) Infrastructure

At fair value 1 July 2019
Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2019

Movements in fair value
Acquisition of assets at fair value
Contributed assets

Revaluation increments/decrements
Fair value of assets disposed
Transfers

Movements in accumulated depreciation
Depreciation and amortisation

Revaluation increments/decrements
Accumulated depreciation of disposals
Transfers

At fair value 30 June 2020
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2020

Footpaths Recreational,  Parks open
Roads Bridges and Dranage lesueand spacosand | 0:"6’ PW°"‘ n nfast T:’“'
e o s nfashucuro  Progress  Infasructure

5000 $000 $000  $000 $000 000 $000  $000 000
389,732 38,634 22,089 98,365 2973 5212 2,133 12,029 571,166
(50.355) 6747 (8T10)  (22083) (1565 (1,015) (598) . 91.133)
339,377 31,887 13,319 76,282 1,408 4197 1535 12,029 480,033
6,950 625 1,207 562 110 1,312 100 7481 18,349
4,280 - 1,104 3178 - 244 - - 8,805
(469) (22) () (%0) - (20) - (390) (1,014
4452 - 1,940 210 - 3,003 260 (9,925) -
15,214 603 4,228 3921 110 4538 360 (2,834) 26,140
5810) 537) @) (1,005) (153) 251) ®3) . 8315)
81 5 1 13 - 1 - - 112
(5,729) (531) (465) (991) (153) (249) (83) - (8,203)
404 946 39,237 26317 102,286 3,083 9,750 2494 9,19% 597,307
(56.084) 72719 (923) (23074) (1718 (1.265) 681) . (99336)
348,862 3958 1081 719212 1,365 5,486 1812 91% 297971
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Acquisition
The purchase method of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets, being the fair value of assets
provided as consideration at the date of acquisition plus any incidental costs attributable to the

acquisition. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability)
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Where assets are constructed by Council, cost includes all materials used in construction, direct
labour, borrowing costs incurred during construction, and an appropriate share of directly attributable
variable and fixed overheads.

In accordance with Council's policy, the threshold limits have applied when recognising assets within
an applicable asset class and unless otherwise stated are consistent with the prior year.

Depreciation Threshold Limit|

Period
Asset recognition thresholds and depreciation $'000
Property
Land - 5
Land improvements - 5
Buildings
Buildings 50-80 years 5
Plant and Equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 5-10 years 5
Fixtures, fittings and furniture 3-10 years 5
Computers and telecommunications 1-5 years 5
Library books 10 years nla
Infrastructure
Roads
- Formation and earthworks - 5
- Pavement and seals 20-80 years 5
- Substructure 16-30 years 5
- Road kerb, channel and minor culverts 40-70 years 5
Footpaths and cycleways 10-50 years 5
Drainage 25-100 years 5
Bridges
- Bridges deck 80 years 5
- Bridges substructure 80 years 5
- Major culverts 80 years 5
Recreational, leisure and community facilities 15-40 years 5
Parks, open space and streetscapes 20-100 years 5
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Land under roads

Council recognises land under roads it controls at fair value. Council does not recognise land under
roads that it controlled prior to 1 July 2008 in its financial report.

Depreciation and amortisation

Buildings, land improvements, plant and equipment, infrastructure, and other assets having limited
useful lives are systematically depreciated over their useful lives to the Council in a manner which
reflects consumption of the service potential embodied in those assets. Estimates of remaining useful
lives and residual values are made on a regular basis with major asset classes reassessed annually.
Depreciation rates and methods are reviewed annually.

Where assets have separate identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these
components are assigned distinct useful lives and residual values and a separate depreciation rate is
determined for each component.

Road earthworks are not depreciated on the basis that they are assessed as not having a limited
useful life.

Straight line depreciation is charged based on the residual useful life as determined each year.
Repairs and maintenance

Routine maintenance, repair costs and minor renewal costs are expensed as incurred. Where the
repair relates to the replacement of a component of an asset and the cost exceeds the capitalisation
threshold the cost is capitalised and depreciated. The carrying value of the replaced asset is
expensed

Valuation of land and buildings

Valuation of land and buildings were undertaken by a qualified independent valuer (Preston Rowe
Paterson (Warmambool) Pty. Ltd). The valuation of land and buildings is at fair value, being market
value based on highest and best use permitted by relevant land planning provisions. Where land use is
restricted through existing planning provisions the valuation is reduced to reflect this limitation. This
adjustment is an unobservable input in the valuation. The adjustment has no impact on the
comprehensive income statement.
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Note 6 Assets we manage (Cont.)

Specialised land is valued at fair value using site values adjusted for englobo (undeveloped and/or
unserviced) characteristics, access rights and private interests of other parties and entitements of
infrastructure assets and services. This adjustment is an unobservable input in the valuation. The
adjustment has no impact on the comprehensive income statement.

Any significant movements in the unobservable inputs for land and land under roads wil have a

significant impact on the fair value of these assets.

The date of the current valuation is detailed in the following table.

Details of the Council’s land and buildings and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 30 June

2020 are as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Valuation Date
Land - 33,668 14,789 30/06/2018
Specialised land - - 4791 30/06/2018
Buildings - 13,248 14,190 30/06/2018
Total - 46,916 33,770

Valuation of infrastructure

Valuation of infrastructure assets has been determined in accordance with valuations undertaken by
Council staff and expert contractors. The valuation is at fair value based on replacement cost less

accumulated depreciation as at the date of valuation

Details of the Council's infrastructure and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 30 June 2020

are as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Valuation Date
Roads - - 348,862 30/06/2019
Bridges - - 31,958 30/06/2016
Footpaths and cycleways - - 17,081 30/06/2019
Drainage - - 79212 30/06/2019
Recreational, leisure and - - 1,365 30/06/2018
community facilities
Parks, open space and streetscapes - - 8486 30/06/2018
Other infrastructure - - 1812 30/06/2018
Total - - 488,776
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Note 6 Assets we manage (Col

Description of significant unobservable inputs into level 3 valuations

Specialised land and land under roads is valued using a market based direct comparison
technique. Significant unobservable inputs include the extent and impact of restriction of use and the
market cost of land per square metre. The extent and impact of restrictions on use varies and results in
a reduction to surrounding land values between 5% and 95%. The market value of land varies
significantly depending on the location of the land and the current market conditions. Currently land
values range between $1 and $27 per square metre.

Specialised buildings are valued using a depreciated replacement cost technique. Significant
unobservable inputs include the current replacement cost and remaining useful lives of buildings.
Current replacement costs is calculated on a square metre basis and ranges from $1,500 to $3,000
per square metre. The remaining useful lives of buildings are determined on the basis of the current
condition of buildings and vary from 6 years to 75 years. Replacement cost is sensitive to changes in
market conditions, with any increase or decrease in cost flowing through to the valuation. Useful lives
of buildings are sensitive to changes in expectations or requirements that could either shorten or
extend the useful lives of buildings.

Infrastructure assets are valued based on the depreciated replacement cost. Significant
unobservable inputs include the current replacement cost and remaining useful lives of infrastructure.
The remaining useful lives of infrastructure assets are determined on the basis of the current condition
of the asset and vary from 1 year to 100 years. Replacement cost is sensitive to changes in market
conditions, with any increase or decrease in cost flowing through to the valuation. Useful lives of
infrastructure are sensitive to changes in use, expectations or requirements that could either shorten or
extend the useful lives of infrastructure assets.

2020 2019
Reconciliation of specialised land $'000 $'000
Land under roads 4791 3,094

Total specialised land 4791 3,094
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Note 7 People and relationshi
7.1 Council and Key Management Personnel 2020 2019
No. No.

(a) Key Management Personnel
Details of persons holding the position of Councillor or other members of key management personnel at any
time during the year are:

Councillors  Councillor Paul Tatchell (Mayor until 12 November 2019)
Councillor Tonia Dudzik
Councillor David Edwards (Mayor from 13 November 2019)
Counillor Tom Sullivan
Councillor Lawry Borgelt
Councillor John Keogh
Councillor Jarrod Bingham
The Late Councillor Pat Toohey (until 18 September 2019)

Chief Executive Officer and other Key Management Personnel

Derek Madden - Chief Executive Officer

Philip Jeffrey - General Manager Community Assets and Infrastructure

Sally Jones - General Manager Community Strengthening

Caroline Buisson - General Manager Customer Care and Advocacy (since 18 November 2019)

Henry Bezuidenhout - Executive Manager Community Planning and Economic Development

Karen Jansen - Executive Manager People and Culture

John Miller - Acting General Manager Customer Care and Advocacy (16 September to 18 November 2019)

Total Number of Councillors 8 7

Total of Chief Executive Officer and other Key Management 7 6

Personnel

Total Number of Key Management Personnel 15 13
(b) Remuneration of Key Management Personnel 2020 2019

§'000 §'000

Total remuneration of key management personnel was as follows:

Short-term benefits 1,308 1,261

Long-term benefits (Long Service Leave accruals in the current

reporting period) 27 79

Post employment benefits 103 73

Termination benefits - 204
Total 1438 1617
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Note 7 People and relationships (Cont.)

The numbers of key management personnel whose total remuneration from Council and any related
entities, fall within the following bands:

2020 2019
Income Range: No. No.
$1-$9,999 1 -
$10,000 - $19,999 1
$20,000 - $29,999 4 6
$30,000 - $39,999 1 -
$40,000 - $49,999 1 ,
$60,000 - $69,999 1 -
$80,000 - $89,999 - 1
$140,000 - $49,999 1 -
$180,000 - $189,999 3

$190,000 - $199,999 -
$200,000 - $209,999
$210,000 - $219,999 -
$250,000 - $259,999 1
$260,000 - $269,999 -

15 13

O

(c) Senior Officer Remuneration

A Senior Officer is an officer of Council, other than Key Management Personnel, who:
a) has management responsibilities and reports directly to the Chief Executive; or
b) whose total annual remuneration exceeds $151,000 (2019 - $148,000)

The number of Senior Officers, other than the Responsible Persons, are shown below in their relevant

income bands
2020 2019
Income Range: No. No.
$151,000 - $159,999 1 2
$160,000 - $169,999 - 1
1 3
$'000 $'000

Total Remuneration for the reporting year for Senior Officers
included above, amounted to: 154 468
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Note 7 People and relationships (Cont.)

7.2 Related party disclosure
(a) Transactions with related parties

Report
ne 2020

During the period Council entered into the following transactions with related parties:

2020 2019

Responsible Person / Related Party $'000 $'000
Helen Tatchell - The Moorabool News (Ballan News Pty Ltd)

- Payment for Moorabool News subscription and advertising * 60 37
Tonia Dudzik - Bacchus Marsh Community Radio

- Income on lease of Building to Bacchus Marsh Community

Radio™ 2 5

- Payment for Community training workshop 2 4

* Moorabool Shire utilises services provided by the Moorabool News Pty Ltd. A public sector tender process
was undertaken for the provision of media services and a contract is in place between the two entities. All
transactions entered into between the two entifies are in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
contract

** Moorabool Shire Council has a contract in place with Bacchus Marsh Community Radio for the lease of
office space at the Darley Civic and Community Hub. The lease has been provided as per the terms of the
original agreement when the building was purchased by Council. The lease is for a term of 3 years with an
option to renew for a further 2 years. The last two quarters of the year were not charged due to COVID-19.

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties
There was no outstanding balance with related parties at balance date.

(c) Loans toffrom related parties
No loans have been made, guaranteed or secured by the Council to a Responsible Person during the
reporting year.

(d) Commitments toffrom related parties
There were no commitments in existence at balance date that have been made, guaranteed or secured by
the Council to/from a related party.
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Note 8 Managing uncert:

8.1 Contingent assets and liabilities

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet, but are disclosed by way
of a note and, if quantifiable, are measured at nominal value. Contingent assets and liabilties are presented
inclusive of GST receivable or payable respectively.

Commitments are not recognised in the Balance Sheet. Commitments are disclosed at their nominal value by
way of note and presented inclusive of the GST payable.

(a) Contingent assets

Infrastructure assets from new subdivisions (constructed by developers) expected to be accounted for by
Council in 202072021 total $4.858 million (actual 2019/2020 $11.924 million)

Operating lease receivables

The Council has entered into commercial property leases on its various properties. These properties held
under operating leases have remaining non-cancellable lease terms of between 1 and 10 years. Most leases
include a CPI based revision of the rental charge annually.

Lease payments for operating leases are required by the accounting standard to be recognised on a straight
line basis, rather than expensed in the years in which they are incurred.

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2020 2019
§'000 §'000

Not later than one year 169 190
Later than one year and not later than five years 460 372
Later than five years 823 531
1,452 1,094

Guarantees for loans to other entities

Council has a bank guarantee to the value of $15,000 in favour of the Department of Environment and Primary
Industries. This guarantee is for an extractive mining licence in relation to the Allen's Gravel Pit

(b) Contingent liabilities
Superannuation

Council has obligations under a defined benefit superannuation scheme that may result in the need to make
additional contributions to the scheme, matters relating to this potential obligation are outlined in Note 9.3. As a
result of the volatility in financial markets the likelihood of making such contributions in future periods exists. At
this point in time it is not known if additional contributions will be required, their timing or potential amount.

Future superannuation contributions

There were $14,000 contributions outstanding and no loans issued from or to the above schemes as at 30
June 2020. The expected contributions to be paid to the Defined Benefit category of Vision Super for the year
ending 30 June 2021 are $36,000

(c) Building Cladding
Council has not identified any potential contingents that may exist in relation to rectification works or other
matters associated with building cladding.
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Note 8 Managing uncert: (Cont)

8.2 Change in accounting standards

The following new AAS's have been issued that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2020 reporting period.
Council has assessed these pending standards and has identified the following potential impacts will flow from
the application of these standards in future reporting periods.

AASB 1059 Service Concession Arangements: Grantors (AASB 1059) (applies 2020/21 for LG Sector)
AASB 1059 addresses the accounting for a service concession arrangement by a grantor that s a public sector
entity by prescribing the accounting for the arrangement from the grantor’s perspective. It requires the grantor

recognise a service concession asset constructed, developed or acquired from a third party by the operator,
including an upgrade to an existing asset of the grantor, when the grantor controls the asset;

reclassify an existing asset (including recognising previously unrecognised identifiable intangible assets and
land under roads) as a service concession asset when it meets the criteria for recognition as a service
concession asset;

initially measure a service concession asset constructed, developed or acquired by the operator or
reclassified by the grantor at current replacement cost in accordance with the cost approach to fair value in
AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement. Subsequent to the initial recognition or reclassification of the asset, the
service concession asset is accounted for in accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment or
AASB 138 Intangible Assets, as appropriate, except as specified AASB 1059;

recognise a corresponding liability measured initially at the fair value (current replacement cost) of the service
concession asset, adjusted for any other consideration between the grantor and the operator; and

disclose sufficient information to enable users of financial statements to understand the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of assets, liabilities, revenue and cash flows arising from service concession arrangements.

Based on the Council's current assessment, there is expected to be no impact on the transactions and
balances recognised in the financial statements as the Council is not a grantor in a service concession
arrangement.

AASB 2018-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Definition of Material (applies 2020/21 for
LG Sector)

The Standard piincipally amends AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements and AASB 108 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. The amendments refine the definiion of material in AASB
101. The amendments dlarfy the definition of material and its application by improving the wording and aligning the
definition across AASB Standards and other publications. The impacts on the local government sector are expected
o be minimal

AASB 2019-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - References to the Conceptual
Framework (applies 2020/21 for LG Sector)

This Standard sets out amendments to Australian Accounting Standards, Interpretations and other
pronouncements to reflect the issuance of the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (Conceptual
Framework) by the AASB. The impacts on the local government sector are expected to be minimal
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8.3 Financial instruments

(a) Objectives and policies

The Council's principal financial instruments comprise cash assets, term deposits, receivables (excluding
statutory receivables), payables (excluding statutory payables) and bank borrowings. Details of the significant
accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and
the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial
liability and equity instrument is disclosed in the notes of the financial statements. Risk management is carried
out by senior management under policies approved by the Council. These policies include identification and
analysis of the risk exposure to Council and appropriate procedures, controls and risk minimisation

(b) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of our financial instruments will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. The Council's exposures to market risk is primarily through interest rate risk with
only insignificant exposure to other price risks and no exposure to foreign currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the value of a financial instrument or cash flows associated with the
instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. Council does not hold any interest bearing
financial instruments that are measured at fair value, and therefore has no exposure to fair value interest rate
risk. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Council has minimal exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
through its cash and deposits that are at floating rates.

Investment of surplus funds is made with approved financial institutions under the Local Government Act 1989
We manage interest rate risk by adopting an investment policy that ensures:

- diversification of investment product,

- monitoring of return on investment,

- benchmarking of retumns and comparison with budget.

There has been no significant change in the Council's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for
managing interest rate risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period

Interest rate movements have not been sufficiently significant during the year to have an impact on the
Council's year end result.




image54.png
Moorabool Shire Council Notes to the Financial Report
2019/2020 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2020

Note 8 Managing uncert: (Col
(c) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its obligations under a financial instrument and
cause Council to make a financial loss. Council have exposure to credit risk on some financial assets included
inthe balance sheet. Particularly significant areas of credit risk exist in relation to outstanding fees and fines as
well as loans and receivables from sporting clubs and associations. To help manage this risk:

- we have a policy for establishing credit limits for the entities we deal with;

- we may require collateral where appropriate; and

- we only invest surplus funds with financial institutions which have a recognised credit rating specified in our
investment policy.

Receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across the ratepayer, business and government
sectors. Credit risk associated with the Council's financial assets is minimal because the main debtor is
secured by a charge over the rateable property.

There are no material financial assets which are individually determined to be impaired.

We may also be subject to credit risk for transactions which are not included in the balance sheet, such as
when we provide a guarantee for another party. Details of our contingent liabilities are disclosed in Note 8.1 (b).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date to recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount, net of any provisions for impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to
the financial statements. Council does not hold any collateral

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk includes the risk that as a result of our operational liquidity requirements we will not have sufficient
funds to settle a transaction when required or we will be forced to sell a financial asset at below value or may
be unable to settle or recover a financial asset

To help reduce these risks Council

- have readily accessible standby facilities and other funding arrangements in place;

- have a liquidity portfolio structure that requires surplus funds to be invested within various bands of liquid
instruments;

- monitor budget to actual performance on a regular basis; and

- set limits on borrowings relating to the percentage of loans to rate revenue and percentage of loan principal
repayments fo rate revenue.

The Council's maximum exposure to liquidity risk is the carrying amounts of financial liabiliies as disclosed in
the face of the balance sheet and the amounts related to financial guarantees disclosed in Note 8.1, and is
deemed insignificant based on prior periods' data and current assessment of risk.

There has been no significant change in Council's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for
managing liquidity risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

With the exception of borrowings, all financial liabilities are expected to be settled within normal terms of trade.
Details of the maturity profile for borrowings are disclosed at Note 5.5.

Unless otherwise stated, the carrying amount of financial instruments reflect their fair value.
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() Sensitivity disclosure analysis

Taking into account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts, and management's knowledge
and experience of the financial markets, Council believes the following movements are 'reasonably possible'

over the next 12 months
- A parallel shift of +0.5% and -0.5% in market interest rates (AUD) from year-end rates of 1%.

These movements will not have a material impact on the valuation of Council's financial assets and liabilties,
nor will they have a material impact on the results of Council's operations.

8.4 Fair value measurement
Fair value hierarchy
Council's financial assets and liabilities are not valued in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, Council's
financial assets and liabilities are measured at amortised cost

Council measures certain assets and liabilities at fair value where required or permitted by Australian
Accounting Standards. AASB 13 Fair value measurement, aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity
by providing a definition of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across Australian Accounting Standards.

AASB 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value under AASB 13 is an exit
price regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

Allassets and liabilties for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within a fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Council has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

In addition, Council determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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Revaluation

Subsequent to the initial recognition of assets, non-current physical assets, other than plant and equipment,
are measured at their fair value, being the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. At balance date, the
Council reviewed the carrying value of the individual classes of assets measured at fair value to ensure that
each asset materially approximated its fair value. Where the carrying value materially differed from the fair
value at balance date, the class of asset was revalued

Fair value valuations are determined in accordance with a valuation hierarchy. Changes to the valuation
hierarchy will only occur if an extemal change in the restrictions or limitations of use on an asset result in
changes to the permissible or practical highest and best use of the asset. Further details regarding the fair
value hierarchy are disclosed at Note 6 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment, and infrastructure.

In addition, Council undertakes a formal revaluation of land, buildings, and infrastructure assets on a regular
basis up to every 5 years. The valuation is performed either by experienced Council officers or independent
experts.

Where the assets are revalued, the revaluation increments are credited directly to the asset revaluation reserve
except to the extent that an increment reverses a prior year decrement for that class of asset that had been
recognised as an expense in which case the increment is recognised as revenue up to the amount of the
expense. Revaluation decrements are recognised as an expense except where prior increments are included
in the asset revaluation reserve for that class of asset in which case the decrement is taken to the reserve to
the extent of the remaining increments. Within the same class of assets, revaluation increments and
decrements within the year are offset.

Impaiment of assets

At each reporting date, the Council reviews the carrying value of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, is compared to the
assets carrying value. Any excess of the assets' carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the
Comprehensive Income Statement, unless the asset is carried at the revalued amount in which case, the
impairment loss is recognised directly against the revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of asset to
the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the revaluation surplus for that same class
of asset

8.5 Events occurring after balance date
No matters have occurred after balance date that require disclosure in the financial report.




